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The Group aspires to be a leading Chinese property developer

with a renowned brand backed by cultural substance.

AEESEKRSEBXENE - mEEBROTBRATFEMERER -

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition that attaches importance to dedication,
honesty and integrity. Its development strategy advocates professionalism, market-orientation and
internationalism. It also strives to enhance the architectural quality and commercial value of the properties
by instilling cultural substance into its property projects. Ultimately, it aims to build a pleasant living

environment for its clients and create satisfactory returns to its shareholders.

AEEFATBOME  BEBA] NERBENERES - HITEXRE - M5 - BRI KRR -
REXENRRAZENDEERREE  STEPHERKNAERE R SBRRAEEBMER -
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Board of Directors

Executive directors
XUE Ming (Chairman)
HAN Qingtao
(Managing Director, Appointed on 21st October, 2014)
WANG Xu
CHEN Hong Sheng (Resigned on 27th June, 2014)
ZHANG Wan Shun (Resigned on 21st October, 2014)
YE Li Wen

Non-executive director
I[P Chun Chung, Robert

Independent non-executive directors
CHOY Shu Kwan

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia

WONG Ka Lun

Audit Committee

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady)
I[P Chun Chung, Robert

CHOY Shu Kwan

WONG Ka Lun

Remuneration Committee

WONG Ka Lun (Chairman)
CHOY Shu Kwan

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia
XUE Ming

WANG Xu

Company Secretary

POON Man Man

Legal Adviser

Ashurst Hong Kong

Auditor

Shu Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited
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Principal Bankers

China CITIC Bank International Limited

Malayan Banking Berhad

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Investor Relations Consultant

Artemis Associates Limited

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1
18 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

Company Website

www.polyhongkong.com.hk
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/polyhk

Financial Calendar

2014 Results Announcement Date: 27th March, 2015

Proposed 2014 Final Dividend: HK$0.076 Per Share

From 15th June, 2015 to
17th June, 2015
(both dates inclusive)

Book Closure Period:

Payment Date of 2014 3rd July, 2015
Final Dividend:
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Corporate Background

The Group is one of the foremost property
developers in China and is the real estate offshore
listed flagship of China Poly Group (a state-owned
enterprise). Its major businesses include property
development, investment and management. The
Group develops residential and commercial
properties in the cities along Yangtze River Delta
and Pear| River Delta as well as the second-tier
cities and provincial capitals. Projects of the Group
are located in 22 cities including Shanghai, Hong
Kong, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Wuhan, Suzhou,
Guiyang and Nanning, among others. Meanwhile,
the Group maintains a high-quality investment
portfolio in various cities comprising of landmark
properties such as Shanghai Poly Plaza, Shanghai
Stock Exchange Building and Beijing Poly Plaza.
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Business Review

In 2014, the macro-economy entered into a stock-taking
phase under the “new normal”, while the property market also
began a period of correction, marked by increasing volatility.
Early in the year, the property market fell into the doldrums as
property prices declined across major Chinese cities due to
unrelenting regulatory policies on loan restrictions and a
tightening credit policy. With timely adjustments to the
macro-economic policy, the effective withdrawal of property
purchase restrictions and continuous improvement in the
credit market, however, the property market bottomed out and
stabilised in the latter half of the year.

Confronted with vehement volatility, deep market correction
and intensified competition during the period, the Group
worked diligently to accommodate changes in market
demands and adjusted its own development in a timely
manner in accordance with ongoing market changes. During
the period, the Group’s profit level and gross profit margin
was subject to considerable fluctuation, as more emphasis
was placed on clearing inventories. Profit for the period was
also eroded by flexible launch and pricing strategies adopted
to cope with the overall decline in prices, as well as the
general increase in development costs for the property sector.

Despite fluctuations in the results for the period and
corrections in various business indicators, the Group
maintained a relatively high level of property sales against a
backdrop of adverse market conditions, as it responded
proactively to market changes and overcame the hardships in
its corporate upgrade and transformation. Continuous
enhancements in headquarters’ control and professionalism,
as well as an improved ability in standardised management,
have ensured stable operation of the Group’s businesses.
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During the period, the Group reported contracted property
sales of approximately RMB24.1 billion from new launches
and the ongoing sales of 48 property development projects.
Notwithstanding our persistent implementation of a proactive
sales strategy, our property sales fell short of our annual target
of RMB28.0 billion set at the start of the year and decreased
by approximately 9.7% compared to the previous year.
Contracted area sold was 2.35 million square metres,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 6%,
while our average selling price remained flat at approximately
RMB10,300 per square metre. During the period, the Group
remained focused on the ordinary products for genuine
housing demand, first-time homebuyers and first-time
upgraders to accommodate market requirements in firm
adherence to its emphasis on brand name and quality.
Residential products accounted for 87% of contracted sales
for the period, representing a year-on-year increase of 2
percentage points, while small- to medium-sized residential
units accounted for 92% of all residential products,
representing a substantial year-on-year increase of 8
percentage points.

As the land markets across major Chinese cities cooled down
notably during the period, the Group persisted with its prudent
approach to cope with the deep correction, and acquired 11
land plots with an aggregated GFA of approximately 3.93
million square metres in Hong Kong, Shanghai, Guangzhou
and Jinan through listing, acquisition and auction. With a view
to exercising stringent control over investment risks and
assuring business security and stable cash flow, the Group set
its attributable GFA for newly acquired projects in the region
at 2.44 million square metres, which was in line with its
contracted GFA sales for the period and was largely
unchanged compared to 2013.

During the period, major large-scale property developers in
China stepped up their efforts to tap the international market
in a move to expand their business. In line with this trend, the
Group successfully bid for and acquired the Hong Kong Kai
Tak Project, which is the first project the Group holds with
controlling interests outside mainland of China. Construction
of the project commenced in February 2015 and the related
operations are progressing well.

RAUBXEEBRAT | —T—HFFR

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE R &

HR - AEBEFHEENEEERK48E R
FHEHERN241ETARYE  #ARKE

BAER B HE R - EREEKRFVIHIE
H280 B TARENEFHER R AL TE
#99.7% : FLEIE2358F HK » RILL TR
6% : SHEHVEBEFE A KO1.03BTARE @&
EEAR AR o iR - REE IR R EFF DA b

RES  URERZL  BREMSHFELR  BE
MR RKEEEERNEREMREN - HINE

BHBROEED  EEHEMKIBEHER
H87% * RILLE— TR 2EADE : FIP
NEREEEEMTIELSE2% - R AR
T8 EE D o

A - 2E T BWHH LM HISREER -
SEHIEEFRARENES  HRESREMNRE
B B WE - RESKAERBE L
B BN BRSO R - AREm
TEHI3EF K - REREHIRERR - &
REER2MNRER IR AEBEEN IR
B EEEREEREL2448F K &
HAAEENHEERHNEERE TR -F
——HFEARFF -

HR RipEBAAEHMECE ASRKE R
RS INRT BRI - NERERE
TEFENBE RN ESBBBRISERT
BUE#IZTEE - ZHE RS EE ERIMNER
BREMNEWEEE BAIZEBESEIEER
JEF]  ER-—Z—RAF_ALEAMIER-



Poly Property Group Co., Limited | Annual Report 2014

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE R &

In accordance with its development plan, the Group increased
the GFA of scheduled new construction and commenced new
projects with GFA of approximately 3.56 million square
metres during the period, representing a year-on-year increase
of 26%. Owing to the absence of any growth in sales revenue
collection for the period coupled with the faster increment of
GFA in new construction, as well as the payment of land
premiums for certain newly acquired projects, there was a
year-on-year increase in the Group’s liabilities, resulting in a
higher gearing ratio and net liability ratio. The Group’s cash
balance as at the end of the period was approximately
HK$17.8 billion, which was largely unchanged compared
with the same period in the previous year, and its cash flow
structure remained stable and firm, with cash inflow and
outflow from operating activities basically in balance. The
Group is of the view that the rising or falling of total liabilities
and gearing ratio in the short term due to corporate
transformation and upgrades in recent years are normal
fluctuations. In the near future, the Group will continue to
work vigorously to reduce its total liabilities and lower its
gearing ratio, in order to be better positioned to address
market changes and to maintain stability of its operations.

Following the appointment of Mr. Han Qingtao as Executive
Director and Managing Director by the Board of Directors of
the Group during the period, the positions of Group Chairman
and Managing Director have been segregated and are no
longer held by the same person. With the separation of these
positions, the Group has further enhanced its corporate
governance structure and believes this offers further assurance
for the formulation of more comprehensive and effective
corporate governance practices and procedures.

In retrospect of 2014, the Group consolidated its resources to
improve internal control on all fronts and strengthen its ability
to offset operational risks, as it accelerated its pace on
transformation to cope with the tribulations and pressures
brought about by market corrections and the corporate
transformation. With the belief that short-term fluctuations in
results should not disrupt deployment and implementation of
its existing strategies, the Group will continue to shore up its
operations and development in the near future.

HiR - AEERBREEORERLE  MARTH
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Business Outlook

As Chinese economic development enters a stage of
slowdown from double-digit to single-digit growth in 2015
with an emphasis on enhancing quality and profitability, the
property sector will inevitably enter a phase that we will
consider the new normal, at a steady pace. In terms of macro-
economic policies, administrative intervention such as
purchase and loan restrictions will be phased out and
regulatory measures will be implemented on a market-
oriented basis, with a view to the gradual establishment of a
long-term mechanism. Meanwhile, disparity between cities
will cause local governments to adopt more flexible
adjustments in their policies. For property developers, clearing
inventories will remain the major concern in 2015. As the
pressure of clearing inventories varies significantly from city to
city, it will not only accelerate market-oriented transformation
and energise the property sector, but will also further escalate
competition between property developers.

The Group will continue to ensure the stable and in-depth
implementation of existing operational measures and
proactively move to adapt to new norms in both the economy
and the industry, to seize opportunities carefully. Major efforts
will be made to expedite the clearance of inventories, control
investments, procure cost reduction and increase profitability.
We will also continue to pursue innovation, strengthen
coordination and planning and exercise stringent regulation
over management, in order to further fuel the ongoing growth
of the Group.
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The Group will maintain its focus on the market and sales and
will continue to monitor and study policies and measures, in
order to respond to market changes in a timely manner and
seek an accurate understanding of the pattern of such changes.
We will continue to maintain a relatively high proportion of
small- to medium-sized units in our product portfolio to
ensure fulfilment of genuine market demand, while further
optimising our portfolio of products for sale to address the
rapid changes in various market demands. Efforts in innovative
marketing will be enhanced and new marketing themes will
be explored to bolster our sales and promotions. This year, the
Group has set “Poly Is Here to Share with You ({R FI|E2{R £ 5
Z)” as its annual brand theme, aiming to strengthen its core
competitive strengths through the sharing of its products and
services. Meanwhile, the Group will step up efforts to clear
inventories in line with the market trends. In-depth research
on customer psychology will be conducted and further
differentiation of market segments will be made so that we are
able to adjust our marketing strategies as and when
appropriate, and adopt flexible pricing measures to ensure
that a reasonable inventory mix is maintained.

The Group will remain focused on cash flow, and making
reasonable and suitable investments while protecting itself
from operating risks. More emphasis will be placed upon the
collection of sales proceeds to ensure sufficient cash inflow in
a timely manner. Reasonable adjustments will be made to the
pace of development to expedite the launch of differentiated
products, while plans to build properties similar to those in
stock in substantial volumes will be reviewed carefully.
Construction work schedules will be optimised to maintain a
faster pace of development, with a view to the pre-emptive
launch of projects facing potential competition. In terms of
new project development, we will persist with a strategy
focused on the rapid, rolling development of residential sites
to fulfil the genuine demand for homes, while vigorously
seizing market opportunities to replenish project resources in
a reasonable and suitable manner.
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The Group will continue to enhance project-based operations
at its headquarters, while refining its operational standards
and improving its management efficiency. We will continue to
optimise our management framework and resource allocation,
while persisting to make the improvement in our risk control
ability, especially pre-emptive risk control, in order to
maintain a proactive response to market changes and ensure
stable development of the Group.

The Group will continue to drive development through
innovation and will accelerate its corporate upgrading and
transformation. We will actively engage strategic partners and
enhance strategic cooperation with other large-scale property
developers and financial institutions on a win-win basis. We
will also continue to expedite our business development
outside mainland of China and further improve our ability to
operate in the international market. We will further optimise
our exposures to different geographic regions and product
categories. The asset light business model will be explored in
an attempt to proactively accommodate the changing business
pattern of the industry while further optimising the asset
allocation. The “tag-along project investment” system will be
implemented on an experimental basis as and when
appropriate, to enhance staff motivation and initiatives.

The Group strives to become one of the leading major
property developers in China. As the only overseas-listed
flagship of the China Poly Group with real estate as its core
business, the Group is confident about its business prospects
and believes that it will continue to receive extensive support
from its parent company. The Group is confident that it will
conduct its overall development in a proactive and prudent
manner, aiming to achieve stable development in the long
term, with an emphasis on structural realignment,
transformation and upgrade, a persistent drive for innovation
and organic growth, as well as ongoing enhancements of its
core competitive strengths for greater efficiency and better
return for shareholders.
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Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay is
located in the South of Liwan District,
close to the Guangzhou Metro Line 1.
It is an integrated community with
commercials and residentials, with
plentiful retail and educational
facilities. The project’s total GFA is
approximately 640,000 sq.m..

CE IR B B R R o AR N
HIR BE KEREEZ - E
ARL RGBT AERE
REEA— BHEARE -




SHENZHEN
POLY JOY-ZONE
RN R A
BETEE

FOSHAN
POLY
PRESTIGE CITY
BRI L3 4

2

28 08 30 ¥
ESaESSEEN

T -d

TARnilAnaEn

‘2 2 insisl ina

Bkl b b o il kR ) R el

HUIZHOU
POLY DEUTCH
KULTUR
B MARRI L 7R3

4]




SOUTHWESTERN
REGION
= i [&

/

1
GUIYANG POLY
THE PLACE OF A LAKE

S5 RAZH

Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake
is located in the core site of Eco-
scenic Resort, Huaxi District. The
project covers a site area of 290,000
sq.m., and has a total GFA of 890,000
sg.m.. It is a residential community
comprising of villas and high-rise flats.
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Harbin Poly City is located in the
new Qunli District, which is a new
major residential region planned by
the government. The project's total
GFA is approximately 540,000 sq.m.,
and will be developed into medium to
high-end class residential landmark of
Harbln
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Overall Operating Conditions

In 2014, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$28,508,737,000 (corresponding period in 2013:
HK$28,625,008,000), representing a decrease of 0.4%
compared to the corresponding period last year. Profit
attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$929,448,000
(corresponding period in 2013: HK$2,715,626,000),
representing a decrease of 65.8% compared to the
corresponding period last year. Basic earnings per share was
HK25.49 cents (corresponding period in 2013: HK74.74
cents), while diluted earnings per share was HK25.42 cents
(corresponding period in 2013: HK74.45 cents), representing
a decrease of 65.9% compared to the corresponding period
last year. The Board of Directors of the Group has
recommended a final dividend of HK7.6 cents per share be
paid.

As at 31st December, 2014, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$29,762,327,000
(31st December, 2013: HK$29,617,047,000) and net asset
value per share was HK$8.14 (31st December, 2013:
HK$8.13).
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Property Development

During the period, the gross floor area of newly commenced
construction projects completed by the Group was
approximately 3,560,000 square metres. The contracted area
sold was approximately 2,350,000 square metres, of which 38
were on-going projects and 10 were debut launches. The
gross floor area of construction completed was approximately
4,010,000 square metres. As at 31st December, 2014, the
Group held 53 projects, either under development or under
planning, covering a gross floor area of approximately
23,170,000 square metres.
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Property Sales

The property market underwent a correctional period in 2014,
as the central government emphasised the establishment of a
long-term mechanism for protecting reasonable housing
demand under the principle of “differentiated control.”
Regionally, local governments implemented a variety of
flexible measures for market stimulation, as a number of cities
abolished or significantly relaxed the purchase restriction
policy. Encouraged by the policy of “stabilising growth,” the
real estate sector gradually rebounded after initial setbacks.
Leading property developers seized the opportune timing to
clear inventories with a collective willingness to boost sales
volume by offering price concessions. According to the
National Bureau of Statistics, commodity housing GFA
available for sale in 2014 increased by 26% year-on-year,
indicating a record-high inventory level in a property market
that saw a slight drop in both annual GFA sales as well as
average selling prices compared with last year, as the
profitability of the real estate sector was further squeezed. The
level of industry concentration increased significantly as
property developers were obliged to pursue strategic
transformation, allowing large-scale players to grow stronger
while leaving some small- and medium-sized property
developers at risk of being merged.

In 2014, the Group adopted proactive measures in response to
complicated and changing property policies and the property
market. Adhering to a market-oriented approach, the Group
continued to focus on genuine housing demand and marketing
small- to medium-sized ordinary residential products with
reasonable prices, taking into account market conditions.
During the period, the Group remained focused on its brand
and quality as it strengthened branding and promotion while
focusing on product quality with meticulous efforts to develop
property projects with high quality. Taking the 30th
anniversary of Poly Group as an opportunity, the Group
launched a number of branding and marketing campaigns
such as “Independent in Your 30s, Build Dreams at Home and
Homeland” (= + T 32 - £ 2 K E), “Experiencing Quality
Life of Poly” (fR#anE 4 )5 8852 ) and “Integrate Life with
Culture” (EX/L)EIEA)E), to boost sales. During the period,
the Group achieved contracted sales of approximately
RMB24.1 billion and contracted area sold of approximately

2.35 million square metres, respectively.
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Contracted Sales in 2014 by Region
2014 FENHEBFH TG

(RMB million)
AREBEET

Yangtze River Delta Region

R=AitER

Other

Regions

HAh PIA Pearl River

HiJ= oy Delta Region

K=&
Southwestern
Region
Piifepaif =
* Note: Car park sales were not included

New Land Bank Acquisition

In 2014, the Group acquired 11 land plots in 9 cites, namely
Shanghai, Ningbo, Guangzhou, Guiyang, Nanning, Guilin,
Jinan, Harbin and Hong Kong. These land plots had a total site
area of approximately 860,000 square metres with a total
planned gross floor area of approximately 3,930,000 square
metres. The aforesaid acquisitions marked the Group’s debut
in Hong Kong and Guilin, while the Hong Kong project is also

Contracted Area Sold in 2014 by Region
2014 FENHERTEB G
(‘000 square metres)
FERA

Yangtze River Delta Region

R=AR

Other

Regions

Hits Pearl River

@ Delta Region
K=Am

Southwestern

Region

FratE

* i AEEAEE

G+ bR

—E-NEAEESRELE BEK - E
M~ EFZ - FE M OER - MEEREEI
E@EATELIE - ZIEHMmEL86EF
TR RBIREREEIEH393E T K - Hep
FRENMEMBANEEEEANET - MEE
HEREEEDRNEERINFIERR  #E—
FRETEENEBIEMS o

the Group’s first property project outside mainland of China,

which further strengthened its development strategy.
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Land Plots Acquired in 2014 2014 F T+ M {FEHI R
Interests
attributable
to the Group  Current
Planned (@sof  project status
gross floor  31st December,  (as of
Land plot/Project Site area area 2014)  28th February, 2015)
FREEEZ HEEE
(B (B=
RE “2-[E  ZB-EF
i,/ B H o B ER BEEE +-A=1t-A) ZA=tNH)
(000 (000
square square
metres) metres)
(TF75K) (TF75K)
Shanghai Yang Pu Bin Jiang Project Commercial 21 94 50%  Under planning
LEBBEIRR [EES £
Shanghai Yang Pu Ping Liang Project Residential 35 110 50%  Under planning
LEEHTREEER e E 21l
Ningbo Poly Wonderland Residential 130 325 100%  Under construction
ERRMEDTRE FE BT
Guangzhou Huadu Jianshe Beilu Project Residential 23 99 100%  Under planning
BMEBERIAER e &&l7
Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay, Phase Il Residential 58 59 51%  Under planning
EBRNBEE_H e L
Nanning Poly Hearty Residential 15 114 100%  Under construction
BERMLE e BT
Nanning Poly Ling Xiu Qian Cheng Residential 315 1,631 38%  Under planning
BERNESA e &&lT
Guilin Poly Culture and Arts Center Commercial 46 88 50%  Under planning
BRI EE i O [EES EHl
Jinan Poly Center, Phase Il Residential 50 261 85%  Under construction
BRENTO=H e BT
Harbin Poly City Residential 157 541 100%  Under planning
REBRAN ffE &&l7
Hong Kong Kai Tak Project Residential 10 70 100%  Under construction
BBREER E ERL

Total &3t : 860 3,929
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Summary of Newly Acquired Projects in
2014

1.

Shanghai Yang Pu Bin Jiang Project

The project is located on the waterfront of the East Bund
within the inner ring and near the Yangshupu Road
Station of metro line No. 4 and the planned Changyang
Road Station of metro line No. 12. It is only 500 metres
away from the planned Dandong Road Station of metro
line No. 18. The government intends to develop this
district into an area with modern facilities, mainly
consisting of water-theme resorts, industrial exhibition
centres, technological and commercial facilities as well
as an academic community. The project will become a
landmark on the Yangpu waterfront, forming a high-end
commercial, office, recreational and leisure area, in
conjunction with the surrounding developments of the
North Bund modern service zone.

Shanghai Yang Pu Ping Liang Project

The project is located in the centre of Dalian Road
modern service zone and within the inner ring of the
Yangpu district. It is located 600 metres away from the
Dalian Road Station of metro line No. 4 and metro line
No. 12, and 800 metres away from the Jiangpu Park
Station of metro line No. 12, which makes it a
convenient location for transportation. Being adjacent to
the North Bund, the project is well connected to East
Nanjing Road, the Bund and Lujiazui in Pudong, through
the Bund Tunnel and the Dalian Road Tunnel. The
project is surrounded by the headquarters of a number of
renowned local and international corporations, research
and development centres and professional service
centres. The area which the project is located will be
developed into the best in Yangpu district with the most
excellent commercial, office, educational and
entertainment facilities. The project will be developed
into a high-rise residential community demonstrating a
classic and modern style.

2014 FHFHERIE B &N

Nabi=2 ) p-PARY S

IR ARIAA - RINEE)T 7 - SEaT 8
RASRARBIERER UL - REF 12 R K
K% 8% uf - BB BE AR & Fh &Y 18 5 A% FY SR BE A
{£500 K o BUT #1230 4T 3E pIA
KRBT - THREE - BIEH% - MdtE
REBRTNRARBIAES - HE KM
IEINVERRRB R ES - FTESERN
BE - WORKRERERSE, - KAGHAE
THIAR R EE -

FESHEREEER

URSGHEEARNAA - KEBREKRBEE
ORISR o EERBERE - R E 458
AR 125 AR KB Uh600K @ BEBE125R
ARTRAE L 800K - BAELINE - BB
SNEERR B A B BB E - Al AR IR EE
FOREE - INERHREREEBIZOE -
HERAEZBRETEZRBEANIINABEER
B HEPONMSEEERBRL - &A
B AGEREREBEOEE - #HQ -
HE NKHBER -BEEHITEAAER
i BREROSEBEEE -
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Ningbo Poly Wonderland

The project is located in the core area of the rapidly
developing Eastern New City of Ningbo. This area will
be the future political, economic, cultural and
commercial centre of Ningbo; the office of the municipal
government has already moved into the area last year.
The location of the project is very convenient, and is
surrounded by a wide range of commercial, educational,
cultural and recreational facilities. The project will be
developed into a high-end residential community
consisting of multi-storey and high-rise apartments.

Guangzhou Huadu Jianshe Beilu Project
The project is situated to the east of North Jianshe Road
and south of Sandong Avenue at the centre of the
government office zone of Huadu and within the core
district along the city axis of Huadu to be built in the
future. It is approximately 1.5 kilometres from Poly
Zephyr City, another development project of the Group,
and is prestigiously located with convenient
transportation access and comprehensive commercial
and daily facilities, as well as plentiful educational and
medical services facilities.

Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay, Phase Il

The project is located in Nanming District, Guiyang, a
wonderful residential area. The project enjoys the
breathtaking scenery of Nanming River and the
tranquillity of Mount Phoenix. The project is easily
accessible as it is only 12 kilometres away from Guiyang
Longdongbao International Airport and 2.5 kilometres
away from Guiyang Railway Station. A great number of
high-quality ancillary facilities, such as medical and
educational facilities, are located in the vicinity. The first
phase of the project was launched in the first quarter of
2014.

BERRAENLRE
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Nanning Poly Hearty

The project is an urban renewal project in Mingxiu Road
East, Xixiangtang District, Nanning. The project is
situated at the junction of Xingning District, Qingxiu
District and Xixiangtang District, which is a traditionally
core commercial area at the centre of Nanning. The area
is well-developed with convenient transportation and
comprehensive ancillary facilities, such as educational,
medical and commercial amenities. The project is
designed to become a prominent property in the region,
featuring an exquisitely decorated, high-quality
residential community complemented by comprehensive
ancillary facilities.

Nanning Poly Ling Xiu Qian Cheng

The project is located in the arm of Yong River in the
eastern region of Dongmeng Business Zone in Qingxiu
District of Nanning, and boasts excellent scenic views
and convenient transportation access. The project is
adjacent to Qingxiushan Golf Course, the only facility of
its kind in the urban district, and faces Qing Xiu Shan, a
national 5A scenic area. It is approximately 2 kilometres
from Dongmeng Business Zone and approximately 6
kilometres from Langdong central business district and
the convention and exhibition centre. In the future,
Metro stations and train stations are to be built in the
neighbourhood. The project will be developed into a
high-end integrated urban complex comprising of
shopping mall, pedestrian walkway, office tower and
eco-friendly residential community.

Guilin Poly Culture and Arts Center

The project is located in the core of the new Lingui
district, which is being developed into a sub-centre in
Guilin by the Guilin Municipal Government. The district
will become a new CBD, providing comprehensive
urban services as an urban centre. The project, located
15 kilometres away from the centre of Guilin, is well
equipped with municipal facilities and enjoys superior
natural landscapes. As a result of the scenery and
tourism resources, a number of unique mini-theatre
complexes and a residential and commercial
development project have been planned for the area.
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UREEMARNERABTRE - BEMN
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10.

11.

Jinan Poly Center, Phase Il

The project is located in the West Market (78 T %), a
business district with one hundred year’s history in the
west of Jinan. The West Market is a commercial centre
and a major grocery market. With well developed
commercial facilities, the project is about 6 kilometres
away from Jinan Station of Beijing-Shanghai High-speed
Railway and is one of the key developed areas under the
&’ A &) The

project will be developed into an integrated community

Development Plan of Jinan (J& Fg T

comprising of residential, commercial and office
buildings.

Harbin Poly City

The project is located in the Qunli CBD in Daoli District
on the south bank of Songhua River with the benefit of
scarce natural scenic resources and core commercial
facilities. It borders West Youyi Road and Songhua River
in the north and Songjiang Brook, a scenic waterway, in
the east, and is a new major residential region planned
by the government. About 8.1 kilometres away from
Harbin Railway Station and 4.4 kilometres away from
the airport expressway entrance, the project is located in
a district that enjoys superior environmental and living
conditions and is positioned as a high quality landmark
residential project in Harbin.

Hong Kong Kai Tak Project

The project is located in the Kai Tak Development Area
of Kowloon East, which was previously the north tarmac
of the former Hong Kong Kai Tak Airport. The area,
which is set to become a part of the core business district
of Kowloon East, is an important region under the urban
development plan for Hong Kong. The project is near
Kai Tak Station along the Shatin-Central MTR line, which
will be completed in 2020. It will take only about 10
minutes by MTR to the financial centre of Hong Kong
Island in the future. The project is planned to be
developed into a residential community in the Kai Tak
Development Area.

10.

11.
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Projects under Construction and Projects
under Planning

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group held a total of 70
commodity properties and integrated development projects in
22 cities. Within the gross floor area, an aggregate of
approximately 32% of the properties and projects are located
in Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River Delta regions;
approximately 45% and 23% are located in cities in the
southwestern region and other regions, respectively. The
Group possessed 43 projects under construction with a total
gross floor area of approximately 8,230,000 square metres
(attributable area approximately amounted to 6,440,000
square metres), and land reserved for future development with
planned gross floor area of approximately 14,940,000 square
metres (attributable area approximately amounted to
9,240,000 square metres).

List of Projects under Construction and Projects
under Planning as at 31st December, 2014

EERGRER

HE-_T-—NF+_A=+—H ~&EEE22
ERHmEFE 70 EEREERGEEERE
BE HPomEeaER=-"ARK=-ARBRENIER
EEMBLBELLEARTNAE32%  DHEA
mittERT R EMETAIEE EEEEGE
BB EDRIZ45% K 23% - EF43EERE
FIEX FREEEMBENS2IBFHK(E
AR 644 BT oK) FEMNBFEESE
ETEX 1,494 B F A K (EEEREELN 248

BE-Z—NF+-A=+—HZE
BEHRTREEIR

Gross floor Planned Interest
area under gross floor attributable
Project construction area to the Group

ERER HRER
15H REEMR REEAR  SEEGED

('000 ('000

square metres)  square metres)

(TF7K) (TF75K)

Yangtze River Delta Region E=ZAE

1. Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion 1. LERNRETS 184 - 100%
2. Shanghai Poly Star Island 2 FERAEBIEE 312 - 100%
3. Shanghai Poly Felicity 3. DBRMESE 55 - 100%
4. Shanghai Phili Mansion 4, LEEEEH 329 - 25%
5. Shanghai Phili House 5. LEEENHE 215 34 50%
6. Shanghai Yang Pu Bin Jiang Project 6. LBBHETER - 94 50%
7. Shanghai Yang Pu Ping Liang Project 7. LEBBTREERER - 110 50%
8. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 8. ENRNEERR 309 29 100%
9. Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 9.  ERMRMENER 280 337 100%
10. Ningbo Poly City 10, EREAHE 297 299 100%
11, Ningbo Poly Jordan International 1. BRRAZEHELE 11 283 100%
12. Ningbo Poly Wonderland 12, ERRAEDIE 140 185 100%
13. Deqing Poly Origin 13, EERVRE 159 118 100%

Sub Total g /Nt 2,291 1,489
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Gross floor Planned Interest
area under gross floor attributable

Project construction area to the Group
ERER @EH
HH BEEER apEnn  KEEGRGD

(000 (000
square metres)  square metres)

(TF5K)__ (FEK)

Pearl River Delta Region K=AE

14, Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire 14, BMNRFSBEKE 39 - 51%
15, Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City 15, BMERFITES 92 - 100%
16.  Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 16. BMGRAELE 99 541 55%
17. Guangzhou Poly Up House 17.  BMNRFIE 153 - 100%
18.  Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 18, BMEDERMSH 173 656 49%
19.  Guangzhou Huadu Jianshe Beilu Project  19.  BM7E#E &L BEER - 99 100%
20.  Foshan Poly Prestige City 20, BBILRF| 66 - 100%
21, Foshan Poly Central Park 21, BLRNPRAE 251 421 100%
22, Shenzhen Poly Joy-Zone 22, RYRMGHEE 138 - 70%
23, Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 23, BEMRFL K 197 - 80%
24, Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 24, BINRMBG AR 156 623 70%
Sub Total MR/ 1,364 2,340

Southwestern Region AEtE

25. Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland 25, EBRRMERIH 10 - 66.5%
26.  Guiyang Poly Spring Street 26. ERRMEXKE 40 182 66.5%
27. Guiyang Poly Park 2010 27.  EBRFAE2010 287 1,136 100%
28.  Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 28. EBRRFEZE /ﬁﬂ 257 356 50%
29.  Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 29. EBREME 322 1,259 51%
30.  Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 30. %%ﬁﬂfﬁxf& m 216 3,336 35%
31. Nanning Poly Crescendo 3. EBERAILEE 103 178 100%
32, Nanning Poly Aegean Sea 32. HERNEEE 177 - 100%
33. Nanning Poly Dream River 33, BERAENHE 210 - 30%
34. Nanning Poly Hearty 34, BERILE 114 - 100%
35. Nanning Poly Ling Xiu Qian Cheng 35 FERMESAN - 1,631 38%
36.  Liuzhou Poly Merization World 36, HUWRFIAIE 531 - 100%
37. Guilin Poly Culture and Arts Center 37.  BEMRFSUCEH.L - 88 50%
38.  Chongging Poly Spring Villa 38. BERMIRFIZE 8 - 51%

Sub Total @ Nat 2,275 8,166
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Gross floor Planned Interest
area under gross floor attributable
Project construction area to the Group
EREH FRER
15H BEEMR REEOR  SEEGED
('000 ('000
square metres)  square metres)
(TF5K) (TF75K)
Other Regions Hit B S
39.  Wuhan Poly City 39.  BUERA 975 519 68%
40.  Wuhan Yangyuan Project 40. REBEEE - 130 51%
41, Wuhan Poly Park 41, RERMAER - 110 55%
42, Wuhan Poly Up Town 42, RERM M 186 607 50%
43, Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 43,  MEERFIKERE - 250 58%
44, Harbin Poly Up Town 44, WBRBERF LM 190 - 100%
45, Harbin Poly City 45, REBERMA - 541 100%
46.  Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 46. ERRFIGEARE 88 45 100%
47.  Jinan Poly Center 47.  EERNFL 162 202 85%
48, Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 48.  BERNERE 325 94 80%
49.  Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion 49, [EARFIZHENE 146 - 100%
50.  Yantai Poly Blossom Garden 50.  EEGRNZRRE 142 5 55%
51, Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion 51 BUSRASERE 84 - 100%
52. Hainan Poly Peninsula No.1 52, BERNEE15 1 373 100%
53. Hong Kong Kai Tak Project 53.  BBRURIEA - 70 100%
Sub Total Rt 2,299 2,946
Grand Total &t 8,229 14,941
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Completed Projects

In 2014, the Group completed projects with an approximate =~ —Z&—
gross floor area of 4,010,000 square metres, meeting the target

set at the beginning of the year.

List of Projects with Completed Area in 2014

BITIHE
M4 - Ak Bk TEHEH401 8T 75K

SEREHENRTBR -

“E-NERTEEERBESIR

Accumulated
completed gross

Completed floor area
gross floor until the end
Project area in 2014 of 2014
HE R E
—E-lmF “E-MER
RIZEEE CRIEFEHE
('000 ('000
square metres) square metres)
(FFI5K) (FF75K)
Yangtze River Delta Region R=AE
Shanghai Poly Town FERMEKE 128 435
Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion EERNKIEE ﬁlz 113 182
Shanghai Poly Star Island EERF 2 Z IR 166 166
Shanghai Poly Felicity EBERA |Rf}ii 44 44
Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa RN R A8 46 46
Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion RN AR FER /ﬁﬂl (A 251 443
Ningbo Poly City Efﬁ%ﬂ}ﬂz 160 380
Ningbo Poly Jordan International R RFE ZE B EE 272 272
Degqing Poly Origin %%H‘JT'JJ??EB 121 249
Pearl River Delta Region K=AE
Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire BENARF = B KA 154 367
Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City MR FITES 148 386
Foshan Poly Prestige City BB ILLAR T 458 136 369
Shenzhen Poly Up Town RINMRT) I AE 156 359
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur %94‘”%?']11-!7}0}@( 38 297
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Accumulated

completed gross

Completed floor area
gross floor until the end
Project area in 2014 of 2014
HERFE
—E-lmF “E-NER
HE RIZFER CRIBEER
('000 ('000
square metres) square metres)
(FF75K) (FF75K)
Southwestern Region AEitE
Guiyang Poly Spring Street BBERMEBERKE 26 389
Guiyang Poly Park 2010 EBERMAE2010 157 561
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake BB RFNEN 180 257
Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay E5 RN EEZ 5 5
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future B R AR I 380 1,617
Nanning Poly Crescendo MERMLEE 75 234
Nanning Poly Aegean Sea AERNESE 198 198
Liuzhou Poly Merization World PDMAR T AROLEB 208 358
Kunming Poly Sky and Earth EBRRMINE R 361 361
Other Regions Hitbih =
Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly ¥ f& % FI);5 £ FE & 33 335
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion BERIRFGEALE 110 301
Jinan Poly Center ERRA 114 114
Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion f&E B RN B RN R 59 143
Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion BB IR SLIE A BB 58 134
Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 ERERTF B 15 113 113
Grand Total: &% 4,010 9,115
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HEIEE

A total of 52 projects had deliveries and recognised sales in :ifﬂi HAE52EEAR afﬁ HEBBER
2014 with total sales of RMB22.0 billion and gross floor area 1 - Lé%ﬁkﬂm TTARE - AEEEE183
é‘%ﬂ?’ﬁfs HEEEYY %@12,0277‘5/&&
price was approximately RMB12,027 per square metre. ¥ /F K REEmBET > TREEMN
Among the area delivered, ordinary housing accounted for ~ 93% - BIZF R E4#E1E 3%  BFEG 1% °
93%, villas 3%, retail shops 3% and offices 1%.

Recognised Property Sales

of 1,830,000 square metres. The recognised average selling

“E-NEFEFERBIIR

List of Major Projects with Sales Recognised in
2014

Sales recognised

Project in 2014
5H —E-NELESHE
(RMB million)
(AREBET)

Yangtze River Delta Region R=A#E
1. Shanghai Poly Noble Duke 1. LEBRAISBLS 4
2. Shanghai Poly Royal Garden 2. BERMNEBLE 1,524
3. Shanghai Poly Town 3. EBERAMKE 6
4. Shanghai Poly Lakeside Garden 4. LEIBRFHBEG S 93
5. Shanghai Poly Star Island 5. LIBRMEEFESE 1,055
6.  Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion 6. BRARIEEL 1,052
7. Shanghai Poly Grace Garden 7. BERMAFHE 1,253
8.  Shanghai Poly Villa Garden 8. LIBRMENHE 0.4
9.  Shanghai Poly Felicity 9. EIEBRFITIM 824
10. Deqing Poly Origin 10. {u BB R R 534
11.  Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 11, FRINRT B R 835
12. Suzhou Poly Garden 12, &RINRFHESE 0.06
13. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 13. &MERNEERE 113
14. Ningbo Poly City 14, ERRFIK 639
15.  Ningbo Poly Jordan International 15. ERRMNBZEEBIE 555
Sub Total Mm@/ NEE 8,487
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Sales recognised

Project in 2014
EH —E-NELESE
(RMB million)
(AREBEST)
Pearl River Delta Region K=AME
16.  Guangzhou Poly City 16. & MR T3 18
17. Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire 17. M ERH 5 f R AB 794
18.  Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City 18. MR FITESL 1,426
19.  Shenzhen Poly Up Town 19. RINRA EIRIEE 1,888
20. Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden 20. BB IR T REIEE 298
21. Foshan Poly Prestige City 21. 8 LR A 358 449
22. Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 22. B ERA L I 43
Sub Total M@/ EF 4,916
Southwestern Region it E
23. Nanning Poly City 23. A B2 AR N3 981
24. Nanning Poly Landscape 24. BB R ALK e 6
25.  Nanning Poly Crescendo 25. RIS 272
26. Nanning Poly Sincere Garden 26. AERNE LK 31
27. Nanning Poly Phoenixia Garden 27. FERMEAEE 5
28. Nanning Poly Century 28. FMERN 21 R 6
29. Nanning Poly Upper House 29. MERNER LE 0.5
30. Liuzhou Poly Merization World 30. PR AT ED 1,291
31.  Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International 31. BB RNE LB 3)
32. Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland 32. E S RN R 32
33. Guiyang Poly Spring Street 33. EERMERKE 70
34. Guiyang Poly International Center 34. EBRNBERES 40
35.  Guiyang Poly Park 2010 35. S5 RNAE2010 589
36. Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion 36. EARNZHZIR 19
37. Kunming Poly Sky and Earth 37. EBRRA7NE R 1,166

Sub Total & /N 4,506
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Sales recognised

Project in 2014
18 H — 2 -NELESH
(RMB million)
(AREBEST)
Other Regions Hitbith &
38. Wuhan Poly Royal Palace 38. EOERAMZEH 35
39. Wuhan Poly Cai Sheng Garden 39. EOE RN B R5E 6
40. Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District 40. EURRT EE B AR 161
41.  Wuhan Poly Park 41. FOERAMAER 5
42. Poly Harbin Contemporary No. 9 Park Life ~ 42. REERNDE IR 57
43. Harbin Poly The Water’s Fragrant Dike 43. REBERNKERE 216
44. Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly 44. ﬂéﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%%ﬁ@. 487
45. Jinan Poly Garden 45. R AITE 2
46. Jinan Poly Daming Lake 46. i ﬁﬁ(ﬂﬁ%/ﬁﬂ 210
47. Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 47. @ﬁﬁéﬂ/t (YN 945
48. Jinan Poly Lotus 48. B RFRE 8
49. Jinan Poly Center 49, SRR A A0 591
50. Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion 50. BB RN SLHE A R 467
51. Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion 51. & & RN B RN 310
52. Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 52. BERMEE 15 586
Sub Total o[/ Et 4,086
Grand Total: &t 21,995
Recognised Sales in 2014 by Property Type —FE-NMFEFEYEFREK

Sales recognised
Property type in 2014 Percentage
WEER —2-NFEAESH Bott

(RMB million)

(AR¥BST)
Apartment NG 18,558 84%
Villa llE 1,171 5%
Commercial [SES 1,506 7%
Office =gy 186 1%
Car parking space B 574 3%

Total AFr 21,995 100%
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Investment Properties REWZ

The Group owns investment properties in Beijing, Shanghai, AR&EEFEIR - & F Il RERERGEFH
Shenzhen, Wuhan and Guiyang, which all provide stableand 5% BEXREYWE -HE_ZE—NF+ A
recurrent income. As at 31st December, 2014, the Group’s =+—H KEEEEREMEELEERRE
investment properties amounted to a gross floor area of  #)57BF K —T—NFRALERAAR
approximately 570,000 square metres. Rental income  #545916,0007C 81 © NEEE T 85 F1&
amounted to RMB545,916,000 in 2014. Leasing performance N5 HA R RFETE  HEkFE-_T—=
of the Group’s offices and retail spaces remained stable with ~ FE%E - K EYE A AEBIREREBHBEHR
rental rates comparable to 2013. Ao

List of Major Investment Properties and Hotels #HZ—-f—N&E+-_A=+—HXZE

as at 31st December, 2014 L E SR E
Average Average Attributable
occupancy occupancy interests of
Project GFA held rate of 2014 rate of 2013 the Group  Property type
L] “F-mE CR-ZFYY
A RETR i HEE AR SEEE  MxER
('000 square
metres)
(T¥AX)
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 95 (Office building) Office building,
R ERRHAE (BoB) hotel and theatre
100% 100% 5% AR EERER
(Hotel)
(BE)
69% 75%
Beijing Beijing Legend Garden 30 97% 96% 100%  Apartment, villa
IR Villas (partial) and commercial
TRBRIEEANE (55) centre, etc.
NE-FIZR
BRFLE
Shanghai Shanghai Stock Exchange 48 96% 96% 100%  Office building
ik Building (partial) N
LEEFAE (B7)
Shanghai Shanghai Poly Plaza (partial) 61 99% 97% 90%  Office building and
g FERAES (85) commercial
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Average Average Attributable
occupancy occupancy interests of
GFA held rate of 2014 rate of 2013 the Group  Property type
] “E-ME C2-ZFYH
RETE AR ik SEEE  MxER
('000 square
metres)
(T¥75%)
Shenzhen Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza 133 100% 99% 100%  Shopping mall, cinema
A (partial) and theatre, etc
AR LR (52 5 FhkERS
Wauhan Hubei Poly Hotel 34 66% 57% 100%  Hotel
HE WILRAAEE BIE
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Plaza (partial) 130 48% 31% 100%  Office building and
HE RERNES ($5) commercial
Guiyang Regal Poly Guiyang Hotel 39 52% 46% 66.5%  Hotel
Eﬁ% Eﬁ’ﬂﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂ %;JJJU /EE /EE
Total B3t 570
Property Management Y ¥ ST

The Group’s property management companies are engaged in REBVYMESTENATNEAERYESE -
hotel and property management. Over the years, they have & &g m 72 ELRMNEIE  AIEEE - B

been awarded for their quality services and credibility. TR ER (= TR 80 BB T L LS ERFHEE o
In 2014, the Group’s property management services realised — = —pg& . 2 N5 F 8 I A AR K

an income of RMB351,029,000 from 113 properties with a 351 029,0007T * EEWEER 1138 @ BE®E
gross floor area of about 20,700,000 square metres, marking a EH2,070B K MEEER-_Z—=4&
decrease of 1 property compared with 2013. The managed &/ 1(F - SEEERE L FFH13% @ S REA
area grew by 13%, entailing office buildings, hotels, shopping & . Sk - 718 - R « (T=Z 2 (H%EE o
centres, villas and Residential.
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2015 Outlook

The policy for the property market is expected to be relatively
stable. Market is expected to play a more important role in
resource allocation and a long-term regulatory mechanism
will be gradually established. The support for housing demand
driven by self-occupation and home improvement will
constitute an important direction for government policies.
China’s property market will undergo a transition from rapid
growth in the past to a “new norm” that records more stable
and rational growth. The fundamentals of the real estate sector
are not expected to undergo substantial change. Market
activities in 2015 will be dominated by the clearance of
inventories, while the gap between different cities in property
transaction volumes will enlarge. Certain tier-one and tier-two
cities with relatively lower supply and stronger potential
demand may expect a faster turnover of inventories, while
most other tier-three and tier-four cities may have to deal with
the pressure of digesting oversupply.

The Group will remain committed to its goal of prudent
development, seeking to expedite the clearance of inventories,
exercise prudent control over investment and explore
innovative development models. In 2015, the Group together
with its joint ventures and associated companies will strive to
achieve the following key operating targets: i. commencing
construction on a gross floor area of approximately 4 million
square metres; ii. completing contracted sales of
approximately 2.45 million square metres and approximately
RMB26.0 billion in sales amount.

“E-LFRE

BHIEEM SRR GRHFMERE - HHE
BREETOERSEMLRE - RAGHZEES)
EEFEYT  XFEREEMBE LT REGK
RBREZEM - PEFMETHEHABES
HRIEREDEATIRIBIHIE RS [FEE] B
WETENEAETSHREENE(L  £&
FREER A _T—RAFMENTER  TH
W R H R DA — T B » TI5HANE
BRSO D —  ZHRHMTEER KK TRk
ELERF  EARED = - FUARS ™ 3k B
RN - EACBNFRE -

AEBEBGEERFUEBRERABERE  MRE
{EERHE - BREESIRE - WRREIFE
BHOER AT —1F  AEBEERHEEGE
PERBERABBNERATEELERIR
FHRIEEEBEL400BF K BENHEET
M2 8B F A RKREFNHESBOARE
2601E7T ©
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Yangtze River Delta Region

BB mE DT

1.

The Group’s land bank in the Yangtze River Delta

Region amounted to an aggregate gross floor area of

approximately 3,780,000 square metres and served

16.3% of the Group's property development portfolio as

at 31st December, 2014. A total of 18 projects were

under development, which accounted for a gross floor

area of approximately 2,290,000 square metres, and a

gross floor area of approximately 1,490,000 square

metres of land bank was reserved for future

development. All projects are currently under

construction.

City/District

W/ B

Project

HH

Geographical Location
R E

TEFHERBRRAB{N

R=ZAME
HE-T—MNF+-A=+—H ' A&H
REZAEZEE18EEMERZIER -
EREREEEEL229.08F K Fi2
MEEMMBEN149.08FH K AT HY
37808 F K MEAREERETRER
FREEEERENT63%  BEHEER
e TP ER -

Current Status

BRHRR

Major Products

TREM

Yangtze River
Delta
k=4

Shanghai
L8

Poly Town
e

Poly Lakesice Garden
RGBS 5E

Poly Deluxe Mansion

RAMRETE

Poly Elegant Mansion
RAKIEER

Poly Star Island

Located in the prime area of Jiading
Xincheng of Jiading District, close to
the Metro Line 11

IR EEERETRZLE
iR R Ebiif)

N . Delivered with sales of
Residential, commercial and

office buildings; a theatre and
a hotel

ES=RNEE RN B

Bl - EE

remaining apartments
R REHE

Delivered with sales of

remaining apartments
2t BEHE

For sale

EE

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHIRA)

For sale (partially

. delivered)
1RA2 IR
- EE(BHRA)
Delivered with sales of
Poly Grace Garden Located in Nanxiang, Jiading Social housing re?nlaviiriig\:[l)artsri::ts
‘\‘\D\+ ‘—E/Q\:i:ﬁ\‘ ol =g N o
RIS IR RERE i BiaiE
Located in Baoshan District, Songnan Featured European style Residential units sold
Poly Felicit area, well served by convenient mid-rise apartments out; commercial units
1%7%]%& Y transportation and community facilities | EUMEETER 5 for sale

gl  RERE REER
EEER

EEER BREE

Poly Royal Garden
A5

Located in the prime area in Tangzhen
of Pudong New District; the project is
well-served by a full range of
commercial and community amenities
IR ERAZ LR

FEEE  HELERETE

Apartments and villas
N-RIE

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHAIRA)

Phili Mansion
LHED

Located at Dalian Road, Yangpu
District, CBD of Binjiang of Inner
Loop, Golden Triangle of Lujiazui
IR A ES - BAREICBD
R BExEEE=AHR

Residential, office and For sale
commercial buildings EE

FE BFE BE
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City/District
W,/ W8

Project
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Geographical Location

RMNBEZXEEERAR | =%

Major Products

—PUEFHR

EEETWED M

Current Status

EHH WEVE TEEM BRMRR
Located in Sijing, Songjiang, near Residential and commercial For sale
Sijing Station of Metro Line 9 with buildings EE

Poly Phili House access to convenient transportation T B

RIFRLE and full-fledged ancillary facilities
RN - #5338 9 SR
W EER RETE
Located within the inner ring along Bin | Commercial buildings Under planning
Jiang at the Eastern Bund, in proximity | % i

Yang Pu Bin Jiang
Project
BREIRE

to Yangshupu Road Station of Rail
Line 4

IRPIRAR - RINEB I -
SRR AR GHEER L

Yang Pu Ping Liang

Located within the Eastern Bund in

High-rise apartments

Under construction and

Project Yangpu District BELE prepared for sale

BATRABER fir BB RN RS ERAE
Located in the economic development | Residential and villas For sale (partially
zone of the Wuzhong District; the FE FIE delivered)

Poly West Bank Villa

project stands on a peninsula of Dushu

EEBHZ)

RABERE Lake
Suzhou IR RPEEREE -
M ARRBBE M
Located in the economic development | Residential and retail shops For sale (partially
Poly Lake Mansion zone of the Wuzhong District and the | £ E1 delivered)
TR R northern tip of Yinshan Lake EE (BHRM)
I RepEEFRERE - FIRLE
Located in natural scenery to the east Residential, hotel, and For sale (partially
of Deging County; the project is a commercial buildings delivered)
, - 5-minute drive away from the HEBE- B EEFHIRM)
Deqing Poly Origin Hangzhou-Nanjing Passenger Railwa
ik RARH e L

4F1§%%ﬁﬁ RS
SEER - FILEK-
%ﬁiﬁé%?“
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Region

B

City/District Project
B/ e BH

Poly City
A

BB mE DT

Geographical Location
WEVE

Located in the prime location of
Zhenhai Xincheng, facing the new
administrative and cultural centre of
Zhenhai

RSN P
REEHTEIL O

Major Products

TEER

Residential and commercial
buildings

FE B

Current Status
BRI R

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHARA)

Ningbo
B

Poly Jordan International

RANEEERIEE

Located to the South of Tanjialing
Dong Road, and east of Chengdong
Road, Chengdong, Yuyao; the project
is close to the Hangzhou-Ningbo
Canal and the Hangzhou-Ningbo
Expressway with the provincial
highway Yongliang Line crossing from
east to west, and the Chengdong Road
linking the crossing bridge of
Hangzhou Bay; making it convenient
to travel by water and land

AT AR TR R S RBA AR
HMERBIAR - 2HRBER -
MARELE  ERRERERA -
WRBEENMEEEAR -
KEZBER

Residential and commercial
buildings
TE-mE

For sale (partially
dehver d)

Located at Shuixiang Lane, Dongshang

Residential and commercial

Under construction and

Poly Wonderland

RADIE New Town, Ningbo

MRE R R B E

buildings prepared for sale

e B EREE

Pearl River Delta Region

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group had 13 property
development projects in the Pearl River Delta Region
with a total gross floor area of approximately 3,703,000
square metres (comprising gross floor area under
construction of approximately 1,363,000 square metres
and gross floor area to be developed of approximately
2,340,000 square metres), accounting for approximately
16.0% of the total gross floor area held by the Group
that was either under construction or to be developed.
Among these projects, 9 are currently under
construction, 3 have been completed and 1 has yet to
commence construction.

K=AthE
HE-_Z-—MF+_A=+—H0 Kx&H
%ﬁzﬁﬂ@%ﬁnﬂ%%?%%ﬁa'
EREEEEEBELN13638F XK
BEEEMEL234.0BF K 'mufi%
3m3%$E\~QM$%IE%E@&

EREEMEN16.0% EH9EER
E%MI%&GMEEE@IWHE
AL
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Pearl River
Delta
%=A

City/District

Project
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Geographical Location

RMNBEZXEEERAR | =%

Major Products

—PUEFHR

EEETWED M

Current Status

W,/ W8 EH R E TEEM BRARR
Located in Huadu District; adjacentto | Residential, villas, and office | For sale (partially
the Asian Games New Stadium at buildings delivered)

Poly Golf Shire Fengshen Avenue and the Metro Line | (X% flI% - 8F1& EE(BHRf)
RUBEXH 9 that is currently underway
WieHE  EBREETES
%ﬁ’éﬁ%ﬁa £ &E@mmm
Located in Xinhua Town of Huadu High-rise apartments and For sale (partially
Poly Zephyr City District, east to the district government | retail shops delivered)
RAMTER AR EED L - BEFE EH EE @A)
EBEBFREA
Located in Huadu District at the Residential, featuring mainly | For sale
junction of Wuhan-Guangzhou basic and compact unit types | &
High-speed Rail, Guangzhou- - RIS BRRER
Poly Up House Qingyuan Light Rail and Airport North | &
RAGE Station APM
RERE - B0E3 5% - 9K

Guangzhou BER URRERE

EM EEEG LG APMRER
Located in the South of Liwan District; | Residential, apartments and Under construction and
adjacent to the Guangzhou Metro Line | commercial buildings prepared for sale

Poly Gratified West Bay | 1 with commercial and educational (EE AN EERE
RAAELRE facilities
NRBEEEE - AEN
1 aﬁ%i BE HE @EEH
Located within the Toyota Auto City in | Residential and commercial For sale
Huangge Town, Nansha with access to | buildings EE
Nansha Poly City a comprehensive transportation RS
ED A network
URELERESHTER -
TEBETE
Huadu Jianshe Beilu Located at the junction of North Residential, apartments and Land bank
Project Jianshe Road and Sandong Avenue in retail shops TinfEE
TEAERILHE Huadu (EE AN =T
IEE TRTERRRILBE=RAERR
Located in the centre of Chancheng Residential, office and For sale (partially
District neighbouring the Asia Arts commercial buildings delivered)
Poly Cullinan Garden Park in the west and equipped with a FE BFE BX EE(BHRf)
RAIXEEE full range of community facilities
R ERED DR  ASEERE

Foshan EREERERETE

{1l Located in Longjiang Town of Shunde | Residential and commercial For sale (partially
District with the benefit of an extensive | buildings delivered)

Poly Prestige City transportation network and thriving FE B¥ EE @A)
A 35 commercial activities

A RS EETIR -
FRRANE\E  BERSRE
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Region

B

City/District
Wi,/ W8

Project

EHH

Poly Central Park
AP RAE

Geographical Location
WEVE

Located in the north of Shunde New
City; the project stands in the heart of
Pearl River Delta and at the junction of
Daliang and Lunjiao, neighbours
Panyu, Guangzhou, and is well served
by convenient transportation

R IERFTIHALE - SRk = AN
IHEAR - RERR - BREMNER
—REK o BRRBTE  TREN

Major Products

TEEM

Mid-rise apartments, a
commercial centre, a five-star
hotel, and a supermarket
HEmERL
REREE - #h

Current Status
RERR
For sale

EE

Shenzhen
el

Poly Up Town
A LR

Located in the prime commercial
location of Longgang District, the
project is easily accessible by the
Metro Line 3 and is also
complemented with ancillary facilities
including schools

RN A

W3 AR - SRER

HE HERERE

Residential and retail shops

- BH

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHARA)

Poly Joy-Zone
RMBABIER

Located in Longhua, Bao’an District,
Shenzhen; close to the transportation
terminal and the metro station, with
sound business and community
facilities

AR E L R EE -
SHEFEY
BELE REXE

Residential and commercial
buildings
ix m%

Under construction and
prepared for sale

ERFE

Huizhou
=M

Poly Sunshine Town

RS

Located next to the Shenzhen-Shantou
Expressway and Palm Island Golf
Course, the project enjoys an
environment of natural scenery
RRRINRRARS -
ZEGHEERRRNE
BARGER

Residential
=

For sale

EE

Poly Deutch Kultur
RAILA

Located in the prime area of Huibo
and the northern bank of East River,
the project is only a 10 minute drive
away from downtown Huizhou
IREEZL  RILE -
BEEMPOHBE 10D BEE

Residential, villas and retail
shops
FE- HE - B

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE (@D




Region

B

Southwest

(i3

Southwestern Region
As at 31st December, 2014, the Group held 19 property
development projects in the Southwestern Region with a

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &

total gross floor area of approximately 10,441,000

square metres (comprising a gross floor area under

construction of approximately 2,275,000 square metres

and gross floor area to be developed of approximately

8,166,000 square metres), accounting for approximately

45.1% of the total gross floor area under construction

and to be developed held by the Group. Among them, 7

projects have been completed while 12 are under

construction.

City/District

B/ E

Guiyang
&

Project

HH

Poly Hot Spring New
Island

RABRIH

Geographical Location

WEVE

Located in Wudang District amidst a
picturesque setting at the centre of lake
areas embraced by acres of woodland
around the city and along the coast
IR SER - RABRRMAS
IEEH5 - MERY - RIZEX

RMNBEZXEEERAR | =%

i E

—PUEFHR

BEENWED T

HE-_Z—WE+-_A=+—0 " &~&H
REAE RN A 19 @ RE M E R 318
E HEEEEmMBY2758F K

FRERER
/\,\’]1 044.1 8 F 7K

EEMFREAEEEEN45.1% ¢

EEEE®T -

Major Products
TEER

A comprehensive residential
establishment with hot spring
facilities

ARRFXEERR

,\I\/]816 61%%27\7_\/ A :

,@ﬁzk;ﬁ%l%%f
EHEray

12 BB B B TREER o

Current Status
BN

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

2 REBHE

Poly International Center

RMERES

Located in the heart of Nanming
District and standing on the bank of
Nanming River with a shoreline of
approximately 300 metres

i 5T 235 2 PR [ P A B
BR300 KA EAR

Residential, commercial and
office buildings

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

R BEHE

Poly Clouds Hill
International

RME I

Located in Yunyan District; the project
is an important spot linking Jinyang
District to the city’s downtown area by
leveraging a full transportation
network; it is a 5-minute drive away
from the downtown of the city, which
is convenient and easily accessible
UNEER - EETFL
cHEENERHHN  HEIBRE
PERE  BOPLSHEER
R hiE

Residential and commercial
buildings
TE-mE

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

- REHE

Poly Spring Street
RMERKE

Located in the south of Wudang
District, the project is 1 kilometre
away from the centre of the district
UREEEHE ESERTL
—RERE

Residential, villas, and
commercial buildings

£ RIE - BF

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE(@H%H)

Poly The Place of A Lake
RMZEM

Standing against the backdrop of Huaxi
National Wetland Park, the project is
situated in the prime location in the
scenic eco-tour zone of the Huaxi
District
T
BERITEZRTRERIER

Eﬂ?ﬂft\f@% :

Residential, villas, and
commercial buildings

e BB R

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE (@A)
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Region

B

City/District
Wi,/ W8

Project

EEETWED M

Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

EHH WEVE TEEM BRHRR
Located in Wudang District and in Residential, villas, and retail For sale (partially
close proximity to the district shops delivered)
administration centre, the project F= HE - BH EE(BHRA)
incorporates an 18-hole international

Poly Park 2010 standard golf course and enjoys

RARE 2010 established community facilities in the
neighbourhood
IRSEEBITHADLS -

EAT/URER “/Emfﬁ/i\ﬁiﬁ

FREER M

Located in Nanming District; built on Residential, office buildings For sale
the old site of the former Guiyang and other commercial EE

Poly Phoenix Bay
RABEE

Power Plant (E/ZE ), the project is
situated in the traffic hub linking the
downtown of Guiyang and Xiaohe
District in the south and Huaxi District
fIniEHE  RREREREL -
REEEG TR OER N
TEEMIAER

buildings
% B¥2 BE

Poly Metropolis of

Located in the south of Zunyi; the
project is close to the centre of
transportation created by the

Residential, commercial,
office buildings, and villas
G BE B7E HE

For sale (partially
delivered)

B8 (F5%H)

\ZL;;I Future government and links to the old town
- RMAIIL T of Zunyi
R EEmE - RABISITER
Located in the north of Nanning, the A residential community of For sale (partially
project is approximately 20 minutes low-density Residential, delivered)
Poly Crescendo away frgnlfhe city centr:s_ high-rise residential units and | 7E% (7 2F)
RFLES fIREEDRILE - BTEL205E | serviced apartments
i NEZEEERE -
BERERABREN
AEHE
Located in Qingxiu District; the project | Residential and retail shops Delivered with sales of
is approximately 2 kilometres away TE mH remaining apartments
from the Nanning International and - RERHE
Exhibition Centre. As it is within close
Nanning Poly Sincere Garden proximity t(? the Nanning'Light Bail
e RS Lln? 1 that |s'current|y‘be|ng bulllt, the
project is easily accessible and is well
equipped with community amenities
I EFE  EREERERPLH
“RE - BIERNEY SRR
RBER BEHREERBTE
Residing at the emerging new High-rise residential and For sale (partially
community in Jiangnan District, the retail shops delivered)
Poly City project is only 10-15 minute driving BEEE A EE(FHHRM)
15 distance to the city centre

R THRHERNEERE
BEEE - EEEMRLE
10-15 7§87




Region

B

City/District
B/ BB

Project

EH

Poly Aegean Sea
RHESS
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Geographical Location
WEVE

Located in Xiuxiang main road and
neighbouring the Lion Hill Park, the
project is well served by convenient
transportation and community facilities
frREEmARAE -
SLMUAR - BERH
FRLEREREE R

Major Products

TEEM

Residential and retail shops

(3R

Current Status
BRHRR
For sale

EE

Poly Dream River

RMEGE

Located in the heart of the Liusha
Peninsula, the project neighbours the
Party School of CPC, the state
guesthouse Liyuan Resort and Qing
Xiu Mountain Golf Course in the east,
Liusha Eco Park in the west with a
planned gross floor area of over a
thousand acres, as well as a
spectacular view of river in the south
T IDE B DR -
RERZER EERZELE -
BEALBAXLS  BEAITEMN
M hReRE  BELETLS
WA ERY

14 single buildings in
neo-classical architectural
style

T4RERE  MhEER
REERE

Under construction and
prepared for sale

FREE

Poly Ling Xiu Qian
Cheng
RHAEFHH

Located at the junction of Qinghuan
Road and Fengling South Road in
Qingxiu District, the premium property
development at the heart of Nanning is
in proximity to the 3 CBDs of
Dongmeng, Longgang and Wuxiang,
facing Qingxiushan Park in the west
and overlooking Yongjiang River in the
south and connected to Dongmeng to
the north

N EEREREERZEEIER -
REEH ARZACGDFL
FHERUNE  BEHET -
LHRE BERREER

Residential, commercial
buildings, office and
apartments

T m% 5FE 08

Under construction and
prepared for sale

rREE

Nanning Poly Hearty
RADFE

Located at Mingxiu Road near the
former site of Chongzuo CPC
Academy, the project is a premium
residential development in Beihu
Sub-district
ArREAFER R BRI -
=LA REEARESE

Residential, office and
commercial buildings

% B¥8 BX

For sale

&
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Region

B

City/District
Wi,/ W8

Liuzhou

M

Project

EHH

Poly Merization World
RFALE

Geographical Location
WEVE

Neighbouring the old town of Liubei
on the west and the business district
on the south, the project enjoys
established facilities and amenities of
both the old town and the new
business area. Standing on the Liu
River bank with a shoreline of more
than 200 metres, the project boasts a
prime location and natural scenery
EEEHE - AERhEE
FREWRAFRENOEER
BTERERB200K
BRNEEY REEE

Major Products

TEER

Residential and commercial
buildings

T B

Current Status
BRI R

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHARM)

Kunming
EH

Poly Lakeside Mansion

RMEHER

Located in Ninghu Xincheng of Datun
District in Anning City, the project
shares the same neighbourhood of
“Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life

"

as it is one block away

fir B AT E AR -
EREHLE-BZRE
EERRMNENEZRE

Serviced apartments, office
buildings and commercial
buildings

BEALE  BTE BF

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE (@A)

Poly Sky and Earth
RARAXA

Situated in the prime area of Renmin
Road in the downtown area, the
project is next to the City Stadium
Station serviced by the Metro Line 3,
which is currently under construction.
The neighbouring area offers
comprehensive ancillary facilities
IR BBRTEHEARBZUIBER -
BERARE - BOEEN
EIRRTEE R BRLE
RERm—IEES

Residential, retail shops and
office buildings
- BH - BFE

For sale

&

Chongging
BE

Poly Spring Villa
RN 5IZE

Residing in the scenic zone of
Southern Hot Spring Park, which is
highly regarded as one of Chongging’s
top-ten scenic spots, the project boasts
its own onsite hot spring

IR ERET T ERERR BB —
MERRERE HESEN
BRER

A high-end spring villa
community
BRELRRAIENR

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

T BEHE




Others

it

Other Regions

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &

The Group has a total of 20 projects in other regions,

namely Wuhan, Harbin, Jinan, Hainan and Hong Kong
as at 31st December, 2014. The land bank amounted to
a gross floor area of approximately 5,243,000 square

metres that contributed to roughly 22.6% of the Group’s

property development portfolio. Projects under

development accounted for a total gross floor area of

approximately 2,298,000 square metres and an

approximate gross floor area of 2,945,000 square metres

was reserved for future development. 5 of the projects

are completed, 13 are currently under construction and

2 have yet to commence construction.

City/District

Project

W/ e HH

Poly Plaza
RAES

Geographical Location

HENE

Located in the administrative and
cultural centre, Wuchang District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province, it is a
comprehensive commercial plaza
integrating commerce, fashion and
culture

RSB B TTEUE L -
REREE  AEEK K-
XeA—BNEatEEES

22.6%  H

RMNBEZXEEERAR | =%

Hihith &

—PUEFHR

BEENWED T

—E-ME+-_A=1—H"  *&E

ERE - BEBE - EE

Major Products

TEEM

High-end office buildings,
and commercial buildings

BRRTE BE

HEsEEEERT
BRI 2@BEEMARAL -

CBEREBE

@hﬁmﬂﬁa TREREERBELY
2298 B K - HFRBEE ,\,\72945
BYHXK-A +/\,\’75243%¥E# 4
BAREEEBTRERFREEARERMERN

13{E7E B

Current Status
BRI

For lease and for sale
(delivered)

M EE - BRA

Poly Blue Ocean District
Wuhan RAE G

BE

Located in the northern tip of South
Lake, which is also the prime area of
Wuchang District, the project boasts
unparalleled panoramic lakeside
views. The project enjoys an excellent
transportation network being close to
the Wuhan Metro Line 2
URRETRETUE - —&ERH
BRRMILE - AR E SRR
SRR B @

Residential
FE

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

R REHE

Yangyuan Project
HERER

Located in Wuchang, the main area of
the Central District of Wuhan City and
near to the Yangtze River

AAEEMERER S - BERT

Residential and commercial
buildings
TE- - mE

Land bank
TG

Poly Park
RMDER

Located at Hongtu Avenue in
Dongxihu District, Wuhan, which
stands on the Metro Line 2, the project
is surrounded by numerous ancillary
facilities
IRRETREHREEAE

WEH KRR EERERE

Residential and retail shops

FE - A

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

- REHE
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Region

B

City/District
Wi,/ W8

Project

EHH

EEETWED M

Geographical Location
WEVE

The project is located in Hongshan
District, Wuhan, and is complemented

Major Products
TEEM
Residential
F=E

Current Status
RERR
For sale

EE

Harbin
IREE

Poly City by a full range of educational and
RFH community facilities
IR ETLILE - BBLEE #5
EERKH
Located in the newly emerging Residential, commercial and | Under construction and
Baishazhou area of Wuhan City, the office buildings, mainly in prepared for sale
project is adjacent to the old town of units of approximately 90 ERGE
Wuchang and the new town of Nanhu, | square metres for genuine
and two channels for crossing the river | end users
— Yingwuzhou Yangtze River Bridge T B% BFYES
(BB — RIAMH) and Yangsigang | EREEA90 TR EH
Yangtze River Bridge (FNERIAR) | RIFPEAE
Poly Up Town will be built in the neighbourhood in
1R the future. Located within the Second
Rim, the project neighbours the
planned Metro Line 5
ik BEDHRE LAY MR
ERREZHE - WH
EAREINE - AR ERRE
BTRE — BENRTARA
BOARTAR LR Z]RA
BB SRS
Located in Songbei District; the project | Residential, villas, and For sale (partially
is close to the Wanda life circle commercial buildings delivered)
, currently under construction and is FE RIE - BF EE (@A)
Poly Harbin

Contemporary No. 9
Park Life

equipped with high-end hotels, a
conference centre, a theme park and a
commercial centre

N 2

AHRERE R - BRI
RERMBER §FRL
TERNE BEPLSEERERN
Located in Songbei District, the project | A large-scale residential For sale (partially
neighbours major provincial development focusing on low | delivered)
government offices in Harbin and is density, and high-end EEFHHRM)

, only 500 metres away from Songbei Residential

Poly The Water ° Aveynue, with surrounyding munifipal IABIE R E AR i

Fragran Dike fcilfes gradually mprovin ERBEELE

RAPKERE aciiies gradually improving SR

ﬁﬁ%ibﬁ - AR E AT BT

DR - BIERBES0K
Héxﬁmﬁmﬁ SHEIE
BEBREHTE

The Tsinghua Summer
Palace of Poly
RANEZER

Situated in the Nangang District, the
central district of Harbin, which is the
cultural and education base for higher
education, the project enjoys benefits
from established community amenities
Rt EET T DHERER

RERNER  EARERMEY

Residential, and retail shops

- B

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE @R




Region

B

City/District

HE

Project

RMNBEZXEEERAR | =%
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Geographical Location

Major Products

—PUEFHR

EEETWED M

Current Status

EH R E TEEM BRARR
New residential community located Residential and commercial For sale
alongside Songhua River in Harbin buildings EE
Poly Up Town West, developed as a key project T B
RA I designated by the government
URRRETADLRE I %
BREAEHTENEENR
Located at the junction of Qunli No.2 | Residential Under construction and
) Avenue, Langjiang Road and TE prepared for sale
Poly City ; e
e Yangmingtan Avenue EEFE

TR EEN S Z KBTS -
AR EAERER

Jinan

EE

Poly Daming Lake

Located in Lixia District, in the
downtown of Jinan and to the side of
Daming Lake; the project is located in
the Hongjialou business circle and
Quancheng Road business circle with

Residential, office and
commercial buildings
FE B7E BF

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

2N REHE

RAREH well-established community facilities
IAETE - EEm RO -
RE AR - m%@?ﬁ%ﬂ
FREEE BERALERKES
Located in the Honglou business area | A high and mid-rise For sale (partially
of Licheng District, a commercial residential community delivered)
Poly Hyde Mansion centre of the new district in the east of | BN/ &EAEH EEFHHRM)
RMEZLE Jinan FEHR
RERE - AERREHE
BETL - REHEE
Situated in the intersection of Jingyi An integrated development For sale (partially
Road and Weishi'er Road and to the comprising of residential delivered)
west of the southern City, the project is | buildings, apartments, offices | % (F7 1)
Poly Center adjacent to the Jinan West Market that | and commercial buildings
RAF L is renowned as a hundred-year-old SFE LB BFE -
commercial port BER-BOSAHERR
URE—REET _BRA
IR EH AR B FRERTS
Neighbouring the Honglou business Residential For sale
area, the project is located in the Lixia | % EE
Poly Elegant Garden District and is linked by convenient
REERE transportation

URNETE - ABULEEE
TR
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Region

B

City/District
Wi,/ W8

Project

EHH

Poly Champs Elysees
Mansion

RANEH RN

EEETWED M

Geographical Location
WEVE

Located next to the Fenghuang Shan
River Reservoir Wetland Park in
Yantai, Shandong Province, the project
enjoys a convenient transportation
network

It REEAT - RREELKE -
ZRAEH

Major Products
TEEM
Residential
F=

Current Status
BRI R

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHARA)

Located in the geographical centre of Mid-rise apartments, and For sale
Yantai, the core area of the Southern mid-rise residential, equipped | %
Yantai New City, the project is about 500 with a primary school
s metres away from Guanzhuang Station | ¥f5 « /&€ * i/ 2
(B3 in the Yantai section of the
planned Qingrong Intercity Railway
z.;%z%%%m Garden (BEMPBEER), creating a circle by
= which Qingdao, Yantai and Weihai
can all be reached within one hour
RIREGIIER L — BRI
TR BEBARE Wf?ﬁtﬁé
EaRBIHIAS0K  ES - EA -
FSRER—/\SLEE
Situated in the Huancui District of Residential, villas, and retail For sale (partially
Weihai, Shandong Province, the shops delivered)
project is close to the Xianguding Fx hIE - BH EE(#BHRA)
Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion Scenic Spot and is east to the ocean
B8 RAFERLE offering unparalleled sea views
RIRERETRRRE -
BBLEERRERE  REEES -
FEERGEE
A large-scale mixed-use For sale
development project featuring | 7£&
Located in the resort district of high-rise apartments and
Shenzhou Peninsula in Wanning City, | villas, an international
Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 Hainan Province, the project enjoys yachting community and a
B RAEE15 beautiful coastal resources resort-style marina club
I BREBETI; BIkE LM;EE%%IE’JKW”\
ERE ZTEEHSEXNEFER | ¥RAR RERER
BIE - EREELE -
BEEAERELNE
Located in the Kai Tak Development Residential Land bank
Area of Kowloon East, the project will | £ TinfEE
be developed as a part of the core
business district of Kowloon East. It is
near the Kai Tak Station along the
Shatin-Central MTR line and will take
Hong Kong Kai Tak Project only 10 minutes by MTR to reach the
Tk MBIER core areas of Hong Kong Island in the

future
URBEBNERNENEREA
BERBLERZOEERR
—#t - BEERMED R

RuEt - R0 EHERAE
BERLE
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Financial Review

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31st December, 2014, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$29,762,327,000 (2013: HK$29,617,047,000), while the
net asset value per share was HK$8.14 (2013: HK$8.13). As at
31st December, 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio (on the basis
of the amount of total liabilities divided by the amount of total
assets) was 73.6% (2013: 70.6%).

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group had an outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including the notes payable) of
HK$52,583,595,000. In terms of maturity, the outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including notes payable) can be
divided into HK$20,250,526,000 (39%) to be repaid within
one year, HK$13,217,714,000 (25%) to be repaid after one
year but within two years, HK$18,621,685,000 (35%) to be
repaid after two years but within five years, HK$493,670,000
(1%) to be repaid after five years. In terms of currency
denomination, the outstanding bank and other borrowings
(including the notes payable) can be divided into
HK$43,940,150,000 (84%) in Renminbi, HK$7,792,528,000
(15%) in United State dollars, and HK$850,917,000 (1%) in
Hong Kong dollars.

45% of the bank and other borrowings (including the notes
payable) of the Group are subject to fixed interest rates and
the remaining 55% are subject to floating interest rates.
Therefore, under circumstances of interest rates uncertainty or
fluctuations or otherwise as appropriate, the Group will
consider the use of hedging instruments (including interest
rates swaps), in order to manage interest rate risks.

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group had a net current
assets of HK$53,876,791,000 and total bank balances of
HK$17,756,204,000 (2013: HK$46,557,168,000 and
HK$15,494,034,000 respectively). With the available banking
facilities and cash revenue from business operations, it is
believed that the Group has sufficient resources to meet the
foreseeable working capital demands and capital expenditure.

Bt ¥ O A

RBEESREREE

R-ZE—NE+-F=+—H ARAZKE
JE(E S 48585 29,762,327,000 8 0( T —=
% :29,617,047,000/87C)  MEBREEFES

BIABT(ZE—=F:8138BT) RN_F
—NFE+—A=1+—H8 AEBEZEEAEL
E(GFTEEARBERBRANEELEBE) R
73.6%(ZF—=%F : 70.6%) °
T—NF+A=+—8  xEBEHKE
z%z%Eﬁ&ﬁm%E(a%JEH 2B ) B
52,583,595,0008 7T ° IR E|EAH 53 - REE

fEﬁ&Eﬁﬂfﬁ“‘(a%fﬁmﬁ%)T %E—E
W E & 2 20,250,526,00078 7T (39%) * £ —F
BEMFEREEZ13,217,714,000 87T (25%) °
EMFERERFARNERE 2 18,621,685,000%8 7T
(35%) );z £ R F & {8 & 2493,670,000% 7T

(1%) - EIREESF  REERTREMEE
<’7%FH TF)T REAREHEZ
43,940,150,0007 JT(84%) * H E Lt B 2
7,792,528,00078 7T(15%) M & & T+t B 2
850,917,000 78 JT (1%) °

REE45% RITREMEE (BEERMARE) A
Bl B EFHE - MER T 55%8ILA¥ 8 B K5t
B Bt ERETESRB K EMEES
AT REEGEREAESTA(BEMNXE
) BRI R @R o

R-ZT—MNE+-_A=+—H XEBZRH
& EFE553,876,791,000/8 7T @ SRITHALKT
#17,756,204,0008 T (ZE—=F: 955
46,557,168,000 8 7T & 15,494,034,000,87T) °
BETHABHARTEEREER NS - BER
SEAFERIERENAERZEEESREX
NEARY -
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The monetary assets and liabilities and business transactions
of the Group are mainly carried and conducted in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars. The Group
maintains a prudent strategy in its foreign exchange risk
management, where foreign exchange risks are minimised via
balancing the monetary assets versus monetary liabilities, and
foreign exchange revenue versus foreign exchange
expenditures. The management believes that the foreign
exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars is relatively stable. On the other hand, the Board
believes that Renminbi will only fluctuate by a small percent
in the foreseeable future. In this regard, the management
believes that the exposure of the Group to foreign exchange
risks is minimal.

Pledge of Assets
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of the
Group’s assets which were pledged to secure credit facilities

granted to the Group are as follows:

AEEZEBEERABEREBRHTIBNE
T ARBRETREMINENRET - AEE
EINERREE S mAREERE T BB
BB EERGE BB A KLIMNE R A EI1NE F
0 BHNERBBRERE - BEERE BT
AERTZEXREHERBE - »—HTH EFEMH
EARBERERRGRESLREMNET -
At - EREREASEEE 2 SNERR I A
BKRe

BEEEHA
RBEHR  AEERBFERANEEERD
FEEREMNERNEERTENT :

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FATT

Investment properties KEME 3,949,832 3,589,474
Hotel properties BIEYE 702,911 702,911
Buildings ¥ 113,432 184,430
Prepaid lease payments TEf S RIE 284,095 291,860
Properties under development BRPME 24,036,940 21,367,073
Bank deposits RITIFRK 1,519,231 667,953
Properties held for sale BiELHEYE 2,195,906 5,162,955
32,802,347 31,966,656
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In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st December, 2014
and 2013, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries was
pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the Group. The
details of net assets value of subsidiaries are as follows:

B Pl EEREN RN FEN T —=

Ft+A=+t—H XEERETHBEIFN
RETCEREAASBERNEERENE
- MBRAREEFENFBTNOT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

Total assets 188 E 6,802,099 17,900,503
Total liabilities BfEEE (5,966,803)  (16,061,610)
835,296 1,838,893

Contingent Liabilities

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided guarantees
to banks to secure obligations of such purchasers of
repayment. The maximum guarantees given to banks
amounted to HK$19,283,061,000 as at 31st December, 2014
(2013: HK$19,065,110,000). Such guarantees terminate upon
the earlier of (i) issue of the real estate ownership certificate;
and (ii) the satisfaction of the mortgage loans by the buyers of
the properties. The Group has not recognised any deferred
income in respect of these guarantees as its fair value is
considered to be minimal by the Directors. The Directors also
consider that the fair value of the underlying properties is able
to cover the outstanding mortgage loans generated by the

Group in the event the purchasers default payments to the
banks.

At 31st December, 2014, the Group had given guarantees to
certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to certain
associates and joint ventures of the Group amounting to
HK$1,177,215,000 (2013: HK$Nil) and HK$2,849,342,000
(2013: HK$875,949,000) respectively, of which
HK$1,177,215,000 (2013: HK$Nil) and HK$2,849,342,000
(2013: HK$875,949,000) had been utilised by the associates
and joint ventures respectively.

At 31st December, 2014, the Company had given guarantees
to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company amounting to HK$9,570,633,000
(2013: HK$5,292,152,000), of which HK$3,120,253,000
(2013: HK$4,860,759,000) had been utilised by subsidiaries.

RREE

REBECHMEEMNEREES TRITLHIZS
EXmE  URRTIRHEERUBRZEER
BTEREET R_E—NF+_-_A=+—
B % TIRITHHRSEREEE19,283,061,000
BT (ZZT—=%:19,065,110,000/87T) ° §
BEARN T EEELR (UREHEEEAE)
BIE - (WVBEHEHEMBEE  RNVPWEERX
EBRIZBER AEBWERZSERERT
AEREWRA - YR EERBHEQAFEL T
EX-BENRE FEERTEMIRITE
FoNBYEZAFEDRNEHAEREL
ZMABERBER -

R-ZTE—NE+-_A=+—H ANEBRAE
BETHEARRGELEMEREERE D
A AE1,177,215,0008 T (— 2 —=F : &
JC ) $2,849,342,0007 T — &T — = F:
875,949,000 7T ) A& THRITHR AL &R - Mk
ERRkEeaEtEESRBAEAR
1,177,215,000 8 L ( ZE—=ZF : T L) &
2,849,342,000%8 7T (ZEF— =4 : 875,949,000
BIT) °

RZE—NE+_A=+—08  A2THELD
AETHEBARMEREERE A X
9,570,633,000/%% wxT( = T — = F:
5,292,152,000/% 70) A& TIRITIREER - M
MR RIEEAER3,120,253,0008 T (==
— =4 : 4,860,759,000&7T) °
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Staff

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group employed about 9,805
staffs with remuneration for the year amounted to
HK$927,530,000. The Group provides its staffs with various
benefits including year-ended double-pay, discretionary
bonus, contributory provident fund, share options and medical
insurance. Staff training is also provided as and when
required.
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Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“Poly Property”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) aspires to be a leading
property developer in China with an illustrious brand name
enriched by intrinsic cultural qualities. Blessed with a
distinguished corporate culture that calls for dedication and
integrity, the Group adopts a development strategy that
emphasises professionalism, culture, marketisation and
internationalisation, seeking to build a pleasant living
environment for homebuyers and deliver sound returns to its
shareholders by enhancing the architectural quality and
commercial value of its property projects, while also fulfilling
its social responsibilities to add value for the community and
build a positive corporate image.

Community Welfare

The Group has a longstanding tradition of engagement in
community welfare, striving to light up lives with compassion
and unite positive forces in the society with action in
fulfilment of its corporate social responsibility. With the
establishment of Poly Property Blue Charity, philanthropic
events in various local regions are centrally organised through
Poly Property Blue Charity, forming a series of large-scale
cultural and charitable campaigns under the Poly Property
brand, raising public awareness for social and environmental
problems and uniting efforts to seek improvements.
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Poly Property has established its foothold in more than 20
Chinese cities and built Blue Charity bases across the nation.
Through cooperation among different cities, such as Beijing,
Hong Kong, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Chongging,
Jinan, Wuhan, Harbin, Nanning, Guiyang, Kunming, Suzhou,
Ningbo, Yantai, Weihai, Huizhou, Foshan and Zunyi, the
philosophy of Poly Property Blue Charity has been propagated
throughout the country. Through six Blue Charity operations,
efforts are being made towards children’s programme,
environmental protection, elderly care, aid for underprivileged
groups and disaster relief to pass on positive social forces.

Poly Property Blue Charity is dedicated to the development of
six charity operations, namely, Future Project, Earth Project,
Ribbon Project, Exceed Project, Care Project and Tent Project.
The Blue Charity operations of Poly Property constitute a
platform on which the subsidiaries and employees of Poly
Property, owners and club members of Poly Property
developments as well as members of the public engage
themselves in various community welfare initiatives to show
charity in action and form a united force with many humble
deeds of kindness so that more people will experience care
and our battered Earth will once again be brightened up.
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Future Project: care for children

Our children are the ones upon which the futures of our
families, our nation and our race depend. With an active
concern for the growth of youngsters, Poly Property is
committed to the provision of a healthier and more
comfortable growth environment for youngsters across the
country and the enhancement of their artistic and cultural
education. In Deqing, a charity sales event was organised to
raise funds for children who have suffered from accidental
injuries. In 1997, Poly Property Hubei provided financial
assistance for the construction of Hefeng Poly Hope School. In
September 2013, Poly Property Hubei further procured
donations of over RMB230,000 to Hefeng Poly Hope School
for the purchase of a school bus, which became the first
exclusive school bus for primary school students throughout
Enshi, Hubei Province. Moreover, in Yantai, Poly Property
donated new school uniforms to the students of Zhongda
Demei Primary School. In 2014, Poly Property worked with
China Foundation for the Development of Social Culture
under the Ministry of Culture and China Alliance for the
Development of Education for Students with Special Talents to
host the First “Poly Artists” National Art Exhibition for Youth
that toured through Shanghai, Suzhou, Ningbo, Yuyao,
Deqing, Foshan, Shenzhen, Guiyang, Zunyi, Wuhan and
Harbin. The exhibition aimed to provide youngsters with
artistic passion with a stage for exchange, learning, exhibition
and realising their talents and unleash their creative potential.
Meanwhile, Poly Property Shandong organised a series of
charity events to encourage care for children, such as the
donation of children’s books to Cuizhu Primary School in
Weihai, the book replacement campaign in Jinan and the
stationery donation and school bag replacement campaign in
Yantai. Such acts of charity for the children have been
received with positive response, as they have not only helped
to foster a better environment for study, but have also
provided a unique opportunity for owners of our property
developments and other citizens to contribute to the
community.
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Earth Project: environmental protection
Environmental protection has long been a priority on the
agenda of social issues, as the rapid development of the
human society has taken its toll with aggravating conditions in
problems such as the discharge of polluted air, waste water
and solid waste, white pollution, deforestation and water
pollution. In proactive fulfilment of its duty as a central state-
owned enterprise, Poly Property has readily taken on the
mission of promoting environmental protection campaigns in
the community. Earth Project advocates environmental
protection and organises related activities in various local
regions through more than 20 subsidiaries of Poly Property
operating across the nation, doing anything in its power to
contribute to the betterment of Mother Earth. In March 2014,
Poly Property Shandong and Wuhan Poly Hotel organized
employees and owners of Poly Property developments to join
tree planting campaigns in Yantai and Wuhan, respectively, to
celebrate the return of the spring season, in order to rally more
people to support the Earth Project and take solid actions to
work for a greener Earth.

In October, Poly Property Guizhou organised an exhibition
under the theme of “Care for Pandas and Love for the
Environment” and “left-behind” children in Panshui Town,
Zunyi were invited to the event to enhance awareness for the
protection of nature and the environment.

Ribbon Project: care for the elderly

Honouring the aged is a traditional virtue of the Chinese
people that underlines the fundamental spirit of Ribbon
Project. Through Ribbon Project, Poly Property is actively
engaged in charitable campaigns for the elderly, calling for all
parties in the society to put their charity in practice by
showing respect for its senior members and rallying for elderly
services. For three years since 2012, the employees of Poly
Property Ningbo have been paying visits to Yang Yi Yuan, an
elderly home in Ningbo, sending LCD TVs and Chinese New
Year goods to brighten up the days for senior citizens living
there. In Shanghai, Guangzhou and Foshan, Poly Property
works with specialist doctors at famous hospitals to provide
free medical consultations for residents of communities and
villages, so that more senior citizens will get proper attention
to their health, and health awareness of the society will be
generally enhanced.
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Exceed Project: enhancing patriotism

The Exceed Project utilised rich resources available from
China Poly Group Corporation (“China Poly”) to organise
activities in national education for the enhancement of
national pride and patriotism. In 2014, Poly Property hosted
an exhibition of weapons in national defence in Shanghai and
Foshan to provide local citizens with an opportunity to
encounter and learn about these military items at a close
distance. During the summer holidays, “Poly Scout” summer
camp activities were organised in Guangdong, Guangxi,
Yunnan and Shandong, as young participants came to
appreciate what it was like to be a soldier by visiting military
bases and receiving military training in dynamic patriotic
education presented through a diverse range of activities.

Care Project: aid for the impoverished

With its active engagement in relief for backward regions and
aid for the impoverished, Care Project lets in a ray of hope to
impoverished regions and eases the worries of the
underprivileged, enabling more people to live in warmth and
security.

In 2014, Poly Property Guangxi, Poly Property Guizhou and
Guangxi Properties, together with their staff and properties
owners, paid a visit and offered financial assistance to
impoverished children in Nabie Primary School in Tuanyang
Village, Nama County, Nanning, Baiguliu Primary School in
Longli County, Guiyang, Baolong Primary School in Fengxiang
Town, Guiyang and Santan Village in Heng County, Nanning,
respectively. At the beginning of the new school term in
September, Poly Property Deqing offered educational
bursaries to 4 outstanding but underprivileged university
students from Leidian County, Deqing so that they could
complete their studies under improved conditions. In Beijing,
the staff of Poly Plaza visited the Tian Rui Rehabilitation
Centre for Mentally Disabled People and brought daily
supplies to the kids there in an activity that has enhanced the
respect understanding between the disabled and their more
fortunate counterparts.
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To counter the summer heat, Poly Property Suzhou distributed
cool-off gift packs to several hundred taxi drivers in the city,
while owners of developments of Poly Property Jinan joined
the company in sending bottled water to sanitation workers, in
a bid to show their care for hardworking labours, as well as to
enhance public concern for grass-root workers.

Furthermore, Poly Property organised a charity auction in
Guangzhou and a “Warm Winter Campaign” child charity
auction in Nanning. Funds raised in the auctions went towards
financial assistance for impoverished groups so that such
charitable activities, with greater participation from the public,
would benefit more people who were in need.

Tent Project: disaster relief

Tent Project serves as an active driving force behind the
participation of local Poly Property companies in disaster
relief campaigns, ensuring that relief supply kits was delivered
to the wanting victims in a more efficient and timely manner.
In October 2013, the construction of Poly Bodhi Road in the
Mosuo Village, Ninglang, Yunnan was completed to provide a
“lifeline” connecting villagers who had survived the Ninglang
earthquake with the outside world. Following the Ninglang
earthquake that occurred in June 2012, Poly Property Yunnan
acted swiftly to make financial donations and contribute
manpower and other resources to build the Poly Bodhi Road,
in order to restore road connection as soon as possible for
post-quake redevelopment. Financial donations were also
made to help the villagers resume their production activities.
In July 2013 in the wake of Yaan earthquake in Sichuan, Poly
Property organised donation campaigns in Shanghai for the
purchase of biscuits, instant noodles, milk powder and other
daily necessities urgently needed by victims in the stricken
areas. In October 2013, Yuyao was overwhelmed by a heavy
flood under Typhoon “Fitow.” The compassionate staff of Poly
Property Yuyao waded through the flooded areas to send
foodstuff, vegetables and emergency medical supplies
purchased in a neighbouring city to the victims on the same
day of the flood. When the flood ended, further sanitisation
items were sent to severely affected areas.
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Human Resources ABDEIR
Overview of the Group’s Employees AEEETHR

Staff headcount
BTHB(BR: A)

9,805
10,000 8,759
7,965
8,000 —
6,450
6,000 — 5,140
4,000 —
2,000 —
O 1 1 1 1
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—z= - —T—fF —T-=F —T-mF
Analysed by gender BAIBZETAH
Female
58
59%
Fky  Male
£
Analysed by age and location RERNGEE S
Location Age
= Fie z
Hong Kong >50 7 2
75 41-50 5 9
31-40 5 8
<31 2 5
Shanghai >50 88 42
tg 41-50 103 45
31-40 169 101
<31 121 140
Other locations >50 321 101
H At bl 41-50 1,016 776
31-40 1,406 779

<31 2,581 1,973
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The Group believes that it is imperative to maintain sound
information exchange with employees. Interaction with staff, as
well as dissemination of the Group's latest news to staff and the
public, are facilitated through a variety of means, such as Weibo
and WeChat, with a view to facilitating the communication of
key business information, brand development and staff affairs on
a consolidated platform and maintaining close liaison between
colleagues in the Mainland and those in Hong Kong via online
social media. To provide convenience for employees and
enhance work efficiency, the Group is vigorously developing an
online office with comprehensive functions to enable staff to
check information of the Group and handle relevant business
whether they are at the office, on business trips or working at
home.

The Group provides its employees with a platform for ongoing
development and helps them to realise their potential to the
fullest extent in order to build a successful career. Since 2013,
Poly Property has been organising week-long leadership
officer training and young backup officer training sessions
on an annual basis, in a bid to enhance the Group’s
competitiveness and productivity on an ongoing basis.
Moreover, the Group has started the recruitment of
management trainees since 2013 to bring in fresh manpower
with good potential. These trainees are given systematic
training and assigned to different departments so that more
high-calibre employees will be groomed.

To cement solidarity and enhance communication and
harmonious relations among employees, events such as
sporting tournaments, dinner parties and Christmas gatherings
are being held.
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To celebrate the 30th anniversary of China Poly, and with a
view to fulfilling its social responsibility as a central state-
owned enterprise and enhancing its social image, China Poly
has designated 15 July, the official date of its incorporation, as
“Poly Charity Day” and set up the “Poly Charity Foundation”
in 2014. Employees were called upon to make donations
equivalent to one day’s salary to the foundation, in a bid to
raise funds through collective efforts for the aid of less
fortunate colleagues, such as those who are in need, requiring
financial assistance to send their children to university or
suffering from serious illness, and also to foster a culture of
solidarity and mutual aid in a workplace where employees
would experience the supportive ethos of China Poly as a
family. In September 2014, units under Poly Property
commenced “Poly Charity Day” donation campaigns in
actively response to the Proposition for “Poly Charity Day”
Donation Campaigns.

Shareholders and investors

The Group believes that it is extremely important to maintain
sound communication and close liaison with shareholders
and investors as a means to enhance transparency in corporate
governance.

Currently, Poly Property conducts roadshows in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Europe from time to time so that more investors
can gain insight into the Group’s business, while our board of
directors can also understand more effectively investors’ views
and suggestions in respect of the Group’s development
strategies. Meanwhile, we also organise investors’ visits to our
project sites so that they can gain a more in-depth
understanding of the actual progress of the Group’s business
development.

To make it more convenient for investors and shareholders to
browse the Company’s information on the Internet, the Group
revamped its website in 2014 to optimise the interface for
presentation. Apart from a more user-friendly web-page format
and more attractive designs, the investors’ relations column
has also been substantiated with the addition of useful
information such as financial summaries, market assessments
and a calendar of IR events, so that shareholders and investors
get updates on the Company’s developments in a timely
manner.
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Moreover, shareholders can engage in direct dialogues with
the management at the annual general meeting, while press
conferences and analysts’ meetings are held following the
annual and interim announcements of business results. The
press conferences would be subsequently broadcast online at
the Company’s website for public viewing.

Supplier management

To strengthen tender management, regulate tender operations
and enhance the effect of cost management at Poly Property,
the Group has formulated the Tender Management Measures,
while the regional companies have drawn up detailed
procedures each according to its specific conditions and
established transparent tender systems to ensure that tender
operations are conducted in a fair, open and impartial
manner.

The Group has formulated the Administrative Measures for the
Assessment of Partners to regulate the management of its
partners, strengthen comprehensive management and
assessment through the process, drive their continuous
improvement, enhance their overall ability in contract
performance, lower related control risks and improve product
quality. Partners are assessed and graded on the basis of
assessment scores. Rewards or penalties are given and areas
for improvements are noted on the basis of grading results and
terms stipulated in contracts. Partners who have failed in the
assessment are prohibited from participation in new tenders,
while research and exchange with partners with outstanding
assessment results are enhanced in accordance with the
mechanism for visits.
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In selecting suppliers with outstanding quality who can meet
the requirements of our project development, the Group
considers whether suppliers demonstrate strengths and growth
potentials that are consistent with the development strategies
of Poly Property; whether the business philosophy of suppliers
is in line with Poly Property’s distinctive brand name and
product quality; whether products manufactured by the
suppliers are in compliance with national regulations and
corporate standards and in line with the specific requirements
for green building projects; and whether the general tender
requirements are met at reasonably pricing.

While emphasising the improvement of our corporate brand
and product quality, the Group also experiments the
application of new materials, technologies and processes on a
regular basis and implements industrialisation and low-carbon
standards in the course of project development. In keeping
with our commitment to green property development, we are
very careful with the selection of eco-friendly building
materials as well as equipment manufacturers.

In 2014, our Group organised an annual conference for
training and exchanged points of views on the management of
the centralised procurement system and invited our strategic
partners to give briefings on specific technical issues, with a
view to sharing and learning skills in centralised procurement
management, improving our capabilities in the management
and control of centralised procurement and enhancing the
execution of projects under strategic cooperation agreements.
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Customer service

The Group has always aimed to ensure customer satisfaction
by achieving excellence in management. Poly Property is
determined to become an unrelenting forerunner in China’s
property industry and an outstanding green enterprise by
consistently delivering high-quality residential property
products and advocating the development and application of
eco-friendly technologies.

Poly Joyful Club is a non-profit-making membership
organisation established by the Group for the purpose of
enhancing its service quality, providing customers with access
to a broader range of professional property purchase and daily
services and maximising mutual benefits. Poly Joyful Club is
an important platform for the communication, understanding
and exchange between Poly Property and customers which
offers additional personalised services to members through a
diverse range of exciting activities for members, all-rounded
property purchase services, the Club Newsletter that provides
timely information updates and other thoughtful, interactive
events. It seeks to reward all owners who have bought their
homes from Poly Property with better services and foster long-
term relationships with them, and it also seeks to offer more
new experiences to customers by broadening its information
sharing platform.

Meanwhile, the Company communicates with customers
through online media such as its official website, the website
of Poly Joyful Club, official Weibo and WeChat accounts of
Poly Property and Poly Joyful Club, so that customers will be
able to acquire relevant information and furnish their feedback
in a timely manner. Moreover, the Group communicates key
business information, brand development updates and news
of members’ activities to the staff, property owners, Joyful
Club members and partners through POLY PROPERTY (R 7]
1#&431)), a quarterly publication in both electronic and printed
versions to cater to people with different reading habits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the
corporate governance matters of Poly Property Group Co.,
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) during the period covering the financial period
ended 31st December, 2014 and up to the date of this CG
Report (“CG Period”). The Company devotes to the best
practice on corporate governance, and to comply to the extent
practicable, with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) .

Compliance With The Corporate
Governance Code

Throughout the CG Period, the Company has complied with
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, other than
code provisions A.2.1, A.5.1 to A.5.4 and A.5.6. The reasons
for deviations are explained below:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code — Role of

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, the roles
of the chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) and the chief
executive of the Company (“Managing Director”) had been
performed by Mr. Xue Ming since 29th April, 2010.

In order to comply with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
on 21st October, 2014, Mr. Han Qingtao was appointed as an
executive director of the Company (“ED”) and the Managing
Director and Mr. Xue Ming ceased to act as the Managing
Director but remains as the Chairman and an ED.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Managing Director has been set out on the Company’s
website.
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Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code

— Nomination Committee

Under code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code, listed
issuers should, among others, establish a nomination
committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Company has considered the merits of establishing a
nomination committee but is of the view that it is in the best
interests of the Company that the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) collectively reviews, deliberates on
and approves the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the appointment of any new director. The Board is tasked
with ensuring that it has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Group and that appropriate individuals with the relevant
expertise and leadership qualities are appointed to the Board
to complement the capabilities of the existing directors.

Code Provisions A.5.6 of the CG Code — Board
Diversity Policy

Under code provision A.5.6 of the CG code, the nomination
committee (or the board) of a listed issuer should have a
policy concerning the diversity of board members, and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate
governance report. To comply with the code provision A.5.6,
the Board adopted a board diversity policy on 10th March,
2015. This policy has been published on the Company’s
website and the summary of the policy is set out in this CG
Report.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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Compliance With The Model Code Set Out
In Appendix 10 To The Listing Rules

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all the directors of the Company
(“Directors”), all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions adopted by the
Company throughout the CG Period.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises four EDs, one non-executive director
(“NED”) and three independent non-executive directors
(“INED”). The three INEDs, representing more than one-third
of the Board, have constituted a proper balance of power
maintaining full and effective control of both the Group and
its management. The Company has received from each of the
INEDs a written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules and has
considered that all INEDs are independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on pages
86 to 88.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively takes responsibility for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated to
the Managing Director and the management. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transaction
entered into by the officers.
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Chairman and chief executive
The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director had
been performed by Mr. Xue Ming since 29th April, 2010. On
21st October, 2014, Mr. Han Qingtao was appointed as the
Managing Director and Mr. Xue Ming ceased to be Managing
Director but remains as the Chairman.

In order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, the role of the Chairman is
separated from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice and ensuring the effectiveness of the
Board. With the support of the management, the Chairman is
also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on managing the Company
and its subsidiaries, developing and implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
In addition, the Managing Director is in charge of the Group’s
day-to-day management and operations and is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

Appointment, re-election and removal of

directors

The appointment of the directorship is subject to, as to EDs,
retirement, rotation and re-election at least once every 3
financial years and, as to NED and INEDs, their specific term
of office or their retirement by rotation at annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”), at which they being
eligible can offer themselves for re-election.

Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of each
director. One-third of the Directors, or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third, must
retire from office at each AGM and their re-election is subject
to a vote of the shareholders. Any Director appointed during
the year to fill a casual vacancy is subject to re-election at the
next AGM.
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During the year of 2014,

() Mr. Chen Hong Sheng retired from the Board on 27th
June;

(ii)  Mr. Zhang Wan Shun resigned as an ED with effect from
21st October;

(iiiy Mr. Mr. Han Qingtao was appointed as an ED and the
Managing Director on 21st October; and

(iv)  Mr. Xue Ming ceased to act as the Managing Director
with effect from 21st October, but remains as the
Chairman and an ED.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Han Qingtao, who was appointed as an ED
during the year shall retire and being eligible, offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM. Thereafter, he will be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ye Li Wen, Mr. Choy Shu Kwan and Mr.
Wong Ka Lun shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to discuss future
strategy. Four regular Board meetings were held in 2014. At
the Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Group’s annual and interim financial statements,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and
interim report and the appointment of Directors. At least 14
days’ notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and Board
papers for each meeting are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
in advance of every regular Board meeting. All minutes of the
Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and are available to all
Directors for inspection.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings
and AGM in 2014 is set out below:

Director
2=
Xue Ming

Han Qingtao

758
Wang Xu
T8

Chen Hong Sheng
I-g%//\

Zhang Wan Shun
REIE

Ye Li Wen
ERE

Ip Chun Chung, Robert
EIRB

Choy Shu Kwan
ek

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun
EEN

TIREEEN T —

MELFEFEEHEN

BRBERERHFRCE
Board capacity Attendance AGM
REZSZ254% HEZR RRBFEXS
ED, Chairman (ceased to be 4/4 v
Managing Director effective from
21st October, 2014)
WITES TR R-Z—MmF
THZ+— EiTﬁﬁ%‘E%%%@%@%)
ED, Managing Director (appointed on 11 N/A
21st October, 2014)
HITESR BEFHAKLEN_T—NOF TEm
THAZ+—HEZE)
ED 4/4 -
HITE=S
ED (resigned on 27th June, 2014) 2/2 -
HITEE(M-_T—WFA - +LHBHE)
ED (resigned on 21st October, 2014) 3/3 v
HITESE(R-_ZT—NOF+A-+—HEE)
ED 4/4 v/
WITE=S
NED 4/4 v
FMITES
INED 4/4 v
BYFAITES
INED 4/4 v
BIUFITES
INED 4/4 v
BYFFRITES
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Training and support of directors

All Directors, including INEDs, should have good
understanding as to their collective responsibilities as directors
and the businesses and activities of the Group. Each newly
appointed Director would receive an induction package
covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates
all Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. During the CG Period, all existing
Directors have received relevant trainings on topics relating to
corporate governance and regulations and have provided their
training records. The Company is of the view that all Directors
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
based on the above.

Directors’ insurance

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of
legal action arising from the business of the Group against the
Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company include:

e formulating remuneration policy;

° recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy for the Directors;

e review of, approval of and recommendation for (if any)
the remuneration package of each Director including
benefits in kind, pension right, performance bonus
payment and compensation payable;

e review and approval of the compensation payment to
any Director upon his/her cessation of directorship in or
employment with the Company; and

e engagement of external professional advisers to assist
and/or advise the Remuneration Committee on its duties
when necessary.
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Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of the Remuneration
Committee and were endorsed and adopted by the Board.

During the CG Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
committee meeting.

Member Board capacity
B & REEE2 5%
Wong Ka Lun (Chairman) INED
EENCIES) BN IEHITES
Choy Shu Kwan INED

£ BN IEHITES
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED

RFES BN IEHITES
Xue Ming ED, Chairman
=8 HITEE IR
Wang Xu ED

By HITER

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee for the financial period under review is as follows:

e endorsement to the remuneration policy for the
Directors;

e assessment of the performance of EDs, review and
approval of the remuneration package of each Director
including benefits in kind, pension right, bonus payment
and compensation payable.

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the
Directors for the financial period under review is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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Nomination of directors

The Board shall be composed of members with mixed skills
and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of the
Board shall possess, be recognised for and be able to exhibit
high and professional standard of a set of core criteria of
competence.

The Company had adopted a nomination policy for the
criteria, procedures, and process regarding the appointment
and removal of Directors.

Under the nomination policy, the board of EDs has been
delegated the full power to the administration of the
nomination policy and the appointment and the termination
of directors, where the full Board remains to have the full and
overriding power and absolute right thereover.

During the CG Period, the EDs held two meetings for the
appointment and resignation of directors of the Company.

On 10th March, 2015, the Board adopted the board
membership diversity policy for maintaining the appropriate
skills and experience required by the Company’s business and
a diversity of perspectives on the Board. In considering the
new appointment of directors, the Board will consider a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry and regional

experience.
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Audit Committee

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained an
Audit Committee. The major role and function of the Audit

Committee include:

e monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the

Group;

providing independent review and supervision of the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group;

review on the adequacy of the external audits;

review on the compliance issues with the Listing Rules
and other compliance requirements;

providing independent views on connected transactions
and transactions involving materially conflicted interests;

considering and reviewing the appointment of the
auditor and the audit fee.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been compiled
since the establishment of the Audit Committee and revised by
the Board on 21st January, 2009.

During the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held four
physical meetings for discussing and/or approving the final/
interim results of the Group and for discussing the internal
control of the Group.
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The composition of the Audit Committee, and the respective
attendance of the committee members are presented as
follows:

Board capacity

EREERZERARERRRES
2T

B2HE

Attendance

REEEZ54%
Leung Sau Fun, Sylvia (Chairlady) INED
RFL5 () BUIFNTES
Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED
EiRE FMITES
Choy Shu Kwan INED
ek BUIFNTES
Wong Ka Lun INED
EER ) BUIFATES

The report of the work performed by the Audit Committee for
the financial period under review is set out in the section
headed “Audit Committee Report” of this CG Report.

Acknowledgement of responsibility for the

financial statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In preparing
the accounts for the financial period under review, the
Directors have:

e based on a going concern basis;

e selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

e made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair
and reasonable.

Review of internal control

During the financial period under review, the Directors had
arranged to conduct a review over the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group including functions of
financial, operation, compliance and risk management. The
review had been reported to the Audit Committee. The
Directors had also, where necessary, initiated necessary
improvement and reinforcement to the internal control system.
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External auditor and their remuneration

The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management. Shu Lun
Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited was engaged as the Company’s
external auditor of the Company. Their independence and
audit process are reviewed and monitored by the Audit
Committee which considered the scope of the audit work,
audit fees, non-audit services as well as their appointment and
retention.

For the year ended 31st December 2014, the fees paid or
payable by the Group to the auditor in respect of their audit
services amounted to approximately HK$6,902,000. In
addition, no charges was made by the auditors for non-audit
services, which mainly consist of taxation services, interim
review, advisory and other professional services.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping detailed
minutes of each meeting of the Board and the committees
including any dissenting views expressed by the Directors,
which should be available to all Directors for inspection. She
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. All
agenda, relevant materials and documents are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board
meetings or meetings of the Board committees. It is the
responsibility of the Company Secretary to send the draft
minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board committees
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board and the committees are also required to be sent
to all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.
Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping
all Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory
requirements, as well as internal codes of conduct of the
Company.

During the CG Period, the Company Secretary had confirmed
that she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company.

Procedures for convening a general meeting
Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders have a right to vote at general
meetings can submit a written requisition to convene a general
meeting in accordance with Section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The written requisition must:

(i)  state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting;

(i) contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which
may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form); and

(iiiy be deposited at the Company’s registered office (Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a general meeting
for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the
notice convening the general meeting is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a general meeting, but any general meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date.
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Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary through the
following methods:

(i) in writing to the Company’s registered office at Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower I, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong; or

(i)  fill in the enquiry form set out in the “Contact Us”
section of the Company’s website.

Proposing directors for election at general
meetings

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are laid down in Article
120 of the Company’s Articles of Association:

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall,
unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting, unless there shall have been lodged at the
registered office of the Company a notice signed by
a member (other than the person to be proposed)
entitled to attend an vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected. The period for lodgement of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.
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Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a director of the Company at the general
meeting, the following documents must be validly served on
the Company Secretary at the registered office of the
Company:

() his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at the
general meeting; and

(ii) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be appointed together with:

(@) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and such other information; and

(b) the candidate’s written consent to the publication
of his/her personal data.

Shareholders” Communication Policy and other Corporate
Governance Principles of the Company could be reviewed at
Company’s website.
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on
19th March, 1999. Its composition shall be a minimum of 3
members of NEDs with a majority being INEDs. For the
financial period under review, the Audit Committee comprised
all the NED and INEDs of the Company at all times.

For the financial period under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following duties:

e reviewed and commented on the audited full year
financial statements and the unaudited interim financial
results of the Group of the financial period under review
before submission to the Board for adoption and
publication;

e endorsed the policy on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

. met with the auditor to discuss the financial matters of
the Group that arose during the course of the audit
process, and reviewed the findings, recommendations
and representations of the auditor;

e reviewed and approved the remuneration and the terms
of engagement of the auditor for both audit services and
non-audit services for the financial period under review;

e reviewed the internal audit reports and the Company’s
statement on internal control.

After due and careful consideration of the reports from the
management of the Group and the auditor, the Audit
Committee was of the view that no suspected irregularities,
internal control deficiencies, or breach of regulations had
been found. The Company has taken necessary measures to
strengthen its system of internal control so as to ensure that it
is adequate and effective.
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Based on the reviews and discussions performed by the Audit  RIEFEXETE BT 2 M il BXEE
Committee, the Audit Committee had: @

e recommended to the Board for the approval of the o RAMEEEER  WEEFSEAIELD
audited financial statements of the financial period under FE O B HR ) 2 i A B A Rk S BE T 2 38
review together with the Independent Auditor’s Report MZBaERE 0 &
attached thereto, before the announcement of the annual

results; and

. recommended to the Board for the approval of the e AP EIEER  MESoZEHED
unaudited financial statements of the financial period B AR 2 R EZI B HwE -
under review before the announcement of the interim
results.
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Executive Directors

XUE Ming, aged 53, holds a master’s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China, a doctorate degree in
Economics and Management from Beijing Forestry University
and is a senior economist with over 34 years’ experience in
management. Mr. Xue has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since April 2006, was the Managing
Director of the Company during the period from July 2009 to
October 2014, and has been the Chairman of the Company
since April 2010. As the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Xue is
primarily responsible for the overall management, major
decision-making, strategic planning and business development
of the Group. Mr. Xue is also a Deputy General Manager of
China Poly Group Corporation (“China Poly”) and a director
and General Manager of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(“Poly Holdings”).

HAN Qingtao, aged 54, holds an Executive Master Degree of
Business Administration from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law and has over 20 years’ experience in
finance and management. Mr. Han was the Managing Director
of Poly Southern Group Limited (“Poly Southern”) during the
period from December 2005 to September 2007, an executive
director of the Company during the period from October 2007
to August 2011, and a senior officer of the Real Estate
Department of China Poly during the period from August 2011
to October 2014. He has been appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company since October 2014 and is primarily
responsible for the operation and management of the Group.
He is also a director of Poly Holdings.

WANG Xu, aged 55, has been an executive director of the
Company since October 2007. Mr. Wang had been the
Chairman of Poly Southern during the period from March
2003 to September 2007, the Managing Director of the
Company during the period from October 2007 to July 2009
and is also a Deputy General Manager of China Poly and the
Chairman of Poly Holdings. Mr. Wang has over 22 years of
extensive experience in investment and management.
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YE Li Wen, aged 44, holds a bachelor degree from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and a master degree in
Business Administration from Beijing University. Mr. Ye was a
senior officer with China Poly for the period from 1994 to
2001 and has joined the Company since 2001 as Manager of
Investments Department. He has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company since November 2006 and
is also a Deputy General Manager of the Company with an
experience in management for over 20 years.

Non-Executive Director

IP Chun Chung, Robert, aged 58, joined the Company in
January 2001 as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee and has redesignated to non-
executive director of the Company since July 2004. Mr. Ip has
been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1985 and is the
proprietor of Messrs. Robert C.C. Ip & Co. He is also
independent non-executive directors of China Data
Broadcasting Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8016) and Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (Stock code: 821). Mr. Ip has
over 30 years of experience in legal aspects and more than 15
years of experience in listing related and corporate takeover,
mergers and acquisition areas.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHOY Shu Kwan, aged 60, holds a master degree in Business
Administration and has over 35 years’ extensive experience in
financial business and investment management. Mr. Choy
worked for the CITIC Group for 20 years in Hong Kong.
Before his resignation in 2007, he was the managing director
of CITIC Capital Markets Limited. Mr. Choy has joined the
Company since July 2004 as an independent non-executive
director and members of both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Skyfame Realty (Holdings) Limited (Stock
code: 59).
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LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia, aged 51, holds a bachelor degree in
Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong and a
Bachelor of Laws degree from University of London. She is a
chartered secretary and has over 20 years of experience in
dealing with listing related and corporate finance areas. Ms.
Leung has joined the Company since August 2010 as an
independent non-executive director and members of both the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and has
been the Chairlady of the Audit Committee since May 2013.
Ms. Leung is also an independent non-executive director of
China Aerospace International Holdings Limited (Stock code:
31).

WONG Ka Lun, aged 65, holds a bachelor degree in Social
Sciences from The University of Hong Kong majoring in
Economics and Psychology. Mr. Wong had held various
executive and management positions with Cathy Pacific
Airways, John Swire & Sons (China) Limited and Swire Travel
Limited and is currently an Executive Board Member of Hong
Kong Air Cadet Corps, a Council Member of Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra and a Director of the Board of The Hong
Kong International Film Festival Society Limited. He has
joined the Company since November 2012 as an independent
non-executive director and members of both the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and has been
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee since May
2013.
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The board of directors present its annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Poly Property
Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2014.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 56 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on page 100 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.076 per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2014 (2013:
HK$0.223).

Share capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

Investment properties

At 31st December, 2014, the investment properties of the
Group were revalued by an independent firm of professional
surveyor and property valuer on an open market value basis at
HK$10,053,392,000.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Distributable reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st December, 2014 represented the
accumulated profits of HK$915,693,000.

Directors and directors’ service contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Xue Ming (Chairman)
Han Qingtao (Managing Director,
Appointed on 21st October, 2014)
Wang Xu
Chen Hong Sheng (Resigned on 27th June, 2014)
Zhang Wan Shun (Resigned on 21st October, 2014)
Ye Li Wen

Non-executive director:
Ip Chun Chung, Robert

Independent non-executive directors:
Choy Shu Kwan

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Han Qingtao, who was appointed as an
executive director during the year will retire and being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ye Li Wen, Mr. Choy Shu Kwan, and Mr.
Wong Ka Lun will retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

The term of office of Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, the
non-executive director, and Mr. Choy Shu Kwan, the
independent non-executive directors, is three years from 6th
October, 2014, subject to retirement by rotation as required
by the Company’s Articles of Association.
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The term of office of Ms. Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, the
independent non-executive director, is three years from 11th
August, 2013, subject to retirement by rotation as required by
the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Wong Ka Lun, the independent
non-executive director, is three years from 23rd November,
2012, subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive directors
concerning their independence and considered that the
independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).
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Directors’ interests in securities

At 31st December, 2014, the interests and short positions of
the directors and their associates in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies were as follows:

Long position

Ordinary shares of the Company

Mr. Xue Ming is holding 1,000,000 shares (0.03%) in the
issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Choy Shu Kwan is holding 300,000 shares (0.01%) in the
issued share capital of the Company.

Ms. Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia is holding 33,000 shares (0%) in
the issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Wong Ka Lun is deemed to be interested in 80,000 shares
(0%) in the issued share capital of the Company, being the
interests held by his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2014.

Share options

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

Arrangements to purchase shares or
debentures

Other than the option holdings set out in note 42, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial shareholders FERRK

As at 31st December, 2014, the register of substantial M ENREEBES TES R[N N2F
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section ~ —Pl&FE+_-H=+—0 - IRAQR T BEBZE R
336 of the SFO shows that, other than the interests disclosed HEEHE3Z6IEMEE 2 T BB L MAAS
above in respect of certain directors, the following  TZIREREMEARRBERARRBE TR
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in 2~ G #iEz ¢

the issued share capital of the Company:

Ordinary shares of the Company A EER
Number of shares
R B E
Approximate
percentage
Held by of the issued
Beneficial controlled Total number share capital of
Name of shareholder owner  corporation(s) of shares the Company
EARDT
32 2 ERITRAZ
IR R & 7 BREEAA DNAEFH R 10 48 2L BHOB DL
Long position
"R
Congratulations Company Ltd. 1,037,975,080 - 1,037,975,080 28.40%
Source Holdings Limited 228,398,760 100,086,800 328,485,560 8.99%
(Note 1)
(PHET)
Ting Shing Holdings Limited - 1,366,460,640  1,366,460,640 37.39%
(Note 2)
(FffaE2)
Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited 112,410,476 1,366,460,640 1,478,871,116 40.46%
&R (BB ERBERAF (Note 3)
(Ff3E3)
Poly Southern Group Limited 253,788,246 - 253,788,246 6.94%
FEANEHEREERAA]
China Poly Group Corporation - 1,732,659,362 1,732,659,362 47 .40%
FERFISE R F] (Note 4)

(FizE4)
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Notes:

Save

Source Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested in
328,485,560 shares of the Company as a result of its direct holding
of 228,398,760 shares and indirect holding of 100,086,800 shares
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Musical Insight Holdings
Limited and Wincall Holding Limited of 44,658,800 shares and
55,428,000 shares, respectively.

Ting Shing Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested
in 1,366,460,640 shares of the Company as a result of its indirect
holding of 1,366,460,640 shares through its subsidiaries, Source
Holdings Limited and Congratulations Company Ltd. of
328,485,560 shares and 1,037,975,080 shares, respectively.

Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be
interested in 1,478,871,116 shares of the Company as a result of its
direct holding of 112,410,476 shares and indirect holding of
1,366,460,640 shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ting
Shing Holdings Limited.

China Poly Group Corporation owns 100% of Poly (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited and Poly Southern Group Limited and is
accordingly deemed by the SFO to be interested in the shares
directly and indirectly owned by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited and Poly Southern Group Limited.

as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued

shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31st
December, 2014.

Connected transactions

Details of the discloseable connected transactions for the year

are set out in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements

of this annual report. In the opinion of the directors who do

not have any interest in these transactions, the transactions

were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the

ordinary and usual course of business of the Group.

B E X EE S -
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the on-going connected transactions set out in note
54 to the consolidated financial statements (“Transactions”)
and in their opinion:

1. the Transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

2. the Transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms; and

3. the Transactions were entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company had reviewed the Transactions
and provided a letter to the Board in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed, inter alia, that the
Transactions have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the Transactions and the
Transactions have not exceeded their respective annual caps
as disclosed in the relevant announcements and circulars.

The Company has complied with the disclose requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (where
applicable) with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year.

Directors’ interests in contracts

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than
30% of the Group’s sales and purchases, respectively.

RHEXEEERAAF | —T—OFFH
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Emolument policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Sufficiency of public float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2014.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2014 have been audited by Shu
Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited (“Shu Lun Pan HK”). Shu
Lun Pan HK was appointed as the auditor of the Company on
28th May, 2014. The term of office of Shu Lun Pan HK will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Shu Lun Pan

HK as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

XUE Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EE: +852 2218 3812
{55 +852 2815 1403

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF POLY PROPERTY GROUP
CO., LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Poly
Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 100 to
275, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31st December, 2014,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 32 by operation of the transitional and saving
provisions in Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Tel: +852 2218 3812
Fax: +852 2815 1403

B 2B S

Room 1609, 16'" Floor,
Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong
BB THRER115%

KD 161E1609F

BRANEXEEARIAIICERR
(REBHEMHELLZBRAA])

AAZBENTT([A1T]) B e BEZTINE 1008
EF275BERMNEXEEERAR(TERR])
LREMBAR(SHEIERE]) 26 MK R
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A=+ —BZHEERRRMBRRAR KRB EZ
BLFEZHEABRER Hazmakak &
ERDEDRLGEARERPR UREES
AR E R EMEREER -

EENGEMBRRAREZER

BERREFAARREBEEESTMAGRML
EEMBREERETEBEIE622E(R
ARG R 11 Z BB IR RARE R STHR IR
BB AP 32 (R BHERG AR RLAR & B 75
R UNSHEEMBRERRELBEEMAAZR
R WEBEERSREGEMBHRRIABEL
MEBESIE - DAEAR A M ISR N7 O RRE
S ERRR G B 2 EAFARRIRAL
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
32 by operation of the transitional and saving provisions set
out in Section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622 and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BBz BE

AT BEEDREAITEZER  HZFEA
MHEBRERER  LETEBENF622E
R BHERBIYBT 2R 11 58 80 158 71| 2 3@ MR XX
K ARBIESRIREBEDISE 32 E(A REDI)E
141 RERBRBBRERRSE - RIS - RN¥E
AEEMAR - BRI TSR AHmE 2 AT EE
A EM AL R ESFEERIEE -

AITERBEB G ASEM BT BEE
AETESZ RFEUNBRATETERA
g WIREINAITER  WEBEESRSMK
BREDTNFHEEMERFERRAL -
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RAZERED 2 #I BT - BRGNS ERT
EYHF APV BRRFEERERRAZ EL
R Z SRR - B E B A R R
BEEMRAFZiRAMBHRRAE 2 NS -
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31st December, 2014 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap.32.

Shu Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Amy Yau Shuk Yuen

Practising Certificate No. P6095

Hong Kong
27th March, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBREK

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—F—MFE+-A=1—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-NFE —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T F#ET FHT
Revenue WA 8 28,508,737 28,625,008
Cost of sales SHE A (22,862,062) (21,918,810)
Gross profit FEAH 5,646,675 6,706,198
Increase in fair value of investment KBS 2 N EE M
properties 17 968,623 1,061,102
Other income E g A 9 446,035 582,559
Selling expenses HERX (847,846) (875,134)
Administrative expenses TS (1,483,334)  (1,605,004)
(Decrease) increase in fair value of BIEEERE 2 AFECRD)
held-for-trading investments 0 (105) 232
Gain on disposal of interests in HEM B AR R W
subsidiaries 47 20,668 459,938
Loss on disposal of interest in & — Rl E R AR 2 B
an associate 22 - (24,899)
Impairment loss on properties held for 5 {EH &Y B RAP Y E
sale/properties under development ZREEE 26 (458,705) (90,454)
Finance costs B & A AR 10 (893,070) (777,749)
Share of results of associates SN[ RN 22 (12,078) 67
Share of results of joint ventures DA B DEES 23 (76,127) 25,146
Profit before taxation F& B3 Bi& A 13 3,310,736 5,462,002
Income tax expense SRSy b 14 (2,027,129)  (2,220,504)
Profit for the year F R A 1,283,607 3,241,498
Attributable to: TS -
Owners of the Company iN/NETE Z =N 929,448 2,715,626
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR 354,159 525,872
1,283,607 3,241,498
Earnings per share BRAF
(expressed in HK cents) (BENLER) 16
— Basic — BEXR 25.49 74.74
- Diluted — #58 25.42 74.45

The notes on pages 115 to 275 form part of these consolidated ~ R FE 115 B EF 275 B 2T AL ELRE Y

financial statements. Details of dividends payable to owners of 3Rz 2 — 385D o BMAFE @ A BN AR A
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out B ARE Z S BEEHNHE15 -

in note 15.



RHBEXEEERAAF | —T—FFH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements of
foreign operations

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Surplus arising on revaluation of
properties

Other comprehensive income before
tax effect

Deferred tax liability arising on
revaluation of properties

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 115 to 275 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Notes
B 5T
F A
E i 2E KA
EE gt EH 7 EE B e )
HE -
BINETS 2 BT R RIRE EAE
ZERERE
RN EREY AT ERD
30(a)

TEEH S BERBMIEER -

MEEGHRER

BT Rt 2 ERA

MEBRHELEZEEFAAE

R IR 2 S A E M 2 A

FRAEZEPRARLRE

ToIRELG :
RRBHEBA
FEIE IRt

SEEER@E

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

BE-FT—MFE+-A=+—ALFE
2014 2013
—E-NmFE —ZT—=F
HK$/000 HK$’000
FHET Fi&TT
1,283,607 3,241,498
- 529,979

(19,015) 26,620
(19,015) 556,599
59,392 30,926
40,377 587,525
(14,848) (7,732)
25,529 579,793
1,309,136 3,821,291
944,593 3,163,793
364,543 657,498
1,309,136 3,821,291

HNE15BEF275 B ZMF AL FLLEA

BRZ—HD °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R
As at 31st December, 2014
R—E—mFEF+—F=1+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment properties REME
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB LR
Prepaid lease payments TBREERIE

— non-current portion — EmEE D

Goodwill kS
Interests in associates NN F
Interests in joint ventures REERR 2R
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Club membership g

Deposits paid for acquisition
of land use rights

Deposits paid for acquisition
of subsidiaries

WL tEREE N iRE

WEEIBARENRE

Deferred tax assets BIEBIEE E
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE

Properties under development BRPME
Properties held for sale FHEHEME
Other inventories HihFE
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 Kk H AR
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERE

— current portion — mEED
Short-term loan receivables RGBS 3k
Held-for-trading investments FIEEERE
Amounts due from associates JRE Wi Bt 5 X R 5RIE
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW & & ERIA

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Taxation recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances, deposits and cash

& U5 P 188 1% B SEFR AR AR 3R
TR

AJ W [El 7508

EHEMRITIFR

R1TEF  FREA=

Notes
B 5T

17
18

19
20
22
23
30

24

25
48

26
26
27
28

19
29
31
22
23

35

37

2014 2013
—E-FE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&TT
10,053,392 8,522,004
2,049,764 2,171,728
379,757 412,384
307,612 484,204
307,923 320,001
533,765 389,711
136,688 155,703

- 1,257

143,037 797,342
253,165 253,165
349,309 424,348
14,514,412 13,931,847
57,432,956 53,382,138
27,247,573 20,544,333
154,565 117,825
4,074,785 3,907,545
11,523 12,189

867 972
400,897 467,874
5,697,412 1,790,096
1,135,801 400,991
975,890 772,808
1,519,231 667,953
16,236,973 14,826,081
114,888,473 96,890,805
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4= & B AR 3R

As at 31st December, 2014
R_FE—F+=—H=+—H

2014 2013
—EB-mE —T-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
PaE FHExT TET
CURRENT LIABILITIES mERE
Trade and other payables [ E Z R HE MR 38 14,670,333 9,179,335
Pre-sale deposits BEZE 19,082,666 19,245,408
Property rental deposits MERERSE 116,054 95,026
Amounts due to joint ventures ERE S PERIE 23 10,391 31,081
Amount due to the ultimate e B PR A R FRIR
holding company 32 58,299 438,052
Amount due to an intermediate e~ —fE R AR R Rl FAR
holding company 33 975,259 26,409
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERTRI RN B A 7 IE 34 2,410,404 2,215,657
Amounts due to non-controlling JEAST Bt B8 /2 B FEFE AR AR
shareholders of subsidiaries EQE] 35 1,674,920 1,809,525
Taxation payable e B TR 1,762,830 1,837,665
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMEE
— due within one year — —FRFIH 39 20,250,526 15,455,479
61,011,682 50,333,637
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 53,876,791 46,557,168
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BELERRBEE
LIABILITIES 68,391,203 60,489,015
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR
Share capital &4 41 17,677,143 1,822,319
Reserves G 12,085,184 27,794,728
Equity attributable to owners NRFEE AFEIGRHE
of the Company 29,762,327 29,617,047
Perpetual capital instruments KABARIE 44 998,696 -
Non-controlling interests IR a 3,338,192 2,985,097

TOTAL EQUITY % e s 34,099,215 32,602,144
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4R & B #&AR LR

As at 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank and other borrowings
— due after one year
Notes payable
Loan from a fellow subsidiary
Amount due to the ultimate
holding company
Deferred tax liabilities

FREBEE
RITREMEE
— —FEIH
AR
—FEERZHBRRER
e BRASIE A BIFR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 275

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27th March, 2015 and are signed on its behalf

by:

XUE MING

Chairman

S

The notes on pages 115 to 275 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2014 2013
—E-FE —ZT—=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FExT FH&TT
39 28,433,069 22,665,146
40 3,900,000 3,900,000
45 227,848 227,848
32 379,747 -
48 1,351,324 1,093,877

34,291,988 27,886,871

68,391,203 60,489,015

FI00EEF2/5 AR M BHREN_Z
—hAF=ZA-_ttHRERESSHEREET
WA NIATRERESE

YE LI WEN
BERE

Director

BEF

HRE1SBEEE 275 B2 M B S50
TEzRZ—2B5D o



NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables
Amount due from a subsidiary
Bank balances, deposits and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables
Amount due to an intermediate
holding company
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Bank borrowings
— due within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

RANBXEEBRAF | —T—HFFR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI AR

As at 31st December, 2014
R-FE—mFE+—HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NFE —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHT FBT
IERBENEE
R B AR 2 i 21 539,794 266,794
JFE U Bf BB A R FOE 36 20,504,019 20,867,075
AR ERE 30 78,378 78,378
21,122,191 21,212,247
RBEE
JrE U EL A BR FX 133,550 84,426
e NG/ 36 4,011,203 -
RITET - TR KBS 37 2,483,727 3,696,321
6,628,480 3,780,747
mBAE
JE H A BR K 38 41,444 33,876
S —fE AR AR A Rl F0E
33 - 10,532
FEST BT A B R I8 36 471,847 337,004
RITIEE
— —F A 39 780,000 -
1,293,291 381,412
mEEERE 5,335,189 3,399,335

BEERERABAR
26,457,380 24,611,582

B RN
&7 41 17,677,143 1,822,319
i 43 916,792 18,109,263
% e s 18,593,935 19,931,582
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bt #&AR R 3R

As at 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

2014 2013
—EF-NFE —FT-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B RE FET FATT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE
— due after one year — — 125 HR 39 3,963,445 780,000
Notes payable NS 40 3,900,000 3,900,000

7,863,445 4,680,000

26,457,380 24,611,582

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 275 SF100B £ F2/5BE 2 AT B HREN - =
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of —H&F=HA -+ tHKLHESSHERTET
Directors on 27th March, 2015 and are signed on its behalf 2 » WH T ATREKEE :

by:—

XUE MING YE LI WEN
=B ERH
Chairman Director
FE EF

The notes on pages 115 to 275 form part of these consolidated ~ &R F 115 B EF 275 B2 M AL HLRE 8
financial statements. BHRZ—&D °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ?

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

HE-F-mET+
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

RANBXEEBRAF | —T—HFFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 4z # g%k

Included in other capital reserve at 31st December, 2014 is
deemed capital contribution arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
of HK$244,221,000 (2013: HK$244,221,000) and deemed capital
contribution arising from interest-free loans provided by a fellow
subsidiary of HK$62,678,000 (2013: HK$62,678,000).

The People’s Republic of China, other than Hong Kong, (the “PRC”)
statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevant PRC laws
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserve represents the difference between the fair value of
consideration paid and payable and the carrying amount of net
assets attributable to the changes in ownership in the subsidiaries
being acquired/disposed from non-controlling interests without
change of control during the year.

The notes on pages 115 to 275 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

L

(ii)

(iii)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFEF+-_A=+—HIFZE

R-Z—NE+-A=+—H HtbEARFHEE
FEREU BB B B A R FTEE &£ H & 2 244,221,000
BIL(ZZT— =4 :244,221,00058 7T) KB —
BREERBRERIETTEERAEEZLE
262,678,000/ 7T ( —F — = 4 : 62,678,00078
JT) °

REARIME(HE] TREEE)EEME
TR AL 2 BB AR 2 H /T DA
PR 2 71

Hi i EEFNE N RN REAFERENK
ERGIEZBER T HIEERERRAHE 2
BRAREEREY RGO FEERAERE ZMHE
HZEHE o

EREBNSEZEFR275 B 2MARUEFHEA M
BBwRZ "D °
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Reversal of impairment loss
previously recognised in respect
of other receivables

Reversal of impairment loss
previously recognised in respect
of trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss
previously recognised in respect
of short-term loan receivables

Impairment loss on goodwiill

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss on properties held

for sale/properties under development

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Bank interest income

Interest income from loans
to joint ventures

Interest income from loan
to an associate

Dividend income from investment
in securities

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of investment
properties

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of interests
in subsidiaries

Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries

D)

%%RH' i )

BLOATIRE Mt 9

BOBRER R EMRRE
FERZ BIE BT 1R

BOREEWE 5 RRE
FER BB BT 1R

BOBAREREHER
R ZREEE

e BEBE
eI B SR 2 REE 18
BHIELEME SERP Y
2 BEEE

M - BB REREZRE
BB

Bisya M EERE
IRITHI B A
BERTAEECESRZFE
A
6 G 1] NG
B U A
BHEILERBUA
Y - BRERREITE
BhE A
HEREMEZER
HEYE  BEREEZ
E5i8
HEHB AR A 2 ek
FREIHT B A Bl 2 Wk

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\/\Iﬁﬁull,@J%%

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFE+-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mEFE —ZT—=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iiks3 FHET FET
3,310,736 5,462,002

(3,218) (13,408)

(551) (1,182)

(400) (300)

176,592 68,847

- 3

458,705 90,454

3,911 -

11,856 11,783

(128,185) (146,557)

(200,675) (103,333)

(382) (213)

(4,983) (3,668)

142,385 134,497

893,070 777,749

11,828 10,605

964 702

(20,668) (459,938)

(586) (1,589)



Loss on disposal of interest
in an associate
Decrease (increase) in fair value
of held-for-trading investments
Increase in fair value of
investment properties
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Exchange gains

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

(Increase) decrease in properties
under development and
properties held for sale

Increase in other inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Decrease in short-term loan receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade

and other payables
(Decrease) increase in pre-sale deposits
Increase in property rental deposits

Net cash generated from operations
PRC income tax paid
Interests paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

RANBXEEBRAF | —T—HFFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZR&8IR &R BN

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFEF+-_A=+—HIFZE

2014 2013
—F-NFE —F-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B RE FET FHET
HE—FBE R aER

BB - 24,899

BIEEBEREZ ATERD
(3 n) 105 (232)

AR 2 RFEB
(968,623) (1,061,102

)
DI E AR EE 12,078 (67)
DIEEETEFEE 76,127 (25,146)
ERR e - (212,747)

LEESEPNKER TR
3,770,086 4,552,059

BROPMERFSFELHEYE

(& hn)m A

(5,581,736) 471,093

HFE®Em (36,740) (51,904)
JE W B 5 K ELAth BR SR A0 (188,907)  (2,364,577)
FEW RS B E FOR 400 300
FEAS B 5 K ELAtb BR 5K 0

CRA) 2,637,379 (1,015,819)
TESEE O d) L0 (162,742) 4,476,511
MEMERSIE M 21,028 10,591
KEMBIH S FE 458,768 6,078,254
TR EAETH (1,989,599)  (2,396,195)
ERTFE (3,502,659)  (3,734,705)
S TEB TR SR

(5,033,490) (52,646)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &R &R BN

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{iEsd FTHERT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES S EEE
Purchase of property, BBEYXE BB NH&E
plant and equipment 18 (134,383) (82,358)
Deposits paid for acquisition BB RAERE
of land use rights - (338,418)
Repayments from fellow subsidiaries  [F] R} B2 7€ - 11,599
Purchase of investment properties BEREYE 17 (11,613) (64,888)
Increase in interests in associates REEE R A2 BRI N - (321,793)
Increase in interests in joint ventures A& & 2 HEZEIE N (117,220) (52,386)
Net cash outflows arising on disposal HEHBARIFMELEZRE
of subsidiaries L EE 47 (36,947) (504,962)
Net cash outflows arising on BB ARMEE R
dissolution of subsidiaries A FEE (12,575) (94)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate % — B & A 7] TS HUE - 18,750
(Increase) decrease EEMRRITER (L) m
in pledged bank deposits (851,278) 294,321
Bank interest income received B ERT TN S A 128,185 146,557
Interest income received from loans ~ BERXTFEEPEREK 2
to joint ventures 2R B HA 200,675 103,333
Interest income received from loan BTSRRI R
to an associate Bz F B WA 382 213
Dividend income received EREFREREMA
from investment in securities 4,983 3,668
Dividend received from joint ventures B2 & & BERKE 341 365
Advances to joint ventures R FTEE D (3,709,752) (437,584)
Advances to non-controlling BT B A R SEIE AR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries (734,810) (23,346)
Repayment from (advances to) Bt N RIB R (B
associates 66,977 (467,874)
Proceeds from disposal HEREYMFERSHIA
of investment properties 139,227 170,657
Proceeds from disposal HESMEEMSENA
of club membership 1,257 -
Proceeds from disposal HEME - BFE M&RE
of property, plant and equipment Fr15 5008 448 3,085
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BRERETAE S FR

ACTIVITIES (5,066,103) (1,541,155)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZR&8IR &R BN

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFEF+-_A=+—HIFZE

2014 2013
—2-mE ZF=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt = FET TET

FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Borrowings raised igEs 33,756,279 21,882,784
Advances from (repayments to) —EREERARRR

an intermediate holding company (B3 F—M+ FEJIF I¥NG] 931,847 (1,087,339)
Issue of notes payable BITRNRIE - 3,900,000
Issue of perpetual capital instruments ~ ZE{TKAEART A 998,696 -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 7715 & i% # Fr 15 218 14,027 172,342
(Repayments to) advances (B %H?W% a,/

from fellow subsidiaries EEL ) PNGIE-F (863) 1,275,436
(Repayments to) advances (&) YT'WEQ 7#? IRARER,

from non-controlling shareholders B A R FEEAR AR SR EA K

of subsidiaries (203,357) 812,595
Repayments to the ultimate BT REERAE

holding company (6) -
(Repayments to) advances B TERERE/

from joint ventures BERERR (20,690) 31,081
Capital contribution BB A R SEIE AR AR &

by non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries 31,646 28,481
Repayments of borrowings EBEEER (23,183,754) (24,284,752)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary & —REM B R R DR - 56,962
Dividends paid ERARE 15 (812,754) (794,465)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT B R B IR AR B9

shareholders of subsidiaries oS (586) (298,035)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RMEEBMEREFR

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 11,510,485 1,695,090
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &R &R BN

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Represented by:

— bank balances, deposits and cash

The notes on pages 115 to 275 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Notes

B &t

e K FFIR I8 INFE

FUzBRERERRE

EREAHE) 7 =

Dz

FRrzENFRAE

Re hERREEFIM

— RITRER  FRERE

HRE115 8
K2 —8P

2014 2013
—E-FE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&TT
1,410,892 101,289
14,826,081 14,307,863
- 416,929
16,236,973 14,826,081
16,236,973 14,826,081

EF25ACHERKETEAY
ﬁ_j\ o



General

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is China Poly Group Corporation
(“China Poly”), a state-owned enterprise established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
Company’s parent is Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(“Poly Holdings”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong. China Poly and its affiliated companies, other than
members of the Group, are hereinafter collectively
referred to as China Poly Group. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section of “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are engaged in property development,
property investment and management, hotel operations
and its related services, securities investment and
construction services.

RANBXEEBRAF | —T—HFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS

:%/T\ =] E]J- Eay B;J-FII
For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—WFEF+-—A=+—HIFZ

—RER

FMNEXEEERAR(ARRF]) NER
BEMKLZ ARERATF - EROHES
BEERXZMARAR ([HRAT]) £ -

EEZRR ARRIZHREEBRRRATE
RAEE QR ([HEFRA]) - ZABR/—
R EARLME(HE)KIZZEE
©% - KRB ZHRRSRAM(FE) K
BRAB(TRFHER]) - ZRR A —HE
BEEMKILZ AR - BAEBZKER
AN - R BIORF R BB SR 2 RIFE A T e
RPBERNER - RARZEMHER
R FBEXMHBOBRENFRIAAE
Ft] —8A o

RRBB/REZERAR - ABARRE
MERR MERENER BEZER
HiRRAR - BHIE MEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which concern the preparation of financial
statements, which for the financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32, in accordance
with the transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622
“Accounts and Audit” which are set out in sections 76 to
87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rule”).

g AN

=]

PR ER AR MY RE

CYa 4:

WEM S HRER IR BB ER 2 BB
BEEA(TEBHBREER]) - LAHE
BRABEHNMAG([HESFMAE])
M P8 E R (B Bl B 5 s 22 A
ARG ER (BB SER ) RRER
FEARETRARSR - LR R
RiME @ BEEERAUED(FEEDS
622F)FIMMRA KB 2 BEMER
BERRE 2B (B HIR115762876i) -
AR FE R RPREETREER
FHERBI(BREEDIE32E) 2 REELRK
B o WAN MIBHRRBREEHARSM
BRARZEZ EMRAIZERBERE
(T Em#RA) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 8 R R iz

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

3. MBHBREREE

3. Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (@) BREHFTBETEBUK

effective 1st January, 2014

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets
HKAS 32 and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Investment Entities

Amendments to Novation of Derivatives

HKAS 39 and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements
by adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which
clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross
settlement mechanism is considered equivalent to
net settlement. The amendments are applied
retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangements.

EEA - —2-—mF—A
—BEBEX
BRGEA BHEMEE
F 325 (BRI A) k@&

BBE S IREER REER
£10%% - F12%
REBGEER
F275%
(Z2——%)
CCHES)

B gl
£39% (BTA)

TETAZEER
HREHEL
B (BT BE
REREZEE)
—REF2HR

RZSERTHARE 2 B WK
YMERHE -

I

ERGFERSE 325 (85T
) — SR EERSRE
&
BRI RAY BB ERFE32
IR ERIESI mEEEBEEE
T ZIESIHER[BRERERE
=0T 58 HIER T RE A LABE 85 | 2 BF T A
MBREERS R EEFRMNTF
HEAEE 2 EREEH RS - BB
BemyEm -

RMEBEHZEMBHRRLE
T AAREEYN BAEFEHELHE
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3. Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -

effective 1st January, 2014 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of
businesses that qualify as investment entities. An
investment entity’s business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income or both. It evaluates the
performance of its investments on a fair value
basis. Investment entities could include private
equity organisations, venture capital organisations,
pension funds and investment funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and require
investment entities to measure particular
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss
rather than to consolidate them. The amendments
also set out the disclosure requirements for
investment entities. The amendments are applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Company is not
an investment entity.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

3. MBHRREREE(E)

3. Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (@) BREHFTBETEBUK

effective 1st January, 2014 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The amendments provide relief from discontinuing
hedge accounting when novation of a hedging
instrument to a central counterparty meets
specified criteria. The amendments are applied
retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not
apply hedge accounting.

HK (IFRIC) 21 — Levies

HK (IFRIC) 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability to pay a levy imposed by government
when the activity that triggers payment, as
identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The
interpretation has been applied retrospectively.

The adoption of HK (IFRIC) 21 has no impact on
these financial statements as the interpretation is
consistent with the Group's previous application of
its accounting policies on provisions.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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3. Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have

been issued, but are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2011-2013 Cycle!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS

16 and HKAS 41
Amendments to
HKAS 19 (2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10

Amendments to

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee
Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation
Exception’

Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations®

Regulatory Deferral
Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 8 R R iz

3. Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

(c)

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1st July, 2014

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2016
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2018

New Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the preparation of financial

statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation of financial
statements will apply to the Company in its first
financial year beginning on or after 3rd March,
2014 (i.e. the financial year ending 31st December,
2015).

The directors consider that there will be no impact
on the Group’s financial position or performance,
however the new Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622, would have impacts on the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The statement of financial position of
the Company will be presented in the notes rather
than a separate statement and the related notes
need not be included, while generally the statutory
disclosures will be simplified.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %424 B # 3R R MizE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. TESFHE

4. Significant accounting policies

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
investment properties, hotel properties, available-for-sale
investments and held-for-trading investments, which are
measured at their fair values or revalued amounts, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st December, 2014 comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as “the Group”) and the Group’s interests in associates
and joint ventures.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss from the date that control commenced or
up to the date that control ceased. When the Group
loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at that
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of investments in associates or joint ventures
or other investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 8 R R iz

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by the Group.

Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity or
deficiency in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st January, 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)
Business combinations from 1st January, 2010

(Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, it shall not be remeasured until it is finally settled
within equity.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over (ii)
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date. When (ii)
is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)
Business combinations from 1st January, 2010

(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31st December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or group of cash-generating units that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 8 R R iz

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Business combinations prior to 1st January,
2010 but after 1st January, 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements
which were applied on a prospective basis, the following
differences applied to business combinations prior to 1st
January, 2010:—

Business combinations were accounted for using the
purchase method. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs.
The non-controlling interest was measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Any additional acquired
share of interest did not affect previously recognised
goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded
derivatives separated from the host contract by the
acquiree were not reassessed on acquisition unless the
business combination resulted in a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modified the cash flows
that otherwise would have been required under the
contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if,
the Group had a present obligation, the economic
outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate
was determinable. Subsequent adjustments to the
contingent consideration were recognised as part of
goodwill.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date fair
value excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or the joint venture.

4.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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Significant accounting policies 4. TESFHBEE)

(Continued)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued) BENARESERE(E)
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions AEBEEBERNARGEDFEETRS
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures M EE A 2 R B3R 55 A &2 518 DA AN &2 [ i
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the AR A 2 R EREITHEE - AR
investee, except where unrealised losses provide GRS EERAEREED HIRR
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in 18 - RIBNR R85 HERR -

which case they are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence IAEBREHBENR ZERNTE N
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it LENE BE 7 HREIEGIRE - S5 1E
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that HERZWEITENRI 228 REZ - PTERN
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised W BEN ISR c RREEAF
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former & ho R EHEESIES B - EAR&A
investee at the date when significant influence or joint WIRERA ZIREBERIERNTERER © %
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount SEWE A —THSREEEVSHEREZ
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a NFAE -

financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, RRABMBMRRAKRA @ REEE QAR MEE
interests in associates and joint ventures are stated at 7 RRIREARESBEREE (1E) 5
cost less impairment losses, if any. (ER

Non-current assets held for sale BEHEZHERBEE

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as BIEmEEE (HEEAR) 2 EEERA
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying AlRERIBIBHER FMIERBIFEE AU
amounts will be recovered through a sale transaction Bl & EZEE (L EHER) ZR A HENR
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or e Bl i ARERE - HEEFIEE
disposal group) is available for sale in its present —RXR ST —RHERRZR HHF EZEF
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be BEEZREBE—RELH s —HEEE -

disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.
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HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values
using the fair value model. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognised in profit or loss in the
year in which the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
other than hotel properties and construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

Significant accounting policies 4. TESFHBEE)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) M - BERRE(E)

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief AEER—ANAEFALA=ZTHARER
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant TRBIEFIER - AR BB ERFE 16
and Equipment from the requirement to make regular S -~ BB KRR ] % 80A BUBL E
revaluations of the Group’s buildings which had been EHTHEEFZEEIEBEEESR i)
carried at revalued amounts prior to 30th September, EEEMZEIHMEEF -R—ANLEF
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and NA=+HA EfZEEEEEX2ER
buildings is carried out. Prior to 30th September, 1995, HEIAEGHE ZSEEBEBEN
the revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of BRAD (WZER D BRERR(NE)) &
these assets was credited to the revaluation reserve. Any RBEEGHEREEZBBEEMHFEETIE
future decreases in value of these assets will be dealt R—IERYRE SEHEEEEZNENR
with as an expense to the extent that they exceed the RERS - MEE 2 BHAGE AR o

balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of the same asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred to
accumulated profits.

Hotel properties are stated in the consolidated statement BENEREGERAINERZBEZA
of financial position at their revalued amounts, being FE)BEMNER 2 2HIFE R ETRIE
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any ESENARE B FEARR R AR ©

subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to EHETHET  UBERZSEEREEB
ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not TERBENEREHARFIABLAFEEE
differ materially from that which would be determined & o

using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of EEEYFEESE Z R EHEE-RR
hotel properties is generally dealt with in other Ht2EKRARERE W2 RRAZE
comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate SER (BUEEMEE L) - FRIEZE
component of equity (hotel properties revaluation BEREEFR-EERABRA—HAZZE
reserve), except to the extent that it reverses a fERE - BRI ER AR - HERIA
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously BENKRZBEAR - WEMEBIEFTE
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is EZEREFEREBLATEGHZEES
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease ERBEYMEEGHRBHEF &N
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount B) ABE@EREEN-—ERIEE -

arising on the revaluation of such buildings is dealt with
as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held on the hotel properties revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation on revalued hotel properties is charged to
profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued hotel property, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the hotel properties revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to accumulated profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is
carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in profit or loss in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %424 B # 3R R MizE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

FEREFBERGE)

s - BERSE(E)
EEWBENEZFTEGRBRNR - &
BEEEDELR DS LR EEY
EEHHER T ZEEEERHOEES
B RETEF o

W BERREER (ERIRRIN I
B AT - R A R
A () 1 - AE SRR A S
R

EFRIRSELERZENREEXBRLZ

E R S E@I&BT;EJZ$/UZ

EAEBAMEBEAR - EEIRER

KAl AR - RIBAYE - BB K

REZHEENE - ZFEBEENEMYERE

EZRREE - NEE R HEE R REFH
AETERE -

ME - BEERRERENLERAELE
ﬁﬁﬁEZiéfET‘ﬁﬁEK@Eiﬁi?&(i&?&ﬂmﬁﬁ

RIEHER - AEER LRERESE ZERI
m%%%a(iﬁéilﬁ B 2 h &S RIRER

HERBE M EZ8tE)  RZEBEBEK
i%mZirFE %ﬁm°



RHBEXEEERAAF | —T—FFH
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

Significant accounting policies 4. FTEGTTHE(E)

(Continued)

Leasing iR

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the TR LT A 2 @RS B & E
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and WERABARE - BRBLNIEREM
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are 4 o T EAMFR 405 ELL =R 4T -

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor AEBERAEHBEA
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the RELEHAOZHEWAKEREN BB
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line MAFHELESIERRER ©

basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee REBEREBEA

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to RBKLEHNVEN 2 HERBILERER
profit or loss using a straight-line basis over the term of BRAELFERAGT ABZ o ] &L HAR
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an ERRB 2 B MR ERF & - HEZER
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised HAOFHNBRERRESFIRD -

in profit or loss as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term using a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building HETHREF

The land and building elements of a lease of land and HET W RIEFTZ T RIEFRHDESET
building are considered separately for the purpose of HEEIE@ERZEE  BRIFABAERE
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be REEA] SEb D BL A s iEF 0 - TEUE
allocated reliably between the land and building BRA TR R REEEESL ARIIED
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally ER S

treated as a finance lease and account for as property,
plant and equipment.

Properties under development BEBRYE

Properties under development developed for future sale RERRBEERBEHREEMER ZERD
in the ordinary course of business are included in current Y EE THLARR ANME 2 Al BB FE M & 28
assets at the lower of cost and net realisable value. It KEFARDEE - EBEVEREME
comprises the consideration for development BREOzBERASZ CRE(BRELIER
expenditure (which includes cost of land use rights, FERNN ~ BEE AR EANME 2 BERKAN) o

construction costs and capitalised finance costs) directly
contributable to the development of the properties.

Properties held for sale BFIEHEMR
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost FHEREMETIAKNANE R ] IR FEMR
and net realisable value. EHZBRIEEYER -
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able to
specify the major structural elements of the design. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out under
“Revenue Recognition”. Where the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by (a) the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to the
estimated total contract costs or (b) the amount of work
certified by independent engineer with reference to the
completion of physical proportion of contract work.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably. Contract costs are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses
and progress billings, and are presented in the statement
of financial position as the “Gross amount due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross
amount due to customers for contract work” (as a
liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by
the customer are included under “Trade and other
receivables”. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are presented as “Advances received”

under “Trade and other payables”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 8 R R iz

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits held at call with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial assets held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:—

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend earned on the financial assets.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, short-term loan
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses. (See accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are designated as available for sale or not classified
as financial assets at FVTPL and loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated as a separate component of equity
(investment revaluation reserve), until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:-

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and short-term loan receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments of trade receivables in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 to 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and loan receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable or a loan receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 8 R R iz

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment losses other than goodwill (see the

accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified as other financial
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables,
property rental deposits, amounts due to subsidiaries, the
ultimate holding company, intermediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, non-controlling
shareholders of the subsidiaries, joint ventures, bank and
other borrowings, notes payable and loan from a fellow
subsidiary are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits scheme contributions
Payments to Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions. Payments made to state-
managed retirement benefits schemes are dealt
with as payments to defined contribution schemes
where the Group’s obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %424 B # 3R R MizE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share capital. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Income tax
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the

extent that they relate to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which

case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

Significant accounting policies 4. TESFHBEE)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued) FRg® (&)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable B BAR 18 7 T8 B ZE sh 55 N FEER T A S+t
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or B IRARRERRERMREE
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, Mz MEFTE - WHBEFEEN 2
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous TEER I o

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arises from deductible RIEFIBEEMBES Bl B o] HE A ER
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being MEREREEL EREERREENE
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets BEVKETRE FNRMEEGEEEENE
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their ERHREMNER - EEMHIBEEINA AR
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax REAMTIE R ARB AR IBIRBESE ©

losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax BETHIONERIN - FTERERERER
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it FrEEERIBEET N AR EERRT G
is probable that future taxable profits will be available PP B R B E T AR SH 1R o 7] 5
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. EERARAA M ERE=E I EEHRBE
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of EZBRERMEN  BEZSFREEE
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary AR SR =% - (E=%a /80 R —F
differences include those that will arise from the reversal BHENE—EHRERAR - ITaERR
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those B AT A5 & s 2 58 2[Rl — BRI sloR B IR AT
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the TIB & E 2 T T8 By 18 ] #¢ o] sk 45 88 2 2
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in Bl - ERFEIRAENERRERZELR
the same period as the expected reversal of the A FFRER AR E AR IE R IEK R AT
deducible temporary difference or in periods into which EXRETEHRIBEEER  MefAR—%
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be A - NZEE TR R —HIEHE KRR —FE
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted MERBER WehTAHEEMERTIE
when determining whether existing taxable temporary HMIBE N — B R ZERAMAEE o

differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited expectations to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in associates and joint ventures, to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reserve in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

Significant accounting policies 4. TEESTTHE(E)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued) Frig®i (&)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution IREERS B E A 2 BN IS R FERR S A+ 48
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the BB 2z B ERER -

related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and ENERRR TE 45 64 N R e R TR 45 60 LA 2 B B &
movements therein, are presented separately from each GBI 25 0 AT o (MR TS
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset NEE B A E R EE TR D nl g BN EA B 18
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets BEHABHBEAERE  WARFENUT
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the SEAMEEEY B - BI|ENHARN 18 & = B BN HA
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current MIEEEEE  MECHBEEEL BEELE
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following I B EHK

additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the - SEBHEEEMAGEMES  AQ
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a ASASEFEIRFREEELEH -
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the SRR ZEEMSEZARE
liability simultaneously; or %

= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if — MELEHBEEENAEMS © WK
they relate to income taxes levied by the same EHE—REHERIA TNE SR —18
taxation authority on either: BB PERARE -

—  the same taxable entity; or - B —EREEE ; 5

= different taxable entities, which, in each - TEHEREE - gLEE:
future period in which significant amounts of ZEREBEEFARBEL
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected HMIEEEEEEEHANEEREL
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise TRIEEER AW EREIR A
the current tax assets and settle the current RFREEERENHHIBEEE
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and M SEEHFEE & B

settle simultaneously. BRZEENFEZRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %424 B # 3R R MizE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, except for the case of the guarantee
issued by the Company to its subsidiary in which
the fair value of such guarantee is recognised as an
additional cost of investment in a subsidiary, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business

combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the
date of acquisition are initially recognised at fair
value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at
the higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined in
accordance with (iii) below. Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations
at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with (iii) below.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)
(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

Significant accounting policies 4. TESFHBEE)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition WA Z T2

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the WA TZBE Wk KR E 2 A ETE
consideration received or receivable and represents TIEREHEMERER  E#EBE - &
amounts received or receivable from sales of properties B R 7 RS 2 B ek Y FkE K B U
and goods, hotel operations, investments, services sf FE YL - EITIR R ABRI S S RIE o fid
provided and subsidies received or receivable, net of KEMNmA e mARER - mias &K
discounts and sales related taxes. Provided it is probable R(AER) MM St By - WanFe
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and BRI T Y| E A B IR ORI

the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(@) Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for (@) FERITHRUEEES  BEEEK
sale is recognised upon the execution of a binding JT #4132 32 PR R 1) A8 R R T A% R
sale agreement, the issue of an occupation permit E URBEITHRUHEE B 21K
and a completion certificate by the relevant Rig - TERBELEMEHER
government authorities and fulfilling the terms of FUCA (BN 2 F 7B HE A [ Bgs £ 2] 7
the binding sale agreements, which is taken to be HRZERNEEE) - SHERKA
the point in time when the risks and rewards of Z BRIEEYMEKRNIRE ED B
ownership of the property have passed to the NHEAFBRRARIERE RS -

buyer. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to date of revenue recognition
are included in the statement of financial position
under pre-sale deposits.

(b) Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when b EREEKMANRERNEEZEREFER
goods are delivered at customers’ premises which P (AR PEEXEmEAEED
is taken to be the point in time when the customer A 78 2 Bz B2 0] 3 ) BE D B ) FERRA
has accepted the goods and the related risks and AR e WATBIEIENKEMIEE
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value o WEIRERE S -

added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(c) Building management service income is recognised c BFEERFEVUARREERE A
over the relevant period in which the services are AR RALR
rendered.

(d) Revenue from hotel operations and related services (d BELEREBRSE ZWAGERE
is recognised when the relevant services are B RIS R FERALR ©

provided.

151



152

Poly Property Group Co., Limited | Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
as it accrues on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment is
established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably. Construction revenue is
recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to (a) the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to estimated total contract cost
or (b) the amount of work certified by independent
engineer with reference to the completion of
physical proportion of the contract work. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Transaction of foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or completed.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs.
Grants related to depreciable assets are presented as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset
and are released to income over the useful lives of the
assets. Grants related to expense items are recognised in
the same period as those expenses are charged in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and are reported
separately as other income.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party, is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii)  one entity is an associate or a joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of

the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

4.

TESHEEGE)
BEAL (&)
by (&)

(vi) ZEES/MH@ Eﬁﬁﬂbﬁﬂzj\i
il RS

N

WDBFEC ATHZES
ﬁé?&?/gjj jzzi/\iﬁj*%
ER(HUZEEIQR)ZEE
%TIEAE\O

(vii)

A AALTHERRBXEREEBEAL
HEERRI SR  AHAZEXXZAL
lf'/E E’]%ﬁ%ﬁx—g °

T THBRE R 2 EEHRIR

R ERM T4 Pt 2 N &= E & 5 BURES -
ARRIBFAHELKBEEMEREANRS
Mz BENBEREAEEDL G RRE -
& E bt MARRE R R DRI B B KR
AEBZEMRAEMEL - BERAERAE
BRINZEbE

ZEEF REABRREFER - BR8]
AHAETE - MERERTEFEER AL
HiF] - ﬁl”/u R R RIS
R BRI EE R R AMREME - BIRE
71 AR R AR EATR RERR o

ATREBARKRZ EEZEREENBEHR
A TRARER 2 EEERR - AR
REREHFHRRYRFEEEMNBE
FREEERERBE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 &

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties

under development and held for sale
Management reviews the net realisable value of the
Group’s properties under development of
HK$57,432,956,000 (2013: HK$53,382,138,000) and
held for sale of HK$27,247,573,000 (2013:
HK$20,544,333,000) with reference to its estimated
costs to completion, intended use and current market
environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its net realisable value. Appropriate write-
off to estimated net realisable value is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired.

In determining whether write-off properties under
development and held for sale is required, the Group
takes into consideration the intended use of the
properties, the estimated costs to completion, the current
market environment, the estimated market value of the
properties and/or the present value of future cash flows
expected to receive. Write-off is recognised based on the
higher of estimated future cash flows and estimated
market value. If the market environment/circumstances
or estimated costs to completion changes significantly,
resulting in a decrease in the net realisable value of these
properties interest, additional write-off loss may be
required. The impairment loss on properties held for
sale/properties under development of HK$458,705,000
(2013: HK$90,454,000) was made for the year ended
31st December, 2014.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of short-term loan

receivables and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31st December, 2014, the carrying amounts of short-
term loan receivables and other receivables are HK$Nil
(2013: HK$NIl) (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$26,140,000 (2013: HK$26,540,000)) and
HK$2,835,684,000 (2013: HK$2,485,427,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$27,647,000 (2013:
HK$25,933,000)), respectively.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31st
December, 2014 based on the appraised market value
by independent professional valuer. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the estimate, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment

properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised
into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

e level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

e level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

. Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates, expected future
market rents and future maintenance costs. The carrying
amount of investment properties at 31st December, 2014
was HK$10,053,392,000 (2013: HK$8,522,004,000).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discounted rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31st December, 2014 was
HK$307,612,000 (2013: HK$484,204,000). More details
are given in note 20.

PRC enterprise income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. As a result of the fact that certain matters relating
to the income taxes have not been confirmed by the
local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgment based
on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision
of income taxes to be made. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will have impact on
the income tax and tax provisions in the period in which
the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in Mainland China. The
provision of LAT is based on management’s best
estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the completion
of the property development projects. The Group has not
finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the tax
authorities for its certain property development projects.
The final outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded.
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Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners of the Company
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 39 and
40, cash and cash equivalents, equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profits, perpetual capital
instruments and non-controlling interests.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total bank and other borrowings
plus notes payable less bank balances, deposits and
cash. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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6. Capital risk management (Continued)

During 2014, the Group’s strategy, which was

unchanged from 2013 and the gearing ratios at 31st

December, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:—

Total bank and other borrowings
(note 39)
Notes payable (note 40)
Less: bank balances, deposits and cash

Net debt

Total equity

Total capital

Gearing ratio
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Financial instruments

(@) Categories of financial instruments

The Group

Financial assets
Held-for-trading investments
Loans and receivables

(including cash and

cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale investments
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

The Company

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and
cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale investments
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
held-for-trading investments, available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, short-
term loan receivables, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from joint ventures,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, bank balances,
deposits and cash, trade and other payables,
property rental deposits, amount due to the
ultimate holding company, amount due to an
intermediate holding company, amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, amounts due to joint
ventures, loan from a fellow subsidiary, notes
payable and bank and other borrowings. The
Company’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from
subsidiaries, other receivables, bank balances,
deposits and cash, other payables, amounts due to
subsidiaries, amount due to an intermediate
holding company, notes payable and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the

financial risks of changes in foreign currency rates,

interest rates and equity security prices. Market risk

exposures are further measured by sensitivity

analysis. There has been no significant change to

the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner

in which it manages and measures the risk. Details

of each type of market risks are described as

follows:—

(i)

Currency risk

The Group’s revenue are mostly denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”), however, the Group
also undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence
exposures to currency risk. In addition, the
currency risk also arises from funding to its
subsidiaries in the PRC. These loans to its
subsidiaries are normally denominated in
RMB while the sources of funding are usually
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars (“US$”).

Since Hong Kong dollars is being pegged to
US$, material fluctuations in exchange rates
of Hong Kong dollars against US$ are remote.

The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management
manages its currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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7. SRMIAR(E)
(b) B¥EREEEHERBEK

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) miEEK (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (iy E¥mEpe(E)

Apart from the bank loans of
HK$3,892,528,000 (2013: HK$780,000,000)
and notes payable of HK$3,900,000,000
(2013: HK$3,900,000,000) which was
denominated in US$, the following table
details the Group’s exposure as at 31st
December, 2014 that the currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency and US$ of the entity to
which they relate.

Bank balances, deposits and cash
Short-term loans to subsidiaries

Gross exposure arising from
recognised assets

RiITRERT FRERE
BETHBARZEHER

BREEMELEL
B[ 0 B8

% 3,892,528,000/8 jt( = =
— =4 : 780,000,000 7T ) §R
7 B 3 & 3,900,000,0007% JT
(== — =4 :3,900,000,000
PBTC) B BIRAZETTEHESD
TERFINAEBR =T —HEF
+-—A=+—BXEANUEEE
BIGEEBRETUINZ B’
SIEvERREEXBEME
2 BERER

2014 2013
—E-NFE —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TT
175,911 132,194
8,476,799 8,309,720
8,652,710 8,441,914
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit after tax and
accumulated profits that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2013.

2014

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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2013

=k —T-=F

Increase Increase

(decrease) in (decrease) in

Appreciation profit after  Appreciation profit after tax
(depreciation) tax and (depreciation) and
in foreign accumulated in foreign  accumulated
exchange rate profits exchange rate profits
BRI BREL1R ) A

SNEER RRFEF SRR R AR
AEGEE) #n0Ed) AEEE) EBNORL)
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THET

Renminbi AR 5% 547,640 5% 534,298
(5%) (547,640) (5%) (534,298)
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7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits,
fixed-rate bank and other borrowings and
notes payable (see notes 37, 39 and 40 for
details of these deposits, borrowings and
notes). The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. Currently, the
Group does not have hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need

arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, amounts due from joint ventures,
amount due to the ultimate holding company,
amount due to an intermediate holding
company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, bank balances and variable-
rate bank and other borrowings (see notes 23,
32, 33, 34, 35, 37 and 39 for details of these
balances, bank balances and borrowings). It
is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings
at floating rate of interests so as to minimise

the cash flows interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR and
benchmark rate in the PRC arising from the

Group’s US$ and RMB borrowings.
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset and liability outstanding at the end of
the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group'’s profit for the year
ended 31st December, 2014 would decrease/
increase by HK$57,983,000 (2013:
HK$46,244,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank and other borrowings and
bank balances.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from its investments in held-for-trading
investments and listed available-for-sale
investments. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

7. SRMIAR(E)
BEEREEBERBEE

(%&)
iz Ak (&)
(iii) HAEE R b

AEERKERNFIEEERE
Ko b AT i R T I R X
RERER EEEEFAES
TRER ZIREHS AT Z
FRK - AEE 2 REEREA
BRI EEPNEBIAHREZ

investments with different risks. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
listed equity instruments quoted in the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower:—

e Profit for the year ended 31st December,
2014 would increase/decrease by
HK$36,000 (2013: HK$40,000) for the
Group as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments;
and

o Investment valuation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$2,852,000
(2013: HK$3,803,000) for the Group as
a result of the changes in fair value of
listed available-for-sale investments.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current assets amounting to
approximately HK$53,876,791,000 at 31st
December, 2014.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and
other borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as
a significant source of liquidity. As at 31st
December, 2014, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$16,214,569,000 (2013: HK$7,766,831,000).
Details of which are set out in note 39.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The Group
2014 “2-MF
Non-derivative financial liabilities3: 674 £ R & &
Trade and other payables EATR5 RAMER
Property rental deposits nxReEe
Amount due to the ultimate R SEIZRAFZE
holding company
~ interestfree ~RirE
- variable rate - 287%
Amount due to an intermediate  FE{ — iR 2R A7)
holding company B
- interest-free -Rit8
~fixed rate -[Eefl®
~ variable rate - FEfE
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNBAFRE
subsidiaries
~ interestfree ~-TiE
- variable rate ~ZEf%

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

EAHBLAEER
RRE

~ interestfree ~AiE
~fixed rate ~[EeflE
- variable rate - FEfE
Amounts due to joint ventures  [EFfAE4FFTE
- interest-free ~Tit8
Bank and other loans HITRAMER
~fixed rate ~ BRI
- variable rate - FEf%
Notes payable ENZE
fixed rate ~ BRI

Loan from a fellow subsidiary

~RRZNBAAER

Financial guarantee issued B L HHER
- Maximum amount -RRERE
guaranteed (note 51) (Mizts1)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFEF+-_A=+—HIFZE

7. SRMIAR(E)

(b) MBEBREEEERBE
(#&)
REBE SRR (E)

RBEE KA RERE

&

Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than 3 months to undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 1year 15 years Styears  cashflows  31.12.2014
R
g8-mE
=
&Y =faA RTERE  =1-8
AR OR-fiR -E2ZfAA E-f -28% REENE RESE IR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién TR Tin TR TiEn Thn TEn
2,320,201 596945 9240380  2,279,59% 14678 14451800 14451800
- - - 100,929 15,125 116,054 116,054
- - 24,43 - - 24,43 24,43
590 - - 35,312 451,014 - 486,326 413,803
- - 26,856 - - 26,856 26,856
6.74 - - 923,418 - - 923,418 886,076
6.57 - - 04,887 - - 04,887 62,327
19,293 68,619 2,145,277 - - 2,233,189 2,233,189
727 - - 185,267 - - 185,267 177,215
- - 264,744 - - 264,744 264,744
685 - - 78,706 - - 78,706 75475
6.33 - - 1,387,537 - - 1,387,537 1,334,701
- - 10,391 - - 10,391 10,391
814 - 2,304,242 7,578,789 12,997,681 - 22,880,712 19,764,826
610 45,00 2248257 8300547 21,092,361 04204 32,890,610 28918769
475 - - - 4,482,566 - 4,482,566 3,900,000
6.00 - - - 227,848 - 227,848 227,848
2884515 5218063 3026635 41,632,195 T 80735154 72888317
4,026,557
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

2013

Non-derivative financial liabilities3E 574 £ B & &

Trade and other payables
Property rental deposits
Amount due to the ultimate
holding company
- interest-free
— variable rate
Amount due to an intermediate
holding company
~ interest-free
~fixed rate
Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries
~ interest-free
~ variable rate
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
- interest-free
— variable rate
Amounts due to joint ventures
~ interest-free
Bank and other loans
~ fixed rate
- variable rate
Notes payable
—fixed rate
Loan from a fellow subsidiary

Financial guarantee issued
~ Maximum amount
guaranteed (note 51)

“E-cF
B85 REMEN
nEfske
EASEERATE
-Tite
— 8=

ER-RrRERAT
72
—Fit8
(A=
ERRZHMBAANEA

-Fit&
3%
ERHBAT
FERRRTA
~Tit8
— 8=
A
~Fit&
BIRABER
~BEHE
~HBHE
ENRE
—~BERE
~RRZHEATER

BRI ZHBER
~BRERE
(B3E51)

7. SRMIAR(E)

(b) BAFSEPREEEBRREE
(%)
REBESRE(E)
3 5 5z 1A =]
RBEERANEEMRE (E)
REME (&)
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than 3 months to undiscounted amount at
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years Styears  cashflows  31.12.2013
E-zE
124
TEY =R RTRRS =+-f
ERAE  On-@R -2=R E-F —E1% RENE ikt ZEHE
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL TER
1,236,995 536,327 6,442,513 767,336 14410 8,997,581 8,997,581
- - 6 74,59 20424 95,026 9,026
- - 24249 - - 24,49 24249
627 - S B0 - SoBY 41340
- - 25474 - - 25,474 25,474
7.0 - - 977 - - 977 935
113,644 89,260 1,835,518 - - 2,038,442 2,038,442
7.7 - N - S8 177205
- - 217,540 - - 217,540 217,540
0.67 - - 1,638,361 - - 1,658,361 1,591,985
- - 31,081 - - 31,081 31,081
925 - 1,285 5,795,094 9,196,225 - 14992604 12532911
6.76 443 696,298 9,679,058 18,913,635 100735 29,390,169 25,587,714
475 - - - 4,482,560 - 4,482,560 3,900,000
6.00 - - - 227,848 - 227,848 227,848
1,351,082 1323190 26,325,147 33,662,200 135569 62,797,194 55,861,804

875,949
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Financial instruments (Continued)

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The Company

2014
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Bank loans
- variable rate
Notes payable
—fixed rate

Financial guarantee issued
- Maximum amount
guaranteed (note 51)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

7.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFEF+-_A=+—HIFZE

SRTER(E)

(b) BAFSREPRERE B BRREE
(#&)
nREESEE(E)
REBEERFEREMmE (E)

AN
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective  Less than 1 3 months to undiscounted amount at
interest rate month  1-3 months 1year 15 years Styears  cashflows 31122014
i
Z2-|E
=
ik 3371 =R AERE =1-H
ERNZE  HR-ER -EZfER E-F -25f BERE bik-£2 ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tén Thx Thn TEn Tén Tén
“2-pF
FireRas
HtbERER 2,046 - 39,398 - - 41,444 41,444
ERHBARNE - - 471,847 - - 471,847 471,847
RATER
B i d 347 - - 796905 4,390,240 N N VAT Iy /LT
ENZE
—EEr= 475 - - - 4,482,566 - 4482566 3,900,000
2,046 - 1308150 8,872,806 - 10183002 9156736
BEH 2B ER
-ReERE
(BfzE51)

3,120,253
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

7. SRMIAR(E)
BREREEEERBER

(b)

(%8)

nREBESEE(E)
RBESRFREMERE (E)

The Company (continued) INNF) ()
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than 3 months to undiscounted amount at
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years Styears  cashflows  31.12.2013
Z5-ZE
125
M =fiA ABRS =1-f
ERfx  OR-fER  -Z=fA E-F —-2hf RERE pierad LEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T TiEn T TFiEn
2013 -z
Non-derivative financial HrELReR
liabilities
Other payables AN - - 29973 - - 29973 29973
Amounts due to subsidiaries  EfIBARZE - - 337,004 - - 337,004 337,004
Amount due to an intermediate  FE{ — R RIEH AR
holding company FE
~ interest-free -Ri8 - - 10332 - - 10,532 10,332
Bank loans RIER
- variable rate L 3.05 - - - 853,569 - 853,569 780,000
Notes payable EfRE
~fived rate — B 475 - - - 4482566 - 4482566 3,900,000
- S0 53613 - STIBEM 5057509
Financial guarantee issued ~ EEHZHBER
~ Maximum amount ~GRERE
guaranteed (note 51) (Hits1)

4,860,759
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair values

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair

value

The following table presents the fair value of
financial instruments measured at 31st
December, 2014 on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

e Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data

° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based
on observable market data

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

7. €T AR (%)
(0 A¥E

(i)

UAPEFEZEMITA

REFZBVHREEAF 1358
[RFEFE]FAREN=ERX
FEER R_ZE-—HFt+=
A=+ BEEEEEEGE
NE@ITANRFEZINT
R NFEFAEMGRNER
T2 RATEETDER R A
BENAEREEREREE

mEE :

. E-REBHIH) : AM
EERTSTARSET
BMEE CRERE) 5 &
AVE

o F_A&:NBERRMS
RELER T ANRE -
B ERBAYERN
A i E 0 Al R T 5 BUR
ZEERMNEEATE

. EZRBESH)  HA
EEERHALIERT
BB B 2 AR
HEATE
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g AN

=]

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair values (Continued)

@i

(ii)

Financial instruments carried at fair

value (Continued)

At 31st December, 2014, the Group had
following financial instruments carried at fair
value all of which are based on the Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy:-

Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments

— Listed -k
Held-for-trading investments

— Listed — ™

At 31st December, 2014 and 2013, the
Company did not have any financial
instruments carried at fair value.

During the year ended 31st December, 2014,
there were no significant transfers between
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

Fair values of financial instruments
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31st December, 2014 and 2013.

PR ER AR MY RE

7. €T AR(E)
(c0 AFEE)

(i)

AHEEERE

FIEEERE

(if)

LAPEHEZSMIA
(&)
MoF-—mE+=A=+—
B AKEUT2BIARN
AFESRIE 2 E—REHE
ZATENE :

2014 2013
—EF-NFE —F=F
HK$000 HK$'000
T THT
57,043 76,058
867 972
57,910 77,030

HE_Z-—NFE+_-_A=+—
BIEFE F—RERE-_HE
BT A - W EAER -

WHANFEFEZEH
TEZAYE
AEEem T HE ZRABEZK
R EKAARR - ZFHRA
BERZE—NFERZT—=
Ft+-_A=+—HBZ2A¥EL
MERNER -
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair values (Continued)

(iii) The fair values of financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined as
follows:—
The fair values of financial assets with
standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted active bid prices and ask
prices respectively; and the fair values of
other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as
input.

8. Revenue

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net amounts
received and receivable from third parties, net of
business tax payable in the PRC. An analysis of the
Group's revenue for the year is as follows:—

Sales of properties MEIHE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-F=1—HIFE

7. SRMIAR(E)

(0 DFEE)
(i) TMEERESMAEEZD
FEZUTAREE : -

ERMEREGR R - X
REBRBMBSERECSRE
E - HRFEDNENS 2GR
EERBEET MEAMESE
BEREBMBEZAFEIR
BRRBZEBRN - AATER
ZERMER S E R ARIER
BRRERENTMETE -

8. WA

WASENESE =77 B R EURIRF R 2 42
BONRENZHEEER) - AEREFR
WAZ DT

2014 2013
—E—pmE —FT—=

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHBT FET

26,435,471 27,386,840

Rental income and building management F24 W A %1€ 5 & 2 IRFEWA

service income

Income from hotel operations B E & B A
Sales of goods HEEm
Others H

938,440 874,525
196,934 199,773
123,010 123,326
814,882 40,544

28,508,737 28,625,008
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9. Other income 9. HMWA
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT THETT
Reversal of impairment loss previously £ [El:@ 1 5t E A FE UL IR R E FER
recognised in respect of other Z BB R
receivables 3,218 13,408
Reversal of impairment loss previously B EIEF 5 EUE 2R E R
recognised in respect of trade ZREETE (M15E28)
receivables (note 28) 551 1,182
Reversal of impairment loss previously — #[EIA M 5t EUE B EKE R
recognised in respect of short-term loan 2 JEiEE518 (Fff &£ 29)
receivables (note 29) 400 300
Exchange gains FE 5 W 2 - 212,747
Bank interest income RITHBHA 128,185 146,557
Interest income from loans BERTAEREER A EMHA
to joint ventures 200,675 103,333
Interest income from loan to an associate & 3 — EjH & A A& K 2
ISR ON 382 213
Government subsidy R RE 21,538 17,799
Dividend income AR B U A 4,983 3,668
Others Hi 86,103 83,352

446,035 582,559
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10. Finance costs

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFEF+-_A=+—HIFZE

10. @& A

2014 2013
—E-mFE —Z—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TET
Interest on bank and other borrowings:—  $£77 R HAMEEF B

— wholly repayable within five years — REFRBHER 4,068,436 3,612,316

— not wholly repayable — FRAFRNBHEE
within five years 15,782 64,647

Total borrowing costs BIEERAR
Less: amounts capitalised W BEAREFIA

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose from
specific borrowings.

The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 7.16% (2013:
7.71%) for the year ended 31st December, 2014.

4,084,218 3,676,963
(3,191,148) (2,899,214)

893,070 777,749

FAEBNMEZEERNREREREE -

HE-_Z—NE+-_A=+—HIEE
EEERNLERAE716%(ZE—=F:
7.71%) °
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11. Directors’ emoluments 1. EE#M <
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten BIEEMBRIRESEFE22ERER
(2013: ten) directors, disclosed pursuant to the Listing AEBIMI R 11 2 78 (& (RERI BB AN E
Rules and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong PNEEBABENE161E) BEHERA
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to FTENSEMN TR (ZE—=F : +)E
Section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies EERzMEMT - -

Ordinance (Cap. 32),were as follows:—

Other emoluments

HitE &
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions emoluments
FeR EBRER
e  HiEA A SR mme

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TERT TET TET TET

2014 —E-ME

Chen Hong Sheng Bt A& 41 - - - 41
Wang Xu T 8 - 3,535 - 18 3,553
Xue Ming g H - 3,535 - 18 3,553
Han Qingtao BRe - 760 221 4 985
Zhang Wan Shun REE - 2,145 237 15 2,397
Ye Li Wen R - 2,573 380 18 2,971
Ip Chun Chung, Robert 3yt 200 - - - 200
Choy Shu Kwan 25 200 - - - 200
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia RES 220 - - - 220
Wong Ka Lun =X fm 220 - - - 220

Total & 881 12,548 838 73 14,340
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11. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

11. EEME (B)

Other emoluments

Hini e

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions  emoluments

ek R
we HitEr TEAL FPEME “ame
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET TAT TAT

2013 —T—=F

Chen Hong Sheng Rt & 70 - - - 70
Wang Xu T /B - 3,378 - 15 3,393
Xue Ming - - 3,378 - 15 3,393
Zhang Wan Shun REIE - 2,409 440 15 2,864
Ye Li Wen ERE - 2,449 440 15 2,904
Ip Chun Chung, Robert HiRd 160 - - - 160
Yao Kang, J.P. t W XFHL 100 - - - 100
Choy Shu Kwan ks 160 - - - 160
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia PEX 160 - - - 160
Wong Ka Lun BXRMR 160 - - - 160
Total Sl 810 11,614 880 60 13,364

In each of the two years ended 31st December, 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors
has waived any emoluments during each of the two
years ended 31st December, 2014 and 2013.

Bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performances and
comparable market statistics.

REBEE-T—NF+=-A=+—H1EMEA
FESF AEERERTAZSEI A
SIEREEN ISR AL B R 2E)
BB AE NEE_ZT-—NELE-FT
—=F+-A=+—HBUIMEFESF
MEEERETAMHS -

AEBREEEER BARBRRAIEL
Bhisat BIRmMETE AL -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

12. EEBH &

AEBRUSKSHFMALS  BEARH
M (ZT—=F: A7) EF(HEHEH
Company whose emoluments are included in the REXHEEN) c 2 T —hl(ZF—=F :
disclosure in note 11 above. The emoluments of the —ESHFMALTZMENT - -

remaining one (2013: one) highest paid individuals are

12. Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, four (2013: four) were directors of the

as follows:—

2014 2013

—T-mE —ZE—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FETT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 2,651 2,434
Bonuses 1E4T 1,040 440
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & /K4& F| 512 {2 18 15
3,709 2,889

BT (ZE—Z=ZF : )&= HHA
T Z2BE N FATAER : —

The emoluments of the remaining one (2013: one)
highest paid individuals were within the following

bands:—
2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEAH BEAH

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

Z %02 1,000,00078 7T

1,000,001 7T = 1,500,000 7 7T
1,500,001 & 7T = 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 752 2,500,000 74 7T
2,500,001 7752 3,000,000 78 7T
3,000,001 & 72 3,500,000 7 7T
3,500,001 7T ZE 4,000,000 57T




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 &

13. Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging and (crediting):—
Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (note 11)
— other staff costs
— other staff’s retirement benefit
scheme contributions

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
(included in administrative expenses)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Total depreciation and amortisation

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Operating lease rentals in respect of
— rented premises
— equipment

Impairment loss on goodwill (note 20)

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment (note 18)

Impairment loss on trade receivables
(note 28)

Share of tax of joint ventures (included
in share of results of joint ventures)

Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Loss on disposal of investment properties

Property rental income and building
management service income, net of
direct expenses of HK$5,568,000
(2013: HK$6,728,000)

FRHEXEEERAA | —F—

U 3R

BB IR I =T

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

BE—FT—ME+-A=1+—HIFE

13. BRBLADER R

BREADER BB & (GEA) ¢
8 T AR
——E%égﬁwé%(ﬁiéi11)
Hfh 8 TR
—ﬁ@;l RO @A I3

BN HEEFUR
FFATTHRA2A)
ME -~ BB MERIEBITE

FrEREHEER

ZE R &
ERAEAST ZHFEKRA
NTEEBEZEEHERS
— HEmE
— BB
B2 R EEE (K5 20)
ME - BE KRB REEE
(M5E18)
FEWE SRS
(Ffz¥28)
DMEARECEREB GI AR
BEPEREECA)
FRESFT B A A 2 Kz
HEYE - BER&EZER

R R EE R

HEREYE T 8
MERS WA REFERRS
WA (B EERAY
5,568,000 7 (=
6,728,000/ 7C))

E—_=4:

2014 2013
—F-mFE —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT
14,340 13,364
831,209 690,908
81,981 85,307
927,530 789,579
11,856 11,783
142,385 134,497
154,241 146,280
6,902 7,266
21,409,379 21,206,916
30,155 50,784

- 1,815
176,592 68,847
3,911 -

- 3

38,604 -
(586) (1,589)

964 702
11,828 10,605
(932,872)  (867,797)
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14. Income tax expense 14. FRISHAX
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THETT
The charge comprises:— P B
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEH - -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEBRMAEH
— current year — REE 901,481 974,092
— under-provision in prior year — BEFERETRE - 10,594
901,481 984,686
LAT + IR ER 810,201 1,123,947
Deferred taxation PRI IE 315,447 111,871

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
there is no assessable profit for both years.

The PRC Statutory Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at
25% based on the estimated assessable profit for the
year.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 48.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are also subject to the PRC LAT
which is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of properties, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditure including costs of land use rights and
development and construction.

2,027,129 2,220,504

BEBNET TR AF E (b 5T FE R s F ik
FHRE165% (T — =% : 16.5%) st &
F P M E SF E 3T MR B ER B m M) - Al e Bt
BEBNESBELEE -

PEDEE R EMBRETRAFEE 2 A5t
JERBUE R 2 25% 1 & o

BRARER IR BEHNHITE48 ©

HTHENBARMAGRZHE L IEE
B WHIET S EFHER S (L EY
F TS FRIRR AT RS - B ER
RERK AR A B 7 3 B S8R ) 121 F 30%
E60% 2 REFREU -
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14. Income tax expense (Continued) 14. FR8HiBAxX (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the FRBIAR X BRSEERT 2 RB AR
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of MEBRAT -

profit or loss as follows:—

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Profit before taxation R % BT Va7 3,310,736 5,462,002
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% BRPBDEEM R 25%1HE
(2013: 25%) MIB(ZZE—=F : 25%) 827,684 1,365,500
Tax effect of share of results of associates {7 & A R 48 2 G & 3,020 (17)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PRMEB R 2 F 2 2
for tax purpose M2 223,127 9,686
Tax effect of income not taxable BRI WA 2 s &
for tax purpose (56,084) (62,533)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIEEB 2 RGTE 401,981 114,588
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B 2 I ARERHIEEE
previously not recognised ZTM_"“%’E (24,530) (51,127)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REM FDAERALE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MBARZTRMEZZE 43,201 (4,889)
Effect of land appreciation tax THIRER 2 2 (202,550) (280,987)
LAT + bR (E R 810,201 1,123,947
Under (over)-provision in prior year BIEFERENE (BEERE) - 9,853
Others HAh 1,079 (3,517)
Tax charge for the year FAFIBRX 2,027,129 2,220,504
15. Dividends 15. RE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET

Dividends recognised as distribution FAEBRRDIRIE :
during the year:—

2013 final dividend of HK$0.223 —E-FREKRE
per share (2013: HK$0.218 for 2012) BR0223 BT (ZT—=%F:
—F—= EZton 2187%7T) 812,754 794,465
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15. Dividends (Continued)

No interim dividend was paid for both years.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK$0.076 per share for the year
ended 31st December, 2014 (2013: HK$0.223 per
share).

16. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share for the year is based on the following data:-

Earnings:— BF

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

REMBRRE

15. RE (&)
R {4 49 4 R o B AR, o
AAREERES REE - —ME+—

A=+—HIEFE 2 RHAKREEFK0.076
BIL(ZE—=F : &%0.223EF7T) °

Number of shares:—

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares on share options

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

The weighted average number of shares has been
adjusted for the shares issued during the year ended
31st December, 2014 as set out in note 41.

16. BRREF|
FRBREARREERTTIRE T 7805
HE
2014 2013
—F-mE =
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
RR B A AERERLRF
929,448 2,715,626
2014 2013
—F-mFE  ZT=
Rirerg -
HEBREARTZ
BT hnAE S 198X
3,645,714,876 3,633,619,939
BREMSRZERBRZ
BEEEYE 9,989,948 14,110,712
HEBREBEERNZ
3B AR hnAE 1 £X
3,655,704,824 3,647,730,651

MK EA FAE REE-T-OFE+ =
A=1+—BLEFE  KOMEFHHZ
FRDBITRMIELTAE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

17. REYE

17. Investment properties

The Group KEE

HK$’000

TETT
Level 3 fair value measurement FE=RATEFE
At 1st January, 2013 RZE—=%—HA—H 7,085,190
Additions NE 64,888
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BAMZE - BB KRB (209,899)
Transfer from properties held for sale BB EHEYE 1,299,376
Transfer from properties under development EHEERPYE 358,749
Increase in fair value recognised in the REFABERER 2 A FEEN
consolidated statement of profit or loss 1,061,102
Disposals e (181,262)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) HE R B A F (B EE47) (1,116,456)
Exchange differences M N =R 160,316
At 31st December, 2013 and 1st January, 2014 HR=-ZT—=F+-_A=+—HK
—T-mFE—-HA—H 8,522,004
Additions NE 11,613
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEWXE  BEKEE 167,993
Transfer from properties held for sale HAFEHEYE 512,776
Transfer from prepaid lease payments EaBEMNEERE 21,438
Increase in fair value recognised in the REFE IR RER 2 AT ELE N
consolidated statement of profit or loss 968,623

Disposals k= (151,055)

At 31st December, 2014

—2-mE+=A=+-A

10,053,392
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17. REYE (E)

17. Investment properties (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
31st December, 2014 and 2013 were arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by AA
Property Services Limited, an independent professional
surveyor and property valuer not connected with the
Group. AA Property Services Limited is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
were determined either on the basis of capitalisation of
rental income derived from existing tenancies or by
reference to comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market. The Group’s property manager
and the chief financial officer have discussions with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as level 3 of fair value hierarchy as defined

in HKFRS 13.

The carrying value of investment properties comprises:—

Properties held under

AEBBREVER _T-—HFR-_T—=
Ft+A=+—BZAFEDRBIEE
RIS ELEMREMEERER D
A(ERNEEMERE) ZZANGEEE
E o RTMEBBARQRTEBRIZAE
BeKE  AAGEERKIHHER
W FRB Y RETEE KR - Zh
BNRRERAHEZHEBRAZERL
EEFRB2ENEATHAFZAELR
HEXHMETE - ~AEEMEEEARE
FHBEERNEFMRIGEREGEM
wimERRXAAEEER  LWEZ2FFHK
FEHBRSE ©

AEEMERBELHERBARNES
SEENEER R Y EED - AFNAR
FERAFE - I BATRIMEREYE

RBEMRFTEZAEBREMER ZANF
BNRSBRBREEMERELERE3
SAEENATESRHNESE=R -

REMEZREERRE : -
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR TR

E R T AN A FE

2
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — RBEBZREHELD 191,000 181,700
— medium-term land use rights in the PRC ~ — FAFR B 2 fp HA £ 3th {8 F 4 9,862,392 8,340,304
10,053,392 8,522,004
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

17. Investment properties (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value

17. REYE (E)
EBRE=ZHRAFEFTEZER

measurements
Fair value at Range or Range or  Relationship
31st December,  Valuation Significant weighted weighted  of unobservable
2014 Techniques* unobservable inputs average 2014 average 2013  inputs to fair value
R-B-mE
t=h
=t-Bf EXFTBR EEAMEYY HEINETY FIRRBAUER
AFE  EERME LN ¢ %-Rf “R-=F AVENBE
HK$'000
TRT
Completed properties 191,000  Direct Transaction price HK$19,000  HK$18,025-  The higher the transaction
in Hong Kong comparison (HKS$/square feet) HK$18,487  price, the higher
the fair value
REENRINZ BRUE 5Bk 190007 180058TE RHERHS
(BT/FAR) 1848787 AFEES
Completed properties 4977455  Direct Transaction price RMB4,000 - RMB5,000-  The higher the transaction
in the PRC comparison (RMBYsquare metre) RMB44,300 RMB44,444  price, the higher the fair
value
RPEHRINZ BRUE RHEHk ARB4000TE  ARE5000m RHERER
(ARET/FHK) ARE43007 £ ATHEER
AR 44 44471
Completed properties 4884937 Income Capitalisation rate 24%t025%  5.25%t025% The higher the
in the PRC approach capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
Sl AR KA EN Ao 24%E05%  55%ES% EMCLEER -
NFEHE

*  Fair value of completed properties are generally derived using
the direct comparison approach unless reliable market
information are not available for certain properties due to their
locations or specialised function use.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is

recognised in the line item “increase in fair value of

investment properties” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit loss.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

year.

* RTYENDFE - REAERLEESH (H
R BESSEREMRZ AISETSZENNET
MR

ARy AT ARG AEREN
(A% Y ATEEM] EE R -

REANE=RLBEFEALEDL -
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The Group
Cost or valuation: -

At st January, 2013

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Transfer

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47)

Transfer from investment
properties

Transfer from properties held
for sale

Surplus arising on revaluation

Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

As 31st December, 2013
and Tst January, 2014

Additions

Transfer

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47)

Transfer to investment properties

Increase in fair value upon
transfer to investment property
recognised in other
comprehensive income

Surplus arising on revaluation

Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

As 31st December, 2014
Comprising:-

At cost
Atvaluation - 2014
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18. Property, plant and equipment

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B #& 3R R Mis:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. ¥I% - BEKRE

Furniture, Plant
Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor and  Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BR-%8

EENE  BELH g7 kX ng REREE  KEIE aif
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TERL TER TERL TAR TER TAR TER TERL
1,150,987 115,230 615,773 165,553 162,451 256,827 29253 2,496,074
29,139 - 14,873 4,009 3,867 6,502 74 59,131
17,880 - 16,373 17,460 12,230 333 18,082 82,358

- - - 42341 - 865 (43,226) -

- - (1,423) (9.270) (5,177) (20,866) - (36,736)

- - - (2,008) (4,194) - - (6,202)

- - 209,899 - - - - 209,899

- - 12,100 - - - - 12,100

30,926 - - - - - - 30,926
(48,806) - - - - - - (48,800)
1180126 115230 867505 218085 169177 243,681 4850 2,798,744
- - 75,962 18,033 13,756 357 26,275 134,383

- - . 8,291 - 475 (6,766) -

- - - 7929 74%)  (6224) - 1649

- - - (98) - - - (98)

- - (180802) . - - - (180802)

- - 9,979 - - - - 9,979

49413 - - - - - - 49413
(49,413) - - - - - - (49,413)
1,180,126 115,230 772,734 236,382 175,437 238,289 22,359 2,740,557
- 115,230 772,734 236,382 175,437 238,289 22,359 1,560,431
1,180,126 - - - - - - 1,180,126
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18. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Accumulated depreciation:-

At st January, 2013
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Elimination of disposals
Elimination of disposal of
subsidiaries (note 47)
Elimination on revaluation

At 31st December, 2013 and
Ist January, 2014

Charge for the year

Elimination on disposals

Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 47)

Transfer to investment properties

Impairment loss

Elimination on revaluation

At 31st December, 2014

Carrying values:-
At 315t December, 2014

At31st December, 2013

ZithE:

R=Z-=%-H-A

Bi A%

EENR

i E R

L EME AR (Mt 47)

BfihHH

RZZ-ZE+-R
=t-BR=F-I&
—-A-R

RN

it E 3

HENE AR
(Hizk47)

B

HEEE

EffRHY

=

R-2-BETA=t-R

R -
R=2-ME+ZA=1-H

RZE-=F+-A=+-H

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

18. M3 - BB N&RE (E)

Furniture, Plant

Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor and  Construction

properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles ~machinery in progress Total
Bl - RE

EENE  HELH S E RE BEREE REIE Chl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr Thr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn Thr  Tin
- 36,775 158,055 89,454 64,675 213,031 - 562,590
610 - 4112 2479 1,724 5,493 - 14418
48,196 2,305 26,139 27,040 22,524 6,293 - 134497
- - (1,423) (8,291) (3,028)  (20,207) - (32,949)
- - - (945) (1,789) - - 2,734)
(48,800) - - - - - - (48,800)
- 39,080 167,483 109,737 84106 206,610 - 627,016
49,413 2,304 34,969 27,863 21,819 6,017 - 142385
- - - (7,144) (7,081) (6,012) - (20,237)
= = = (60) = = = (60)
- - (12,809) - - - - (12,809)
- - - - - 3911 - 391
(49,413) - - - - - - (49,413)
S H384 209643 13039 9884 210,526 - 690793
1180126 73846 563091 105986 76593 27763 22,359  2,049764
1,180,126 76,150 680,112 108,348 85,07 37,07 4850 2,171,728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B #& 3R R Mis:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:—

18. M3 - BB N&RE (B)

& BEFEFRMT -

Btz - BFE &R EE B ERERAN

Hotel properties 2% BRI 2%
Leasehold land over the lease term HE 1 1278 40 B
Buildings 2% — 18% BF 2%—18%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  20% Rfh - REREZE  20%
Motor vehicles 20% YREs 20%
Plant and machinery 5% —23% VS = 5%—23%
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THETT
The carrying value of hotel properties, ERYH G AT G X FE
leasehold land and buildings ZBEWE  HETHRETF
located at: Z BREIE
— Long-term leases in Hong Kong — REBZ REBELD 91,983 94,853
— Medium-term land use rights — A Bz B s P
in the PRC 1,725,080 1,841,535
1,817,063 1,936,388

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties at 31st
December, 2014 was arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by AA Property
Services Limited, an independent professional surveyor
and property valuer not connected with the Group. AA
Property Services Limited is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation were
determined by either discounting the construction cost
or arrived by the income approach, whereby the income
derived from the hotel operations with regard to past
trading accounts are capitalised at an appropriate rate of
return to arrive at the value of the property interests with
due allowance for outgoings and expenses. The Group's
property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

AEBBENWER _ZT—NFE+_H
=+t RAZAHELBILEX B EMRY
EEEMREYWEBREER AR (BALE
B ERE) IR B AEEE - REY
EBEHRARRABDNEBHNEMSES 2K
8 AEAEERMINE AR LR
BAMRETHEZER - ZAHETHER
PR LA RAWNEEE - AIRE
BEHERAEBERFRE CE 2 BIE XK
WAER( - AEHMEERZEE - I
AR R ERFEEBE - AEEY
XEEBAMEEMBEERSERAGE
R B L ER R R ERR M EESER - A
BRI TRARFEMBRE -
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18. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties measured
at the end of the reporting period is categorised as Level
3 of fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

Information about Level 3 fair value

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

18. M3 - BB N&RE (E)

RBERRFEZAEBBENE L AT
BNRSBRRBEEWHRELEAE13
HAABEN R ESRFEE =4 -

FHRF=RAVEFEZEHR

measurements
Fair value at Range or Range or  Relationship
31st December,  Valuation Significant weighted weighted  of unobservable
2014 Techniques*  unobservable inputs average 2014 average 2013 inputs to fair value
H-2-ng e WE
tZA=t-H EXFTRE Y3 WEYS  ATRREARER
MAYE fAERf*  BARE “2-mF —2-zF  DVENEE
HK$'000
TR
Hotel property in Beijing, 535,823 Income Capitalisation rate 7% to 9% 9.2%  The higher the capitalisation
PRC approach rate, the lower the fair value
R ROEEYE LN uN(dis 7% % 9% 92%  AMMLiERE
NFEBE
Estimated profits from RMB6,800 RMB6,900  The higher the estimated profits,
operations the higher the fair value
(RMB/square metre)
BEfEN ABBos007  ARB6007 EEENER  ATEER
(ARE/FHK)
Hotel properties in Wuhan 644,303 Cost Adjustment to 10%-20% 10%-20%  The higher the discount
and Guiyang, PRC approach construction cost rate, the lower the fair value
(Discount rate on
building cost)
RPERZRER RAE BEAATE 10%20% 10%820%  fRFHE - AFELE
HIBENE (BFRAMRE)
Construction cost RMB4,700 - RMB4,700-  The higher the construction
per square metre RMBY9,700 RMB9,700 cost, the higher the fair value
BYNRRERA ARE4700nE ARK4700nE RERFHS  ATEHS

*  Fair value of completed properties are generally derived using
the direct comparison approach unless reliable market
information are not available for certain properties due to their
locations or specialised function use.

Surplus on revaluation and exchange adjustment of
properties held for own use are recognised in other
comprehensive income in “Surplus arising on
revaluation of properties”.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

ARE9700T  AK%9,7007

* BTYENAFE—REAEELEEFH (A
W ESETEREMBRS Al EMEERNET
YIZEBRIN) ©

FFE MR 2 BB ME X BEIIRN
Hiv 2EBAZ [MEEEH B R -

REAE =RYBEFAEASLEDL -
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19. Prepaid lease payments

deductible for income tax purpose.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B #& 3R R Mis:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. A HEERE

The Group
REE
2014 2013
—EF-NFE —ZFT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REEzANEERIABLE
comprise:—
— Medium-term land use rights — A Bz B s P
in the PRC 391,280 424,573
Analysed for reporting purposes as:— BEREIFRFTEZDNAT :
— Current asset — REEE 11,523 12,189
— Non-current asset — IERBEE 379,757 412,384
391,280 424,573
20. Goodwill 20. HE
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—F-mFE ZF=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Cost:— PO
At 1st January and 31st December R—A—HER+=-A=1+—8H 816,630 816,630
Accumulated impairment losses:— ZFHRERE
At 1st January W—HA—H 332,426 263,579
Impairment loss for the year FARERRE 176,592 68,847
At 31st December WNt+=—_HA=+—H 509,018 332,426
Carrying amount:— FRmEE :
At 31st December R+=—A=1+—H 307,612 484,204
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be TEHAY R B A RS
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20. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill of HK$307,612,000 as at 31st December,
2014 (2013: HK$484,204,000) acquired through
business combination has been allocated to certain cash-
generating units within the property development
segment. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the
management by estimating the recoverable amount of
these cash-generating units based on value in use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projection
for the specific property development project based on
the financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10% (2013: 10%).

Key assumptions used in the value in use
calculations

The following describes the key assumptions on which
management has based its cash flow projects to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:—

Revenue from the property
development project

WMEERER ZWA

Cost of construction

RHBEXEEERAAF | —T—FFH

BB IR I =T

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-A=1+—HIFE

20. BE(8)

SERECRESEL BN ZREE
B

RZZE—MF+=—A=+—8 - iﬂ%ﬁ%
EHB E‘J?ﬁéﬁwmuoooﬁ%m(

— =4F : 484,204,000/ 7T) B D IJ%%
BROIBAHE ?iﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ o BIRE
BEFREBERE 5£4$E+¢t%fﬁfi>§¢$
AR T IREl B E A EI TR ERERR © Z
EERERFTH - LAEZ%%’*E@%&Z
METEE BER AR TYERBRIEBERE
EEEE/MLETE E'J Eﬂimugfg EUF‘ﬁﬁﬁ ZTEIE
KE10%(ZE—=%F : 10%) °

AEERAEERMRAZEER
=

W FAEREEHBREARE - (5
RERETRRFEKIR 2 EE/RE

The selling price is estimated by management by reference to the average
selling price of a similar property in the relevant locations

BEE2EREMEEUNE 2 FHEERZEE

The cost of construction is estimated by the engineering department based

on the projected cost to completion of the project

A

As at 31st December, 2014, due to decline in expected
revenue from the relevant project companies, the
recoverable amounts of these project companies as
separate cash-generating units are estimated to be lower
than their carrying amounts and an impairment loss of
HK$176,592,000 (2013: HK$68,847,000) was
recognised for these project companies in 2014. As the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units had
been reduced to HK$307,612,000, any adverse change
in the assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable
amount would result in further impairment losses.

T2EMRIBIA B 55 T 2 TR AN ET 2 EERN AR

R-_ZE—ME+-A=+—8 ARkH
HREE ARIMTEHRA TR - FEHLE
BE AR (EARMERIR G EAEL) AT
EleFEORERAE R —NFHI
ZI15H QR ERRERIE176,592,000%
TL(ZZT—=4 :68,847,000/87T) - AR
BeEABENMNTKRBSEERIE
307,612,000 7¢ + (E{A] ARG E AT Uk [
SRENBRO TN EBE — P RIE
518 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B #& 3R R Mis:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

21. Interests in subsidiaries 21. R B AR 2 &
The Company
AT
2014 2013
—E-NFE —FT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - K AE 539,794 266,794
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st RRARRZE—WF+_A=+—HZ=E
December, 2014 are set out in note 56. BB AR Z FIHE A E56 ©
The following table lists out the information relating to TR AEEABERIFERERS GE
the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non- ZR ) B A RIMER - AT 2,
controlling interests (NCI). The summarised financial B B 75 & R 45 (] A Rl B 85 2 BT FT

information presented below represents the amounts RENEH -
before any inter-company elimination.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

21. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued) 21. RMtB ARl 2R (8)
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 BE-Z-NFE+=-A=+—HLEFE

REE REI
RAUEHE RHABAIR  Poly Plaza
LBRF  BEMRE  GeR% EiE Limited
Company Name tEEX Ex HFRER HRER RAKE
NAEH BRRE  ARL2A AL A ARAF
HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER TR TER TER

NCI percentage FERERADL 49.90% 49.00% 49.00% 42.00% 25.00%

Current assets MEEE 2,250,111 1,119,594 1,089,980 1,169,340 259,386

Non-current assets FnBEE 3,516 2,352 43,578 61,500 1,245,813

Current liabilities mEBE (647,979) (70,2350  (552,239)  (727,007)  (160,045)
Non-current liabilities ERFBE - - - - (391,904)
Net assets BEFE 1,605,648 1,051,711 581,319 503,833 953,250

Carrying amount of NCI FEREREREE 801,218 515,338 284,846 211,610 238,313

Revenue 'O 1,814,571 18,032 645,719 256,508 164,441

Profit (loss) for the year FREF (BE) 563,744 133,363 51,418 (15,649) 7,768

Other comprehensive income £ E {1 2 E KA

for the year - - - - 10,169
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZEHA (E18)

(loss) for the year ok 563,744 133,363 51,418 (15,649) 17,937
Profit allocated to NCI AT IEE R 281,308 65,348 25,195 (6,573) 1,942
Dividends paid to NCI X FIEERIERR S - - - - -
Cash flows (used in) from T (FTR)ETE

operating activities BeT (890,862) 8,566 170,930 55,461 59,076
Cash flows from (used in) RETEHME(FTH)

investing activities HER 164 - (936) (1,144) (12,253)
Cash flows used in BETHMARER

financing activities - - (920,085) (222,981) (45,169)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

Company Name

DAL

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Profit allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating

activities

Cash flows used in investing

activities

Cash flows used in financing

activities

Poly Property Group Co., Limited | Annual Report 2014
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21. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

FRERAEZADLL
RBEE
FRBEE
nBAE
FRBAME
EE#A
SRR BRI (E

LN
FRRA
FREBZERA

FRZERALE

DB T IFERERE
ST RBERR S

REZDHERER

RERSAARENA

BEZPMARER

=PAN

jLa =]

BAREER R P

21. R A B2z (48)

BE_EF-=F+-A=t—HLHFE

RERE Bl
R 2 RFRIR  Poly Plaza
HERFM  BMRF  GeRE FiE Limited
tBEX B% ARAR REER  RMAE
BRRA BRAR] N ] BRAA]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TER TER TET THET
49.90% 49.00% 49.00% 42.00% 25.00%
3,078,373 1,081,840 2,232,804 1,511,683 271,819
8,936 3,106 45,850 61,861 1,254,311
(2,050,255) (168,285)  (1,749,405) (794,371) (167,791)
- - - (259,494) (423,026)
1,037,054 916,661 529,249 519,679 935,313
517,490 449,164 259,332 218,265 233,828
1,502,167 51,704 1,528,327 473,863 151,773
490,030 11,095 154,826 57,634 12,950
21,099 22,496 11,156 13,509 32,608
511,129 33,591 165,982 71,143 45,558
244 525 5,437 75,865 24,206 3,238
62,375 - - 47,250 -
1,363,117 335,042 472,771 84,696 57,319
(16) 4) (494) (301) (2,352)
(588,446) (449,989) (371,905) (97,691) (53,520)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

Interests in associates 22. R E QT 2R
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in associates F B4 A 7] 2 3E IR AR 323,980 323,980
Share of post-acquisition losses DIEUEE & B8 M
and reserves, net of dividends received KB WAL 2 17,717) (5,639)
Goodwill EES 1,660 1,660
307,923 320,001

In June 2013, the Group disposed of 30% equity interest
in BB AR R P i ZE B B R A &) with carrying
amount of HK$43,649,000 at a consideration of
HK$18,750,000 resulting in a loss of HK$24,899,000.

Amounts due from associates iGN F R
— Interest-free — TFE
— Fixed rate of 8% — BEIEF = 8%
— Fixed rate of 8.9% — BEE = 8.9%

The amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand
except HK$50,628,000 (2013: HK$9,494,000) are
repayable within one year.

RZE—Z=ZF~A  AEBNURE
18,750,000 /8 7T & B B AR 1 3R R B Hh =
MEBRRRZI0%BE(ERBES
43,649,000/ JT ) - tE£B B
24,899,000 T °

2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
2,788 215
50,628 9,494
347,481 458,165
400,897 467,874

BREAFIES AEEE © (£ 50,628,000 7T
—E =4 9494000/%71)/,\BA—¢
Wai@&\wﬁﬁ% RIE/BEESKIEE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

22. Interests in associates (Continued) 22. REg&E NEl 2 s (58)
The summarised combined financial information in BREARNEEK SN F 26 FHEE R
respect of the Group's associates is set out below:— o -
2014 2013
:g_qz — 7 —fﬁ
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Total assets BEMAE 6,172,377 4,935,179
Total liabilities BfERRE (5,163,668)  (3,896,810)
Net assets BEFE 1,008,709 1,038,369
Group'’s share of net assets of associates ~ N&E[E 5 (i = AR & E/FE 307,923 320,001
Revenue WA - 25,403
(Loss) profit for the year FAN(ER) R (29,660) 874
Group’s share of results of associates AEBDHBMERNRIFEESR
for the year (12,078) 67
Details of the Group’s principal associates as at 31st AEER _ZT—WF+_A=+—HZ=E
December, 2014 are as follows:— R NR 2B ¢

Proportion of ownership interest

EHERLA
Place of Group's
establishment/ effective Held by the  Held by a
Name of associates operation interest Company  subsidiary Principal activities
S S — B
BENTER R/ &EhY HEHREE ZQRFE QRREE FEXK
BMNREEHEHSERIE PRC 49% - 49% Property agency
BRRA] H MERE
B E Y B i E 2 PRC 30% - 30% Property development

BRAA] R E MEER
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

23. Interests in joint ventures 23. REE ¥R
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—EB-mFE —ZT—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Cost of unlisted investments RELEZIFELTIREKAR
in joint ventures 627,247 406,725
Share of post-acquisition losses and DEKEEEEBERFEE
reserves, net of dividends received R B WA B (93,482) (17,014)
533,765 389,711
2014 2013
—E-OFE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Amounts due from joint ventures:— & EREFIE : -
— Interest-free — TEH R 357,508 155,778
— Fixed rate of 8% — [EEHZE 8% 3,464,644 736,562
— Fixed rate of 10.16% — BEFZE10.16% 388,550 -
— Fixed rate of 10.7% — BEEHZE10.7% 519,578 -
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — B EER =R 393,968 897,756
— 110% of benchmark rate in the PRC — 110% AR B ZEXEF =R 573,164 -

5,697,412 1,790,096

Amounts due to joint ventures:— BN & EREIA

— Interest-free — FEr R 10,391 31,081
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand. BRAREREER N ARERER -
Since the disposal of 37% equity interest in E2BR{RF|5E BHEERRIFEHEREFRLIF 7%
B 7 % B BR A 7] as set out in note 47, the Group's Z IR AR (BT RHT i 47) - NEBEER
remaining 36% equity interest has been classified as T36% ZBRAERNFRESBANEE

interests in joint ventures during the year. BRI -
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HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

23. Interests in joint ventures (Continued) 23. AEE L
The summarised combined financial information in BEAEE
respect of the Group's joint ventures are set out below:— o -

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Group's share of net assets
of joint ventures

Revenue

(Loss) profit for the year

Group's share of results of joint ventures

for the year

BEHRE
BRARR

BEFE

AEBDIERERCFEEFE

WA

FAER)EH

hEES(E)
B A ER B
2014 2013
—E-mFE =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
27,484,379 18,348,681
(26,294,465)  (17,508,510)
1,189,914 840,171
533,765 389,711
3,222,413 2,132,971
(209,842) 68,859
(76,127) 25,146
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

23. Interests in joint ventures (Continued) 23. REELECER(E)
Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at 31st AEBRZT—WFE+_A=+—RHzZ=E
December, 2014 are as follows:— ELBPE BN -

Proportion of ownership interest

BEREESLLA
Place of Group's Held by
establishment/ effective the Held by a  Principal
Name of joint ventures operation interest Company  subsidiary activities
r5HE — I Ff
BELERN R/ EEHYE BEER F0RRE LERE TIEEH
I TR T BB 88 4 PRC 45% - 45%  Theatre management
BRRA] T E Bl e
EEBRIMREERBRAA  PRC 50% - 50% Investment holding
FE AR
Profit Maker Holdings Limited BVI 50% - 50% Investment holding
EIMEZEBRAR AR REBR LS BEER
PERANEEIREGRAT  PRC 50% - 50% Investment holding
FE AR
RZ2EENEERE PRC 50% - 50%  Property development
BRRA] T E MEREE
BARRMNEFEREBRAT PRC 38% - 38%  Property development
FE MREE
SR RANEREE PRC 50% - 50% Property development

FHEARAE e MEREE

205
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

23. Interests in joint ventures (Continued) 23. REELECER(B)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLA
Place of Group's Held by
establishment/ effective the Held by a  Principal
Name of joint ventures operation interest Company  subsidiary activities
F&E — R
BELEER R,/ EEwS BEER RARRE ARFHE TEEK
BB RFI B E PRC 36% - 36%  Property development
FEERAA] B MEERE
EMRFU IR B E R PRC 50% - 50% Investment holding
BRAF R REZER
BRI EEEAER AR PRC 50% - 50% Investment holding
i REZER
LBREEEEEAER AR PRC 50% - 50% Investment holding
i REZER
FBRREEEEAER AR PRC 50% - 50% Investment holding
i REZER
B2 EEEEGREAR PRC 50% - 50% Investment holding

F REER
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Deposits paid for acquisition of land use
rights

The deposits were paid by the Group to PRC government
authority in connection with the bidding of one (2013:
three) piece of land in the PRC for property development
purpose.

Deposits paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries

At 31st December, 2014, the amount represented
deposits paid by the Group in connection with the
acquisition of subsidiaries which was mainly engaged in
property development. The acquisition was not yet
completed at 31st December, 2014.

Properties under development/
Properties held for sale

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

24 WEE L FRAESFiRe

AEBEFRERBIEDELRREREREZ —
B(CZE—=F: @) L2 BER+TEH
BRERBX Mg -

25. WEEMB AR ET&E

RZZE—NE+_A=+—HHSEER
SENBETREENEER ZME R
BEffzEE ZBARBR _T—NFE+=
A=+—HERTERK

26. BRPYE BFELEWE

The Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET THET

Properties under development located I AR BRI REFYE —

in PRC — medium term leases FRHAFR 49 57,432,956 53,382,138
Properties held for sale located IR EE S ELEYE —
in PRC — medium term leases FRERAE %Y 27,247,573 20,544,333

The impairment loss on properties held for sale/
properties under development of HK$458,705,000
(2013: HK$90,454,000) is recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31st December, 2014 due to the
estimated net realisable value is lower than the cost of
the relevant properties as at 31st December, 2014.

84,680,529 73,926,471

HRGET AT EBFEREEDER_F
—mE+=—A=1t—HBHKKAABK  #HE
E-_T-NE+_A=1+—BIEFE »
BRI ELEVE FRPMERE
[&5 18458,705,0008 t( — & — = 4 :
90,454,000 77T ) ©
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. Other inventories

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

28. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Bills receivables

Other receivables (net of allowance of
HK$27,647,000)
(2013: HK$25,933,000)

Total trade and other receivables

27. HiEE
The Group
AEME
2014 2013
—E-mF 2=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT THxT
R E 39,876 32,816
R m 57,126 23,263
BUAK Th 57,563 61,746
154,565 117,825
28. EWNE Z R HAMBRX
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-MFE —ZT—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
JEUE FERFK 1,251,030 1,405,382
W REREE (12,133) (12,684)
1,238,897 1,392,698
eI ZE 204 29,420
JE U ELAth BR 3R (FOBR1E4E
27,647,000 7T)
(=2—=%F:
25,933,000 7T ) 2,835,684 2,485,427
JEWE 5 R HMEERAR 4,074,785 3,907,545
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

28. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 28. EWE S REMEEE ()

(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERZDHT

The credit terms in connection with sales of REEMERTEFPZEERHHEARN
properties granted to the customers are set out in EEWm# BBHhWEIEERY
the sale and purchase agreements and vary from EFTE - AR ASEHRERER
agreements. There is no concentration of credit risk Fr#HENEELEZERKES
with respect to trade receivables arising from sales ERUtEEFEERR -RRE S
of properties as the Group has numerous BEFHEEMME - ARBAFF30
customers. In respect of sales of goods granted to REWORTEZFHEER - Rk
trade customers, the Group allows an average EHIR 2 W E 5 R R (FOBR R AR 1
credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an BRI ¢

aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for doubtful debts at the end of the reporting

period:—
2014 2013
—F-NFE —F=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
0 to 30 days TE30K 753,089 1,180,640
31 to 90 days 312 90K 29,716 10,040
More than 90 days BB 90K 456,092 202,018
1,238,897 1,392,698
(b) Ageing of trade receivables which are (b) BHEXRBEZEKE ZE
past due but not impaired v T
2014 2013
—F-mFE ZF=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET

91-365 days 91 £365 K 456,092 202,018
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28. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b) Ageing of trade receivables which are

(o)

past due but not impaired (Continued)
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$456,092,000 (2013: HK$202,018,000) which
are past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The balance arises from sales of
properties and sales of goods of HK$453,081,000
(2013: HK$200,637,000) and HK$3,011,000
(2013: HK$1,381,000) respectively. Based on past
experience, the directors consider that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered to be fully recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for
doubtful debts of trade receivables

Balance at beginning of the year FUEEER
Exchange adjustments DEE 3¢, 58

Impairment loss recognised on trade

B &8

receivables

REMBRRE

28. W E 5 K EAb IR (45)

(b)

(o)

TLIEIE 5 BRI R 2

BHERBEZERE SR
M2 BRie ()

AEBERWE SEREREHRANBER
M B & 456,092,000 t( = =
— =4 : 202,018,000/ 7T ) Z FE W
FOR - REFIBERREERE B -
B 76 B30 4 h R (B S 1B VR R o
REFBWESEZZE T B EAE
o ZSEHRBHEVERER
ELE ' 95 5E453,081,0008 T (=
L — = 4 :200,637,0007% 7T ) &
3,011,000 o( = T — = F:
1,381,000/ 7C) - RIBBET LR -
EERABERZSERIELRE
BiE RARGEERTEEAREY
B mERDEE A 28ue -

Reversal of impairment loss previously #[El3@ 1+ B #ER 2R EE 18

recognised

FRAEER

Balance at end of the year

BWE 5 RRZREREEZ
)
2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
12,684 13,535
- 328
- 3
(551) (1,182)
12,133 12,684
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

29. Short-term loan receivables 29. EWIRERE R
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Other loans (note) Hi & (M) 26,140 26,540
Less: Impairment loss recognised W BHERZREEE (26,140) (26,540)
Movement in the allowance of short-term FWEHERzRE2EE
loan receivables
2014 2013
—F-nmE ZF=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T
Balance at beginning of the year FEH 26,540 26,840
Reversal of impairment loss previously BBl F E#R 2 REERE
recognised (400) (300)
Balance at end of the year FREH 26,140 26,540
Note: In accordance with loan agreements, the other loans carry MisE REBEERDE - HEFIR12%(ZE—=
interest at 12% (2013: 12%) per annum and repayable on F o 12%) FHERGTR - WARERER -
demand. No interest was accrued for the two years ended REBE-_Z—=FK_T—NF+A

31st December, 2013 and 2014. =+t HIEMEFELEETFE -
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HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. Available-for-sale investments

31.

Listed investments:—
— Interests in equity
securities listed in
Hong Kong (note a)

Unlisted securities:—
— Equity securities (note b)

Notes:—

30. AIHHERE

The Group The Company
rEE KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MFE —T-=-F ZF-NF —T-=F
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT FET FAT
LHRE :
—-REALETZ
BARFESH 2
s (fiisEa) 57,043 76,058 - -
ELEMES:
—RAE %(Bﬁ.&b) 79,645 79,645 78,378 78,378
136,688 155,703 78,378 78,378
Mot

(@  The interests in listed equity securities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.

The change in fair value of HK$19,015,000 (2013:
HK$26,620,000) was charged (2013: credited) to investment

revaluation reserve.

(b)  The unlisted equity securities represent investments in
unlisted equity securities in the PRC and are measured at
cost less impairment loss at the end of each reporting period
because the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Held-for-trading investments

31.

The amounts represent investments in equity securities

listed in Hong Kong. The fair values of these securities

are based on bid market prices quoted on the Stock

Exchange.

KER

EHRAESZ BHR
fExtE -

NFEZEE 19015008 T(=F —
£ : 26, 620000/%71>E¥D[5$§(—T*
F AN BEERGRHE

ENE N %?EEAEPIZ?rH:meZIS
HZBRE  ARARREEZR /TR 5
WA EZFHEAZAFE WE%%%’ETJE
BEMEPRZ KBS REEHEGE

BERE

RZEBRENEE LM BAFF2KRE -

hEEHZ A FHENRRBIzHSEE
ANEBEFTE -
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HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

32. Amount due to the ultimate holding 32. ENRAERARRIEA
company
The Group
#EE

2014 2013
—E-mEFE —ZT—=F
HK$/000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Interest-free TR 24,243 24,249
92% of benchmark rate in the PRC B EERNE 7 92% 34,056 34,056

96.5% of Benchmark rate in the PRC R EEFRE Z 96.5%
(2013: Benchmark rate minus 0.231%) (ZE—=4: &K%

FIZEF0.231%) 379,747 379,747
438,046 438,052
Less: Amount due within one year W RBBEEE T —FA

shown under current liabilities B HA Z kI8 (58,299) (438,052)
Amount due after one year R—F &2z FRIE 379,747 -
An amount of HK$24,243,000 (2013: HK$24,249,000) X TR 24,243,0008 T( = ® — = &
is unsecured and repayable on demand, an amount of 24,249,000 75 7T) Z%%Tﬁjﬁﬂ &ZEWSE%*E
HK$34,056,000 (2013: HK$413,803,000) was repayable & + $RIH 34,056,000 L (= F — =4 :
within one year, and an amount of HK$379,747,000 413/803/0007%TE)2,E\75/$—¢W£%5§ g ﬁﬁfk
which was repayable in 2017 (2013: HK$Nil). 379,747,000 8 TT(ZF—=F: T&

TO)RIZBR =T — - FEE -
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33. Amount due to an intermediate holding

REMBRRE

33. B —E R EZERQFRE

company
The Group The Company
FEE b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mFE —T-=F ZB-NF _—T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET TET TET
Interest-free TETE 26,856 25,474 - 10,532
Fixed rate of 6.4% & 7E H 2 6.4% 506,329 - - -
Fixed rate of 7.2% BEERE7.2% 379,747 935 - -
Benchmark rate in R EERIENN0.5%
the PRC plus 0.5% 3,741 - - -
Benchmark rate in R EERE 1%
the PRC plus 1% 58,586 - - -
975,259 26,409 - 10,532
The Group rEE

The amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand,
except an amount of HK$948,403,000 (2013:
HK$935,000) which was repayable within one year.

The Company
The amount is unsecured and repayable on demand as
at 31st December, 2013.

ZEREAERBLBREREE
948,403,000/ 70 (= Z — =4 : 935,000
BIL)ER—FREE -

ZNNS
A=B-=F+=A=+—R  BREA
SRR B B -
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HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

34. Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 34. B RZAKE A RIRKIE
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—B-mE —FT-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Interest-free TR 2,233,189 2,038,442
7.27% plus the movement of 7.27% hNFR B ELAEF R 7 2
the benchmark rate in the PRC 177,215 177,215

2,410,404 2,215,657

The amounts are unseured and repayable on demand. FZERIARBEERRARERER
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HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. Amounts due from (to) non-controlling 35. EUR (1) By 2~ Rl FE =B AR 3R

shareholders of subsidiaries FIE
The Group
rER
2014 2013
—E-mEFE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET T
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUS KB A RIFEIZERR IR R BIA -
shareholders of subsidiaries:—
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — i B BRI =R 303,924 303,924
— Fixed rate of 12% —EEME12% 10,127 10,127
— Interest-free —TErE 821,750 86,940
1,135,801 400,991
Amounts due to non-controlling FET BT B A R FEIE AR AR AR FR0IE -
shareholders of subsidiaries:—
— Interest-free —TFR 264,744 217,540
— Fixed rate of 6.85% —EE M= 6.85% 75,475 -
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — R R R 832,301 985,130
— Benchmark rate in the PRC —FEEEFEINT1.5%
plus 1.5% 109,876 181,342
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — B EERZE NN2.6%
plus 2.6% 171,005 203,994
—7.27% plus the movement of the —7.27% I B A
benchmark rate in the PRC &=z g 221,519 221,519

1,674,920 1,809,525

The amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand. ZEFEABEERRBRENREE -



36.

37.

RIUBEEEERAR | —T—WEFR 217

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #& $R R M

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries

The Company

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and not expected to be realised within one
year from the end of the reporting period, except an
amount of HK$4,011,203,000 which is unsecured,
interest-bearing at fixed rates of 2.45% — 4.75% and
repayable within one year (2013: HK$Nil). The amounts
due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Pledged bank deposits and bank
balances, deposits and cash

The Group

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$1,519,231,000
(2013: HK$667,953,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities and are classified as current
assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at a fixed rate
0.35% (2013: 0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon settlement of relevant
bank borrowings.

Bank balances include HK$2,060,629,000 (2013:
HK$2,771,151,000) which carry interest at fixed rates
ranging from 0.37% to 5% (2013: 1.98% to 2.84%) per
annum and HK$14,173,512,000 (2013:
HK$12,048,960,000) which carry interest at variable
rates ranging from 0% to 1.49% (2013: 0% to 1.15%)
per annum.

36.

37.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-A=1+—HIFE

PR (43) Mt I8 X B R IE

¥/

FEULPI B A B FIE A ERE - TR
AT ERMERAREBT —FRENE - X
184,011,203,0007%8 7T & EE# - 12 EE
FIZE2.45% - 4.75% T B R AR —FRE
B(ZZ—=F:8) ENNBARIKEA
AEER T EREREREE -

CEARTER RTEF
ERERE

KEE
ERARITERIERNSRETAER Z —
BIBTTEEMEBE FRITZER - B
1,519,231,000% T( = T — = F:
667,953,0008 7T) Z 7R EEE IR - LAY
B—RBITIEE  UHEARBEE -

PR RITERIR035% (ZE—=4F:
0.35%) 2 B EFFEF B - BEHEFIET
FRERNEBEBIRITEERRR -

FERITHETFF - RE2,060,629,000% 7T
—ZT— =% :2,771,151,000% 7T ) ¥ "

F037%&E5% (2T — =4 :198%F
284%) B EFHEFF B B
14,173,512,000/% t( = & — = & :

12,048,960,000 7% 70 ) ¥ /T F 0% £ 1.49%
(ZE—=%F : 0%ZE1.15%) 2 ZEEF|

8 -
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37. Pledged bank deposits and bank 37.
balances, deposits and cash (Continued)

The Company
Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from
0% to 1% (2013: 0% to 1%) per annum.

38. Trade and other payables 38.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period:—

EBEFRTER  BOTEF
EREEE ()

ENNS

BITRERN T EE0%E1%(ZF—=
7 0%ZE1%) ZIBHIE S -

FEAY B 5 e HL At AR K

REBEHRZ BN E SRR DA
T 2=

The Group The Company
rEE KAF

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MEFE —T-=-F ZFT-NF —T-—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FET FET
Trade payables B ZERR 10,719,490 5,936,039 - -
Bills payables FE 21 1,168,970 847,160 - -
Other payables H T ER R 2,781,873 2,396,136 41,444 33,876
14,670,333 9,179,335 41,444 33,876
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HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

38. Trade and other payables (Continued) 38. ENES REMBRR(E)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RBEHRZENE S ERRERR D T

/7

of trade payables is as follows: T
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—EF-mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
0-30 days ZTE30K 8,282,869 3,526,253
31-90 days 31 290K 369,830 241,356
More than 90 days #EiE 90K 2,066,791 2,168,430
10,719,490 5,936,039
The average credit period is 90 days. The Group has FHEEHRIOKR - NEECEHBY B
financial risk management policies in place to ensure bR ERBR - BIRATA BNERKES T
that all payable is within the credit time frame. BIEERFR
39. Bank and other borrowings 39. RITREMEE
The Group The Company
iy 3 | ADH
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NE —E—=F CZZ-NFE —T—=F
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FTExT FAT

Bank and other loans BITNEMER
—secured (note 52) —H R (MEE52) 20,086,196 23,653,290 - -
_ unsecured — 4w I 28,597,399 14,467,335 4,743,445 780,000

48,683,595 38,120,625 4,743,445 780,000
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

The bank and other loans are repayable as follows:—

The Group The Company
rEH NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F ZE-WE —T—=F
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET FTET FET
Within 1 year or on demand ~ —F A= EEK 20,250,526 15,455,479 780,000 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —F 12BN BB F 13,217,714 15,449,935 - 780,000
After 2 years but within 3 years MEEBRNBB=F 11,958,322 4,466,794 3,963,445 -
After 3 years but within 4 years =48 N iB:BINF 1,874,877 1,026,899 - -
After 4 years but within 5 years PUFZ BT BBAF 888,486 1,653,481 - -
After 5 years RENRE 493,670 68,037 - -
48,683,595 38,120,625 4,743,445 780,000
Less: Amount due withinone & : SR RBBEZ
year shown under —FREIEFIE
current liabilities (20,250,526) (15,455,479) (780,000) -
Amount due after one year —F 1R B EATIE 28,433,069 22,665,146 3,963,445 780,000
The Group &

The Group’s bank and other borrowings are interest-

bearing with details as follows:—

- HK$19,764,826,000 (2013: HK$12,532,911,000)

ARE B 2 R1T R E AR

B U

fixed-rate borrowings which carry interest from

6.08% to 10.00% (2013: 6.08% to 12.00%);

- HK$780,000,000 (2013: HK$780,000,000)

variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at

LIBOR plus 2.85% (2013: LIBOR plus 2.85%);

= HK$850,917,000 (2013: HK$Nil) variable-rate

borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus

3.4%;

B8R - AR

£
Ej

19,764,826,000/8 75 ( — T — =4 :

(=

12,532,911,000 % 70 ) 2 & & F| & 5

EIZ R £ 6.08% £ 10.00%:T B (=

T — = F: 1%6.08% £ 12.00% 7T
/%\) ;

780,000,000/% 7o ( = & — = F :
780,000,000 7 7T, ) th@}ﬂ g B

B BERITRIZER B 12.85% (==

—ZF: BBARTARRF

2.85%):t 8

— 850,917,000 7T (==

2R REERES
Bhn3.4%=t5

£

Pt

ICES
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39. Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

= HK$3,112,528,000 (2013: HK$Nil) variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest at LIBOR plus
3.4%; and

- HK$24,175,324,000 (2013: HK$24,807,714,000)
variable-rate borrowings which carry interest rates
ranging from benchmark rate in the PRC to 130%
of benchmark rate in the PRC (2013: ranging from
90% of benchmark rate in the PRC to 135% of
benchmark rate in the PRC).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following undrawn borrowing facilities:—

Variable rate Z BRI &
— expiring within one year ——FREim
— expiring beyond one year ——F1&fEim
Fixed rate [E] 7€ 1| &
— expiring within one year ——FREim
— expiring beyond one year ——F1&[Eim

The Group’s certain banking facilities of
HK$9,743,445,000 (2013: HK$780,000,000),
HK$4,743,445,000 of which were outstanding as at 31st
December, 2014, are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to the following ratios and conditions,
which are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions:—

(i) For banking facilities of HK$780,000,000:
(@) the consolidated tangible net worth shall not

be at any time be less than HK$24 billion;
and

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

39. RITREMMEE ()

3,112,528,000/8 o ( = & — = & :
)23 REERRBFITRE
WEM3.4%:H8 + &

24,175,324,000 8 (=& — =4 :
24,807,714,0007%8 7T ) 2 )2 8 F| K5
Bz B E AR R E A B EEF X
2130% (T —=F : IR REE
M & Z290%ZE B & & F X2
135%) 5T 2 °

R|ER - NEBE NI REREER

i

3

2014 2013
—F-nmFE ZF=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
2,999,557 751,899

11,309,949 6,635,185

1,905,063 -
- 379,747

16,214,569 7,766,831

REEE TRIT(EE9,743,445,000% 7T
(—Z — =% : 780,000,000/ 7t ) & &
4,743,445,000 8 TR = —WMF + = A
=t+—HREREE BRITFRUATHEE
KigHzZHE MESELERGEGHEERER
B BAIERT S 2 (R HE « -

(i)

$R77{=E 780,000,000 /8 T :

(@ HFEeEBFEEFENMEMAERE
#1518 72 24,000,000,000 75
I
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

(b)

the gearing ratio (the consolidated total net
borrowings to consolidated tangible net
worth) shall not at any time exceed the ratio
of 2:1.

For banking facilities of HK$3,963,445,000:

(a)

the consolidated tangible net worth shall not
be at any time be less than HK$24 billion;
and

the gearing ratio (the consolidated total net
borrowings to consolidated tangible net
worth) shall not at any time exceed the ratio
of 1.75: 1.

For banking facilities of HK$5,000,000,000:

(a)

the consolidated tangible net worth shall not
be at any time be less than HK$24 billion;
and

the gearing ratio (the consolidated total net
borrowings to consolidated tangible net
worth) shall not at any time exceed the ratio
of 1.75: 1.

If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn

down facilities would become payable on demand. The

Group regularly monitors its compliance with these

covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of

liquidity risk are set out in note 7.

At 31st December, 2014 and 31st December, 2013,
none of the above covenants relating to drawn down

facilities had been breached.

39. RITRHMEE ()

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(/&)

(b)

EEBBELX(GEREET
RSN GEEEEFEL
L) REMBERE TSR
2418e

$R1T1553,963,445,000/8 7T

()

(b)

A AT EEFENMEREE
) AN 15 1K 72 24,000,000,000 78
T &

BERBUR(GAHEEBER
BEENGEEAREEFEL
ER)REAKEITEER
1.75:1°

$R171=E 5,000,000,000 /87T

(a)

(b)

RA B A EFERE A
) 1~ 15 1K 72 24,000,000,000 7
T &

BERABLER(GAHBEER
BHEANGABNEEREL
) IMERIR EE A FE R
1.75 1 °

HMAEEZERRR  EXMZEENRA
AREREE - ARETHERETIS
REZBR - ERAAEEEERBESR
2 HE— SR BENHIEET o

RZE—NWNF+_A=F+—HR-_ZE—=
F+-_A=1+—H BESHEEZEEE
2 P REEER -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

39. Bank and other borrowings (Continued)  39. $R{T R HAiE & (&)

The Company b NN |
The Company’s bank and other borrowings are interest- RAERITREMEER S - F1BE0T :
bearing with details as follows:

-  HK$780,000,000 (2013: HK$780,000,000) - 780,000,000/ ;L( = & — = 4 :
variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at 780,000,000 7T) 2 ¥ B EEE
LIBOR plus 2.85% (2013: LIBOR plus 2.85%); BB ERITRIEREIN2.85% (=F

—ZF: BT REREM
2.85%) 5T B ;

- HK$850,917,000 (2013: HK$Nil) variable-rate - 850,917,000 87T (= F— =% : &)
borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus 2 EF R 1ﬁ§\&%¢/’§fﬁ A 2 4
3.4%; and BIN3.4%5T8

—  HK$3,112,528,000 (2013: HK$Nil) variable-rate - 3,112,528,0008 o ( = & — = 4 :
borrowings which carry interest at LIBOR plus /) 3 EEEEBBRIRITRZE
3.4%. HEIN3.4%ETE °

40. Notes payable 40. BN R

The Group and

the Company

AEBERARDF
2014 2013
—E-mF =ZZB-Z=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

At 1st January n—HA—H 3,900,000 -

Issued during the year RERNETT - 3,900,000

At 31st December Rt+=—A=+—H 3,900,000 3,900,000

On 16th May, 2013, the Group issued the 4.75% notes Eé:;‘ —=FAHA+B  REEBETR

due 2018 in the aggregate principal amount of —N\FEEFENEF4.75% 2 FE -

US$500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,900,000,000). K % #8 %8 £500,000,0003 T ( 2 E ®

The notes bear interest at the rate of 4.75% per annum, 3,900,000,00078 70 ) ° 25 2B F 5 %

which are payable semi-annually in arrear on the interest 4.75%=T B MEARBFEUAGFFRN

payment dates falling 16th May and 16th November in RAEZFHBAIAA+A<BR+—A

each year. +RA)XZfT .
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

41. Share capital

41. IR

BAREER R P

2014 2013
—E-RE —T-=F
No. of shares HK$000  No. of shares HK$000
REE THER L THT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each &R EE0.50 /L2
(Note 1) ZER(ME) - - 8,000,000,000 4,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and Ll 2ETRER
fully paid:
At Tst January B—H—H 3,644,637,046 1,822,319 3,608,437,046 1,804,219
Exercise of share options (Note 2)  {T{BE&A%E (Ff3F2) 11,045,000 16,209 36,200,000 18,100
Transaction to no-par value regime R=Z—U$=H=H
on 3rd March, 2014 (Note 3) gRzEEERD
(H3E3) 15,838,615 - -
3,655,682,046 17,677,143  3,644,637,046 1,822,319
Note 1: Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. MzE1: BER-_Z—NE=F=HERZES
622), which commenced operation on 3rd March, 2014, SEBIEE 622 ZEFE B R AUEH - K ER
the concept of authorised share capital no longer exists. RZ SN BIFE ©
Note 2: During the year ended 31st December, 2014, 11,045,000 MfizE2: REBE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIF
share options were exercised by the eligible option JZ » 11,045,000 {7 fE AL 1 & & B AR BB AX
holders, resulting in the issue of 11,045,000 ordinary HEFRFE AT - BUFE LA 14,027,000 78 7T
shares in the share capital of the Company at a total 2 HAREEET 11,045,000 R R BIAR AR
consideration of HK$14,027,000. R ERAR o
Note 3: In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in MisE3 : BREBEEBEDIFE 622 ZHEB R REHI

section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3rd March, 2014,
any amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account and the capital redemption reserve has become
part of the Company’s share capital.

IR 1137 16ME 2 BEE R =
T ME=ZA=H BOEEREIRER
fE Rl # B 2 TR SECKBEADNF
BARZ—35 o
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42. Share option schemes

Details of the equity-settled share option schemes
adopted by the Company are as follows:—

2003 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2003
Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed on 28th May, 2003 (the “Adoption
Date”) and it has expired at the tenth anniversary of the
Adoption Date on 27th May, 2013, which was in
accordance with the revised Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules effective on 1st September, 2001.

Following the expiration of 2003 Share Option Scheme,
no further share options could be granted but the
provisions of the scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects in relation to the share options
previously granted thereunder. All outstanding share
options granted before the expiration of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme and yet to be exercised remain valid.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

42. BIRRESTE

AN R A 2 B 5 S B £ B S
™=

—EE=FEREE

RARER-_ZEZT=FRAA-_+N\B (&
MBHE ) ERBN S BARREMN—IEHE
g E( = FEREE ) - &
ERBR-ZZZT—FLA—BERZEE
I EMRAETEERKMB AR HAESF
ERBI=Z—=FRA-_ttH)ER -

R-ZZ=FHBRETEERE  TAH
HE— TR ETAIRBAHE - R8I R 5L
SR BRI IR BB = A E M)
EHIETRBAORYA - MEE_ZTT=
FHEBETSERIEREMERITEZ
BRRIDABR

225
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

42. Share option schemes (Continued) 42. BRREFTEI(8)
2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) —EE=FRRETE(E)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TEREBHZ T —NFT-A=1— El
share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme held ItREAFESFEE (BEES) MBS
by employees (including directors) and movement in TEFEREFEBETZAR Tgﬁﬂﬂgﬁ
such holdings during each of the two years ended 31st REFAENED - -

December, 2014:—

Outstanding ~ Exercised Outstanding ~ Exercised Outstanding

Exercise price at during at during at
Date of grant ~ per share Exercisable period 1.1.2013 2013 1.1.2014 2014 31.12.2014
i
i I “E-|EF
—B-=f B ZB-m% 1 T=A
-B-B —E-=% -B-B —E-m% Er=[E
RUAH SRITEE TEHE R {TE 8 HROE 8 HROE
HK$
BT
Category 1: Directors
BR-E%
Chen Hong Sheng 14.7.2005 1270 14.7.2005 - 13.7.2015 8,000,000 - 8,000,000  (8,000,000) -
Bt 29.4.2008 4.790 29.4.2008 - 28.4.2013 3,500,000 (3,500,000) - - -
Wang Xu 29.4.2008 4.790 29.4.2009 - 28.4.2013 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - - -
T /8
Xue Ming 29.4.2008 4.790 29.4.2009 - 28.4.2013 2,650,000 (2,650,000) - - -
£ H
Ye Li Wen 29.4.2008 4.790 29.42008 - 28.4.2013 1,600,000 (1,600,000) - - -
£%%
Yao Kang, /.P. 29.4.2008 4.790 29.4.2008 - 28.4.2013 500,000 (500,000) - - -
kBl A FHL
Choy Shu Kwan 14.7.2005 1270 14.7.2005 - 13.7.2015 300,000 (300,000) - - -
=93k 29.4.2008 4.790 29.4.2008 - 28.4.2013 300,000 (300,000) - - -
19,850,000 (11,850,000 8,000,000  (8,000,000) -
Category 2: Employees 14.7.2005 1270 14.7.2005 - 13.7.2015 8,900,000 - 8,900,000 (3,045,000) 5,855,000
= g8 29.4.2008 4790 29.4.2008 - 28.4.2013 24,350,000  (24,350,000) - - -
33,250,000 (24,350,000) 8,900,000  (3,045,000) 5,855,000
Total all categories 53,100,000 (36,200,000) 16,900,000 (11,045,000) 5,855,000

HAEBRIA
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42. Share option schemes (Continued)

2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
11,045,000 (2013: 36,200,000) share options were
exercised during the year. The weighted average share
price at the date of share options exercised during the
year was HK$3.44 (2013: HK$5.48).

New Share Option Scheme

In order to provide incentives or rewards to the directors
and certain employees of the Company and certain
eligible persons (the “Eligible Participants”) to contribute
to the long term success of the business of the Group,
the board of directors of the Company considers that it is
in the best interest of the Company to adopt a new share
option scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28th May, 2014, the shareholders of the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the Eligible
Participants may be granted options to subscribe for
shares of the Company upon and subject to the terms
and conditions of the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme.

According to the New Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options to (i) any
director and employee of the Company or subsidiaries,
or an entity in which the Group holds an interest
(“Affiliate”); (ii) any customer, supplier, agent, partner,
consultant, adviser or shareholder of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; (iii) the trustee of any trust the
beneficiary of which or any discretionary trust the
discretionary objects of which include any director,
employee, customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant,
adviser or shareholder of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate; or (iv) a company beneficially owned by any
director, employee, consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, shareholder, adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate to subscribe for shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of
share options granted.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

42. ERERTEI(B)

—EE=FBERETE(E)
11,045,00017 ( = — = 4 : 36,200,000
) BIRERFEANEITE - NFEABIRE
BT B 2 g FaRE /3448 T (=
T—=F :548F5T) °

FiB RS S

ARMSEMAAREERE TREUR
ETABBAL([AEB2EE])HAE
EEBRENKMFLER AATNES
BRARBH B BH S AR AR

Rz -

RZT—NFRAZ+N\BRITHAQA
BRERBFERE L ARFRRFAH B
R B ([#rE ARt 8]) - Bt - &R
SEERREY TR B BIR A
EVERR R R R BB IR - DARRIE AN A 7]

B -

RIFERET S - ARREFSA RN
TEADREARBARLRE IR 2 BIAE
MBFROZBEEZRER/1ET: B
BEDERE ) ARAXMERRRAE
B A ER(BMBAR ) ZEMNE
ENEE : () AREBE AR 2 EME
P R - 2 SERH  BHRA
B BRIKBRE (I XBZABEMNR
TALZEAEFEZZTEA - KBEHR
BREATALZEMNRBERTE : AL
BRASEIBBARZENES  E
B EP HER RE SEBH &
AACEBRE BRRIABR (v AE
BB ARZENES B8 #H
ABE - R K A FEEHF K
R BERABHESEENRAR -
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New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share option granted should be accepted within 28 days
from the date of grant. The board of directors may at its
absolute discretion determine the period during which a
share option may be exercised; such period should
expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant option. The board of directors may also
provide restrictions on the exercise of a share option
during the period a share option may be exercised.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, and shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number
of shares in issue.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each individual under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue.

No share options were granted under New Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31st December, 2014.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FER T8I (B)

BT E (5)

AT 7 BR AR MR FE AR 2 B R 5T 28 B
MR - BEER T 2 HEBBEE TR
A AT 2 EAR - TR BRI SR AR
HAMBREZ REI0FER - EF
£ VA SR ETE BRI ME A T AT(E 2 BRI
RS 2 PR ) -

ARRBFGBEZTEEINFERNAT
RERJHBE  )WARFABORRELBEMZ
WHE : (i) ERREBHATAEZXAR
NEIRR 2 FEWTHE

BRSO 8 DA R AR R BET A A BB A
FHEIET 2B SR M ARTT 2 Bk
RETERATRTZBRNESHE - &
ENSBBERITRNABEZ30% °

R+ =@ A EAM - RIEF B AR E
LA R 2N 2 BT ) E Ath BB A A 51 &1 i =) 1 B1)
ATEHZERE(BEETE  FHER
MARITOE 2 BEARE) TR B 81T Al
TEITZRNDEE  TEBBEEITRG
B2 1% °

HE—T-—MmFF=A=+—ALLFE
LA AR U8 97 R R 21 83 AR



43. Reserves

The Company

At Tst January, 2013
Exercise of share options
Dividends paid (note 15)
Profit for the year

At 31st December, 2013

Exercise of share options

Dividends paid (note 15)

Loss for the year

Transition to no-par value
regime on 3rd March, 2014

At 31st December, 2014

Notes:—
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LN

RZE—=F—F—H

TR
ERBE (M 15)
FREHN

R-T—=F
+-A=+—H
TR AR
BRRE (FEE15)
FEERB
RZT—[F
“R-RE&Z
"EERH

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

43. %

Share Capital
Share option  redemption Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
BXEE
Kt BRERE i RehaA CE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR
15,621,560 42,177 23,917 1,336,461 17,024,115
193,138 (38,896) - - 154,242
- - - (794,465) (794,465)
- - - 1,725,371 1,725,371
15,814,698 3,281 23,917 2,267,367 18,109,263
- (2,182) - - (2,182)
- - (812,754) (812,754)
- - (538,920) (538,920)
(15,814,698) - (23,917) - (15,838,615)
- 1,099 - 915,693 916,792
BiaE : -
@ R-E-—MF+-A=+—R EERA"

(@  As at 31st December, 2014, in the opinion of the directors,
the reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$915,693,000 (2013:

HK$2,267,367,000).

(b)  The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of HK$538,920,000 (2013: profit
of HK$1,725,371,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

ARARAUESIETRREZRHEES
915,693,000/ L( = T — = £F:
2,267,367,000#7T) ©

KNG EABEZRAERABEENAR
A 01 75 # 7 R BRI 2 518 538,920,000 75 7T
—E—=% : %#1,725,371,000/7T) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

44.

45.

Perpetual capital instruments

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the Group
issued perpetual capital instruments (the “Perpetual
Capital Instruments”) to third parties with an aggregate
principal amount of RMB788,970,000 (approximately
HK$998,696,000).

The Perpetual Capital Instruments have no maturity date
and the Group has discretion not to declare any
investment returns. Therefore, the Perpetual Capital
Instruments are classified as equity instruments and
recorded in equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Loan from a fellow subsidiary

The amount represents loan from a subsidiary of the
ultimate holding company. The amount is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable upon expiration of the joint
venture term of Poly Plaza Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company.

The fair value of the loan at initial recognition has been
determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted using the prevailing market
rate of 6% on the date the loan was granted. The loan is
then carried at amortised cost in subsequent periods of
effective interest rate of 6% (2013: 6%).

44,

45.

KAERITEH

HE—T—MOF+_A=1T—HLFE "
ﬁ’élﬁ“‘ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬂdéﬁlﬂ((mﬂ
BEARAITHR] 682 RAREK
788,970,000 7T (#7998,696,000/87T) °

KABRTAWEBEE  MAKEAK

AEREMIRE R - Bk - ZKAE
$I,E=’\*EF%E§ s TR - WHESPBIR
JFRET AR o

—BRZNBATER

AR R B HRERAF — R B AR
ZER - ZRBEREER - THEREAER

//

ARAMBRAARNABARAT 2 A%
HEREEE -
MRS 2 Bk 2 DT TR B B

=B 2RISR 6% I 2 fEat Rk

éﬁ\/ﬁgziﬁ{ﬁuﬂ—é ;/Z;pf/ \/\féﬁ;qﬁzﬁ
B SRR AB IR A R 6% 518k (=

¢ : 60/0) °
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46. Transactions with non-controlling
interests

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without

loss of control

On 26th November, 2013, the Group disposed of 45%
equity interest in a subsidiary at a consideration of
RMB45,000,000 (equivalent to HK$56,962,000). The
carrying amount of the net assets in this subsidiary
disposed of attributable to the non-controlling interests
at the date of disposal was HK$54,171,000. Accordingly,
the Group recognised an increase in non-controlling
interests of HK$54,171,000 and an increase in equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$2,791,000. The effect of partial disposal of interest
of this subsidiary does not result in loss of control on the
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
during the year 2013 is summarised as follows:-

Carrying amount of 45% interest in
a subsidiary disposed of

Consideration received from
non-controlling interests

Changes recognised on disposal within equity

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

46. HFERERET IS

ETREYREEFREZER N
ER—EMBARIZER
MR_Z—=F+—A=-+"8 A5£EL
ER—EH B AR 45% i - REAA
EE # 45,000,000 7T (48 & 7 56,962,000 /&
To) o EEREENEE BBEGMEE
MBARCCEEFE-2REAEAR
54,171,000 7T ° At - NE B ERIEE
A& FEZS 1L 10 54,171,000 78 7T M AN A Al IR R
FE{RHE R HE N 2,791,0007%8 7T ° £ T EE
KEZEHEZERT  HEZMB AT
AEEE T —=—FARAIRREGERE
BRI -

HK$’'000
THET
PiT it & — RN BT /B8 2 B 45% HE 2t 2 BRI {E
54,171
() 4% s o B 2 (RAE
(56,962)
HERRERNRERZE (2,791)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

47. HEM B A T
£ PP B A F10 B IR A 2B A 4

during the year were as follows: — T

47. Disposal of subsidiaries

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

BE-_Z-NF+-A=t+—-HLFE

BHARAE LEER
1 FE B 3 REEE Total
BRAF@ BRAFO a5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET TET
Net assets disposal of: HERERE : -
Property, plant and equipment W BEKRE 38 - 38
Deposits paid for acquisition of WELi AR NS
land use rights 207,025 - 207,025
Deferred tax assets BRERIEEE 2,191 - 2,191
Properties under development BREMYE 88,112 820,253 908,365
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 Kk HAihBRR 127 - 127
Bank balances, deposits and cash ~ R7747F ~ FANIRE 4,470 142,603 147,073
Trade and other payables ERNE 5 REMERR (1,571) (836,076) (837,647)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  JE{ [F KKt B A T2 (197,564) - (197,564)
Amounts due to non-controlling & JEHZ %A% R T IE
shareholders (6,915) - (6,915)
95,913 126,780 222,693
Non-controlling interests El3udiiys Ty (29,933) - (29,933)
Net assets disposed of HEBERE 65,980 126,780 192,760
Gain (loss) on disposal of HERBRARER
interests in subsidiaries Yas (B518) 20,767 (99) 20,668
Total consideration BB 86,747 126,681 213,428
Total consideration satisfied by: - @REX AR : -
Cash consideration HeRE 46,835 63,291 110,126
Interests in joint ventures NEEDE 7R 39,912 63,390 103,302
Total consideration aRE 86,747 126,681 213,428
Net cash (outflow) inflow arising HEMEE RS (RE)
on disposal: - MAEHR + -
Cash consideration ReNE 46,835 63,291 110,126
Bank balances, deposits and P& 2 RITHEF
cash disposed of FakES (4,470) (142,603) (147,073)
42,365 (79,312) (36,947)
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47. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

On 21st January, 2014, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a third party to dispose
of its 37% equity interest in EEBRIRFIEHEREH
PR 2 &), which is engaged in property development
business. This disposal was completed on 28th
January, 2014.

On 13th June, 2014, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a third party to dispose
of its 50% equity interest in _DEEFIREERERA
A], which is engaged in property development
business. This disposal completed on 13th June,
2014.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

47. HEMB LT (&)

(a)

R-E-—NOFE—-—A-+—H &K
BRFE=FTL-REEBRLE
HERERARNFEHMEREZERR QA
Z37% KB ZATREMEER
X% - HEER-_Z—ONF—A
R AGE: &

R-Z-—OFEXA+=0" x&H
HE-NAIV-REEWHRLEE
REBEBRREEEARRAAZ
50% A% - A ABIESEMEERE
B HEER-_F-—HFERA+=
HIEMX °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

47. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

Net assets disposed of:—

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Deferred tax assets

Properties under development

Properties held for sale

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from an
intermediate holding company

Taxation recoverable

Bank balances, deposits and cash

Trade and other payables

Pre-sale deposits

Property rental deposits

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Deferred tax liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Non-controlling interests

Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
Gain (loss) on disposal of interests
in subsidiaries

Total consideration

Total consideration satisfied by:—
Cash consideration
Other receivables
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

Total consideration

Net cash (outflow) inflow arising
on disposal:-
Cash consideration
Bank balances, deposits and
cash disposed of

47. HEMB LT (&)

BE_EF-=F+-A=t—HLHFE

Lif ERRF China
RABZE BHRE Group® Dynasty® Total
ERRN
8 #E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL AR TAR FEL T
HEEEFE: -
0 - BEREE - - 3,468 - 3,468
REME - - - 1,116,456 1,116,456
ERREEE - - 4,589 - 4,589
BEEEME - - 7,674,941 - 7,674,941
FELEME - - 535,221 - 535,221
[EUE 5 R E AR R 589,000 503,144 298,533 6,557 1,397,234
B — R R A RIS E -
- 6,801 - 6,801
AREFIE - - 83,827 - 83,827
RITET  FRRIE 2,495 313 1,225,372 745 1,228,925
ERESREMER (590,250) (502,201) (332,217) 9) (1,424,677)
BERSE - - (4,220,955) - (4,220,955
nERSES - - - (17,114) (17,114)
JE{ — o AR A R R0E -
- (1,356,997) - (1,356,997)
e T T -
- (1,337,993) - (1,337,993)
ERFZAKBARFTE - - (531,956) - (531,956)
EXHBARE - - - (141,102) (141,102)
RIOIREMEE - - (2,091,250) - (2,091,250)
1,245 1,256 (38,616) 965,533 929,418
FE iR - - (27,735) (386,213) (413,948)
HEAE(BE)FE 1,245 1,256 (66,351) 579,320 515,470
HENBRRIERZ
oz (&588) 3 (3) 316,558 143,380 459,938
BRE 1,248 1,253 250,207 722,700 975,408
BRESARR -
ReRE 625 638 - 722,700 723,963
Hi YRR - - 5,787 - 5,787
JiN NG ek 3 - 615 - - 615
RABLEZER 623 - 244,420 - 245,043
BB 1,248 1,253 250,207 722,700 975,408
HEMEE RS (RIE)
TNFE -
ReRE 625 638 - 722,700 723,963
P& RITETR -
GHkEE (2,495) (313) (1,225,372) (745) (1,228,925)
(1,870) 325 (1,225,372) 721,955 (504,962)
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47. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

On 31st July, 2013, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of its 50%
equity interest in HERFNEBREFR IR (“
BRFER T ). The disposal was completed on 31st
July, 2013.

On 28th October, 2013, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its 51%
equity interest in BINREFMEHERIEBR A
al (“EJINERE"). The disposal was completed on
22nd November, 2013.

On 13th November, 2013, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement to dispose of 1% equity
interest in EFRFMERFEHEREZEBR 2 and
its subsidiary, BERMEXBR A A (“ESRH
Group”). The disposal was completed on 25th
November, 2013.

On 31st December, 2013, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its
entire equity interest in China Dynasty
Development Ltd (“China Dynasty”), which is
engaged in property investment business. The
disposal was completed on 31st December, 2013.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

47. HEMB LT (&)

(@)

R-_ZTE—=ZFtA=+—8 K&
By —EHEERELEER LE
RAIBREHREBR AT ([ LGERF
B ) Z250%/E - HEERZE
—=F+A=+—H7EK

R=ZZF—=F+A=+/\B ' &&§
B —HEEHRLEEREM
REEHEHEREARAR(E
MRE]) Z251%KHE - HEERZ
T—=F+—A-+-HBEK°

R-F—=F+—H+=H &&
B -—REEWHLEENER
RAEREHERZEAR QA ME
MEARBERNEXRBRAR(E
[BRNERE]) Z 1%k - HEER
—E—=F+—HAZt+HBZEK-

R-_ZT—=F+-"A=+—H ' K«
SEFIV-EEEWHEOEENK
EMEREXEBLEELREARA
AI(TEE])) z2HkiE - HEER
T =F+ZH=t+—HZEK °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

48. Deferred tax assets/liabilities 48. BELERIBEE AE
The deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised by the REBRARFEEBEFREERZBLEN
Group and the movements thereon during the current BEE/BBERHEESHNT :

and prior years are as follows:

Expenses
recognised
in profit or
loss but
deductible in
subsequent
Deferred tax assets: Tax losses period Others Total
B#ER
ERIE
RERAE
ELHEEE BEERE  HRNREX Hity Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx THER TER
At Tst January, 2013 RZZ—=F—A—H 106,938 152,874 28,262 288,074
Exchange adjustments B I A 2,905 5,195 805 8,905
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) &R R (FiizE47) - (3,443) (1,146) (4,589)
Credit to consolidated statement of st AFEREGZEIBR K
profit or loss for the year
— current year —KEE 14,841 108,089 8,287 131,217
— under-provision in prior year - BEFERETR 741 - - 741
At 31st December, 2013 and R-ZE—=%
Ist January, 2014 +-A=t—RBk
—E-pmF—-H—H 125,425 262,715 36,208 424,348
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47)  H&M B R (HiFE47) - (2,191) - (2,191)
(Charged)/credit to consolidated (¥ 8 ),/ FTAFREGE
statement of profit or loss Bax
for the year
— current year —KEE (67,114) (5,839) 105 (72,848)
At 31st December, 2014 R-2-m%

+=A=1+-H 58,311 254,685 36,313 349,309
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48. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

48. EEREEE BB (E)

Revaluation of properties

NEEL
Properties
Investment Hotel under
Deferred tax liabilities: properties properties  development Others Total
EEHBAE REM= BENE  BRTOE Hity an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHT TR TBT TR
At Tst January, 2013 RZE—-=%—-H—H 819,622 43,461 93,122 3,389 959,594
Exchange adjustments E % AR 20,461 1,101 2,176 86 23,824
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) &M B A7) (MizE47) (141,102) - - - (141,102)
Charge to other comprehensive 1B B EREM 2 EUA
income for the year - 7,732 - - 7,732
Charge (credit) to consolidated 1B 8 (T ) ERERA
statement of profit or loss Bak
for the year 258,104 - (14,286) 11 243,829
At31st December, 2013 and ~ RZZF—=
Tst January, 2014 +-h=1t-Hk
—E-mE—-A-H 957,085 52,294 81,012 3,486 1,093,877
Charge to other comprehensive Il B ERE M 2EKA
income for the year 2,495 12,353 - - 14,848
Charge (credit) to consolidated 1B 8 (T ) EAERA
statement of profit or loss BaRx
for the year 243,293 - (589) (105) 242,599
At 31st December, 2014 RIE-IE
+-A=+-A 1,202,873 64,647 80,423 3381 1,351,324

At 31st December, 2014, the Group other than its
subsidiaries in the PRC had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$376,923,000 (2013: HK$333,147,000)
for offset against future assessable profits. Such unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31st December, 2014, the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$2,749,504,000 (2013: HK$869,760,000) other than
those unused tax losses for which deferred tax has been
provided for, for offset against future assessable profits.
The maximum benefit from unutilised tax losses can be
carried forward up to five years from the year in which
the loss was originated to offset future taxable profits.

W_ZT—NFE+-A=+—8  AEE(T
BREASEZHBRMBAR) EARABAZ
5 T8 E5 18 49 376,923,000 T (=T — =
£ : 333,147,000 7T) - AR IKRER
Bt Fll o 5% F AR B) A 2 B I8 &5 18 ] R HA

+
f%l:l\o

AN RZFE—MF+=—A=+—H K
SBEHPEWBARE RS A THIERE
#92,749,504,0007% jo( — & — = F :
869,760,000 L) (2 1E BRI BB E
ZAREAIBEERIN) - AR E
At o REARIBE B 2 &M
A HEEFERINRRERT R F 2 BBz
FREB  #EKRZRF -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

48. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (Continued)

The deferred tax assets arising from the above unused
tax losses have not been recognised in the consolidated
financial statements due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

At 31st December, 2014, deferred taxation has not been
provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to the
profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounted to
HK$8,064,700,000 (2013: HK$7,402,761,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

49. Operating leases

48. EEREEE BB (E)

HRARBETRI RIS AR E - Bt LAt R
BANBEEEMEL ZEEHBEERAK
RER A A F R AR -

R-ZT—MNE+=-A=+—8 R AKE
Eee sl e = RE O EERE > mA
ZERMEREAERNRRRIETS
0] - AR BN B R BRENZ & FI e
1l 2 E B 2= $.8,064,700,0008 T ( = Z
— =% :7,402,761,00087C) * BLERER
AU BEHRERAEDLEE -

49. BEHLYH

The Group as lessee:- REBER/EBEA -
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—EB-mFE —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Lease payments paid under operating FRRERNBEIENZ
leases during the year:— HERIE : -
- office and factory premises —MARERMEME 30,155 50,784
— equipment — &t - 1,815
30,155 52,599
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49. Operating leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee: (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:—

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
Over five years

The Group as lessor:—

Income from operating lease
arrangements in respect of
office and management service

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

49, REHN ()

KEBERAMBEA : (B)
RMERR - NEERE A HEELEM
AR T 5 HAR B8 2 R R B E A E N
™~z

The Group
EE
Office and factory premises
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
—&R 39,896 13,454
F_EZRRF(BREEMF) 51,177 29,810
& 14,708 16,966
105,781 60,230
REBER/HBEA -
The Group
REME
2014 2013
—EF-mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TETT
WNERERRBLERLD
ZHZWA
938,440 874,525




240

Poly Property Group Co., Limited | Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B #& 3R R Mis:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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49. Operating leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor: (Continued)

49, REHEN ()

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future minimal

lease payments:—

Within one year —FR

In the second to F_EENE
fifth year inclusive (REEREME)

Over five years hF%

AEBER/EEA

(#8)

R|BEMR > AEERBEPETHZARK

RIEBEEREWAT © -

The Group
%8
Office and shop Management fee income Equipment
WAEREE EBEWA B4
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NE —FT-=F
HK$000  HK$'000

“E-NF —F--F ZB-NF —T-=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Significant leases are negotiated for a lease term of 1 to

TEx  TETL  TEx  TEx  FER  TAR
158,410 283515 16907 21918 379 379
519,240 545569 63,031 63,39 382 571
458,651 736819 25513 42,420 - -
1,136,301 1565903 105451 127,734 761 950

REAMOEART ZEEHE =21
F(ZB2—=F: —E2-_+F)FTF-FT

20 years (2013: 1 to 20 years). Certain leases contain a

contingent rental element.

50. Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of
— property development expenditures
—acquisition of land use rights

HEBSHNREEED -

50. EAAE
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—EF-NFE —FT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T T
BEATYSEEYERR
AR BEZ
EARREX
—MEERAX 13,862,585 17,557,913
— Ui B + o 5 P A 750,789 924,444
14,613,374 18,482,357
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51. Contingent liabilities

The Group

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to banks to secure obligations of such
purchasers of repayment. The maximum guarantees
given to banks amounted to HK$19,283,061,000 as at
31st December, 2014 (2013: HK$19,065,110,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issue of the
real estate ownership certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction
of the mortgage loans by the buyers of the properties.
The Group has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as its fair value is considered
to be minimal by the directors. The directors also
consider that the fair value of the underlying properties
is able to cover the outstanding mortgage loans
generated by the Group in the event the purchasers
default payments to the banks.

At 31st December, 2014, the Group had given
guarantees to certain banks in respect of credit facilities
granted to certain associates and joint ventures of the
Group amounting to HK$1,177,215,000 (2013: HK$Nil)
and HK$2,849,342,000 (2013: HK$875,949,000)
respectively, of which HK$1,177,215,000 (2013:
HK$Nil) and HK$2,849,342,000 (2013:
HK$875,949,000) had been utilised by the associates
and joint ventures respectively.

The Company

At 31st December, 2014, the Company had given
guarantees to certain banks in respect of credit facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company amounted
to HK$9,570,633,000 (2013: HK$5,292,152,000), of
which HK$3,120,253,000 (2013: HK$4,860,759,000)
had been utilised by the subsidiaries.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

51. RREE

rEME
AEECHYEBNERES TIRITRH
ZBERRE - WHRITIREERUARER
ZEERBTEREE R —WF
TZA=+—08 & TRITNESEZRE
#£19,283,061,0008 7oc( = & — = F :
19,065,110,000%%7C) - HEAERBER T
FIRBEBRERKLL - (VBEEHEMSE
BE: RNDEBERENZBER - K
SEWENZSERERET(MELERA -
AR EERAEATEYTEKN - &
ENRE BMEERWEMIRITENR - A8
BYEC A FEDEANBHAEREL Y
MAREBEIRBER °

R-_ZE—ME+-_A=+—8 AEEK
REBETHELNARGEDEMERE
EmED R AS1,177,215,0008 T (==
—=4F : TBIT)%2,849,342,0008 7T (=
T — =1 : 875,949,000 7T) M&E TIRIT
REER MBEERARREECEE DT
A EF1,177,2150008 L ( ZFE— =
F:TBIT) M2,849,342,000 L (=&
—=%F : 875,949,000/87T) °

b N/NE|

MR_Z—NE+-_A=+—8  ARQa5H
AREETHBARFMTEREERE BE
9,570,633,0008 7t( = T — = &
5,292,152,000/8 7T ) [A1 & T R 17 12 4 #&
R mBAREBAEF3,120,253,000
BIL(ZZT—=% : 4,860,759,000/8TC) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

52. Pledge of assets 52. EEER

RBERR - B ESAKEMERER
BMEZERZAKEEEZREENT

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
the Group’s assets which were pledged to secure credit
facilities granted to the Group are as follows:

The Group
REE

2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THET
Investment properties REMH 3,949,832 3,589,474
Hotel properties BRI 702,911 702,911
Buildings BF 113,432 184,430
Prepaid lease payments BRNEETIE 284,095 291,860
Properties under development BRPYE 24,036,940 21,367,073
Properties held for sale HEHEYE 2,195,906 5,162,955
Bank deposits IRITIEN 1,519,231 667,953
32,802,347 31,966,656

PR L EEEMIN RZF-—HFR-F
—=F+-A=1—R AEEC KM
BETHEBARZ B iEMIERAKE T
EREEREZER HWEBARNEERE

In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st December,
2014 and 2013, the Group’s interests in certain
subsidiaries was pledged to secure credit facilities

granted to the Group. The details of net assets value of
subsidiaries are as follows:

ZHBIT

2014 2013

—E-mFE —ZT—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

Total assets BERE 6,802,099 17,900,503
Total liabilities BfEERE (5,966,803) (16,061,610)

835,296

1,838,893
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53. Retirement benefit schemes

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate
a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for
their qualified employees pursuant to the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in a fund which is under the
control of an independent trustee. The retirement benefit
scheme contributions charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represent the contributions
payable by the Group to the fund at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. When there are employees who
leave the scheme prior to becoming fully vested in the
contributions, the amount of the forfeited contributions
will be used to reduce future contributions payable by
the Group.

To comply with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPFQ”), the Group also participates in
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
for its qualified employees in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the MPFO. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

53.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF
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53. Retirement benefit schemes (Continued)

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represent contributions payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme.

The employees in the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefit. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no
significant forfeited contributions, which arose upon
employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme,
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss of approximately HK$82,054,000 (2013:
HK$85,367,000) represents contributions payable to the
schemes by the Group during the year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B 75 3R 3% M %

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-A=1+—HIFE

54. Connected and related party transactions 54. BBERGBEAA LR Z K&
and balances

During the year, the Group had significant transactions FAAEEEBEAR(EPHIRE
and balances with related companies, some of which are FRRANTHESBEAL) ZHBEEXR
also deemed to be connected persons pursuant to the R R o AEBEZFRAFNFANLZ
Listing Rules. The significant transactions with these BEARGRRNBEMREZEFRRZEKN
companies during the year, and significant balances with REBERFBAN T -

them at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:—

() Connected Persons () BEAL
(A) Transactions and balances with China A EPBERIEE 2R R
Poly Group fEER
(a) Continuing connected (@ FEBEEXS(E&
transactions as defined in Chapter LEHRAETTAT)
14A of Listing Rules which are (ZARQNF) B IRERH
subject to annual cap approved EZFE ERATARR)
by independent shareholders of
the Company
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Transactions:— R -
Construction services fee B KB R L AR 5
paid or payable (note i) 2 (K1sEi) 1,951,020 3,999,865
Balances:— “hek o —

Bank balances and deposits IRITAETF R AF K
(note ii) (P =E i) 690,602 695,670
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

54. Connected and related party transactions
and balances (Continued)

() Connected Persons (Continued)

(A) Transactions and balances with China

Poly Group (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

Notes:—

(i)

Construction services fee paid or payable
to Poly Construction Developments
Company Limited (“Poly Construction”)
with the annual cap amount of
RMB3,400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,304,000,000,
translated at average rate). The pricing
policy of the construction services fee is
determined at the state-prescribed prices
or where there is no state-prescribed
prices, on prices no less favourable than
those offered by Poly Construction to
independent third parties or those
charged by other independent third
parties to the Group.

Deposits placed with Poly Finance
Company Limited with a cap amount on
maximum daily balance of
RMB550,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$696,203,000,
translated at closing rate).

5S4 BEREBRBALIXRZ RER

BEAL(E)
A EFEFRIEEZRXER
iR ()

(@ (%)

T -

(i)

(if)

B A< 3% B HR FIl 1 2R
BERAA(RAE
FD2REERBERA
FELRAAR
3,400,000,000 7T ( #% F
HEXHREREND
4,304,000,000% 7T ) °
BERKERTIBER
RATEERMBE @ W
EERREER AR
B FMR F 22 3% M98 3L
FE=-HRRESEMEL
E=-HUHKRTAERZ

{E1&

FRRAMBERESE
RAlZFERERAETXR
BEa B ARE
550,000,000 7t ( #%Z Yg
EEXHBERITRY
696,203,000787T) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

54. Connected and related party transactions 54. MEREBA TS R &8

and balances (Continued) (&)
() Connected Persons (Continued) () BEAX(E)
(A) Transactions and balances with China A EFBERINEBZREZR
Poly Group (Continued) meR ()
(b) Others (b) Efth
The Group
rEEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Transactions:— RS-
Property rental income (note i) ¥ & WA (H5Ei) 14,954 16,718
Interest expenses (note ii) MBS (FiFEii) 164,328 162,610
Guarantee charges (note iii) ERFE X (MEiii) 20,122 22,056
Theatre operating expenses Blbr &8sz (MaEiv)

(note iv) 8,861 8,750
Management fee income EBEBRA 1,158 1,248
Rental expenses paid ENHEERAX 1,964 1,890
Interest income from loan to BT — A E R a R

an associate (note v) 2 F B (K FEv) 382 213
Balances:— REER -

Amount due to the ultimate JE AN S AR B A RIFRIE

holding company (note vi) (FI5E vi) 438,046 438,052
Amount due to an intermediate fE{t— & A EIEAR A &)

holding company (note vi) A (FEEvi) 975,259 26,409
Amounts due to fellow JEASH R Y B A RIFR

subsidiaries (note vi) (FF&E Vi) 2,410,404 2,215,657
Loan from a fellow subsidiary ~—fIR ZKI B A RIERK

(note 45) (PtsE45) 227,848 227,848
Amounts due from an associate J& g —FE1E% & A T30 IE

(note vii) (BT vii) 51,010 9,709

Bank and other borrowings SR1T M EAMEE (KIEE viii)
(note viii) 962,025 1,098,734
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

54. Connected and related party transactions

and balances (Continued)

() Connected Persons (Continued)

(A) Transactions and balances with China

Poly Group (Continued)
(b) Others (Continued)

Notes:—

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The amount represented rental income
received for the theatres which made
with reference to market price.

The interest expenses derived from the
loans advanced from the ultimate
holding company, an intermediate
holding company and fellow
subsidiaries. Details of terms of loan
from a fellow subsidiary are set out in
note 54(1)(A)(b)(viii). Details of terms of
loans from the ultimate holding
company, an intermediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries are set
out in notes 32, 33 and 34 respectively.

The guarantee charges paid to the
ultimate and intermediate holding
company and a fellow subsidiary for
acting as a guarantor of bank loans
borrowed by subsidiaries of the Group
and it was charged at 1% on the
maximum guarantee amount.

The theatre operating expenses was paid
to a joint venture for the operation and
management of a theatre.

The interest income derived from the
loans advanced to an associate which is
a connected person under the definition
of the Listing Rules. Details of terms of
loans are set out in note 22.

Details of the terms are set out in notes
32, 33 and 34.

The amount due from an associate which
is a connected person under the
definition of the Listing Rule is
HK$51,010,000, which has been
included in amounts due from associates
in note 22.

The amount of HK$962,025,000 (2013:
HK$1,098,734,000) represented loan
from a fellow subsidiary. The balance
was unsecured, carried interest at a
variable rate of 105% to 110% of
benchmark rate in the PRC (2013: at a
variable rate of 105% of benchmark rate
in the PRC) and repayable within two
(2013: two) years.
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54. Connected and related party transactions 54.
and balances (Continued)

() Connected Persons (Continued)
(B) Transactions and balances with non-
controlling shareholders of

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
BE—FT—ME+-A=1+—HIFE

BEEREBEALIRZRER
(&)

) BAEAX(E)
B HERBRELTHRAEERS
BEALTHKEB QT

subsidiaries which are also deemed to BRBRR2ZRZ R EEeR
be connected persons pursuant to the
Listing Rules
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—EB-mFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Transactions:— R -
Interest expenses (note i) MBS (FEEi) 4,215 60,491
Balances:— o
Amounts due from non-controlling  FEUHI B A ] FEHE A%
shareholders of subsidiaries IR R RIE
(note i) CGED 631,646 400,991
Amounts due to non-controlling  FE{SHIE R 7] FEILAR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries FKIE (fEi)
(note i) 75,475 1,809,525
Note:— BsE : -

(i) Details of terms are set out in note 35.

(i)  ARKRFFIFERHIFESS ©
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

54. Connected and related party transactions

M.BEREBAIXRZRER

Apart from the transactions as disclosed in notes 33
and 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company had no other transaction with its
related parties during the year.

and balances (Continued) (48
(Il) Related parties, other than connected () KBREEATUNMZEBAL
persons
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Transactions:— X5 -
Interest income from loans to joint ERTEEDEFRZ
ventures (note i) F B U (D) 200,675 103,333
Interest expenses paid to AN ENG]
non-controlling shareholders of IEIERAR R 2
subsidiaries (note iii) F.8 F X (s iii) 75,667 -
Balances:— R -
Amounts due from an associate FEU—EHS & A RI5IR
(note i) (MI3E i) 349,887 458,165
Amounts due from joint ventures (note i) FEU & & (> 2 kI8 (M aEi) 5,697,412 1,790,096
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUFTE A A
shareholders of subsidiaries (note iii)  FEH A% A& B 2078 (P 5 iii) 504,155 -
Amounts due to joint ventures (note i)  FEfTA & EFIB (M) 10,391 31,081
Amounts due to non-controlling FERHIE A A
shareholders of subsidiaries (note iii)  3E{ZE AR AR B 738 (Ff 3 iii) 1,599,445 -
Notes:— MisE : —
(i) Details of terms are set out in note 23. (i) IR BRI 5E 23 ©
(i)  Details of terms are set out in note 22. (i) EEREFEEEAME22 -
(iii)  Details of terms are set out in note 35. (i) (EREFEIHRHMIFESS ©
The Company VNN

Brar A BTSRRI 33 K36 FTIRE
2R RRAFIRERNFESRS
AATHEITEMRS -
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54. Connected and related party transactions

and balances (Continued)

(Il1) Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as
follows:—

Short-term benefits EHAE A
BER 2R A

Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

55. Material transactions and balances with

other state-controlled entities

Part of the Group’s operations is carried out in an
economic environment currently predominated by
entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the
PRC government (“state-controlled entities”). In addition,
the Group itself is part of a larger group of companies
under China Poly which is controlled by the PRC
government. Apart from the transactions with China
Poly, other connected persons and related parties
disclosed in note 54, the Group also conducts business
with other state-controlled entities. The directors
consider those state-controlled entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions
with them are concerned.

In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process
for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the
Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is
a state-controlled entity or not.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

S BEREBRALIXRZ RER
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) EEEEAEME

ERN EBEENHEMETEERAEY
e -

2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBxT FAET
26,344 23,353

449 258
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

A AR MY AL

55. Material transactions and balances with 55. EHIEM B Z X2 2EARXER

other state-controlled entities
(Continued)

Material transactions/balances with other state-controlled

mER (&)

HipH & b EETZEARD, BRI

z

/l

entities are as follows:— N =
2014 2013
—E-mEFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Transactions:— X5 -
Trade sales B 5iHE 91,279 91,275
Trade purchases EIRE - 10,276
Balances:— R
Amounts due from (to) other JEUR (-) B fib [ & 1 2 5108 - -

state-controlled entities

In view of the nature of the Group’s hotel operating
business, the directors are of the opinion that, except as
disclosed above, it is impracticable to ascertain the
identity of the counterparties and accordingly whether
the transactions were with other state-controlled entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposit placements, borrowings
and other general banking facilities, with certain banks
and financial institutions which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. In view of the
nature of those banking transactions, the directors are of
the opinion that separate disclosure would not be
meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the
opinion that transactions with other state-controlled
entities are not significant to the Group’s operations.

ENAREZEELEEBNEE B3R
o BREXFIHREEN  BEXSHHFZ
SO TER - RERRX 5 EEEM
BEMRETITIER °

AN AEEERNE R EEBHBEFRE
THRITRMBGEE (ORBEEER)FTLE
ER S BRAMER  EEREM—K
RITEE - ENEAFROIRIZIUEE &
ERE RTEHRBELESSE -

BEXFEELN  EERA RAMBE
EOEEIT 2R BUAREE Y T REM
EYTEA o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

56. EEMB AT
RZZE—NFE+=—A=+—H  ARF=E

56. Principal subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st

December, 2014 are as follows:— EMBARIZEEEET : -
Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BETR ERAFFERT
S, BARE/ B/ ERBA
WEARER B 45 B AMBAFEE i ypies TEEY
Directly Indirectly
B %
Bassington Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares = 100% Property investment
BEEREBRAA BR 2BCE R NERE
Big Nice Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100% Property development
FXRERBRAR BR TR BR NEER
Big Support Limited British Virgin US§$1 - 100% Investment holding
AEBRAT Islands 1%7T REER
REELES
CMIC Finance Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% — Financial services
&g 2 sEi 2 RIRT
CMIC Management Services Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% - Management services
BE 100 & B BRI
Fainland Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property investment
REARRT] BB 2 A NERE
First Great Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
ELEREARAR BE 2 sE REER
Geldy Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100% Property investment
BB 1,000 B &3 ESIE
Grandful International Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
BEBRARAR BE 2E B REER
High Wealth International Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property investment
BERERBRAT BE 2R NERE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

56. TEMBLTE (&)

56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR EARFRFERT
AL, BARE/ RE/ ERRA
WELARER B 45 2 EMRAFE L= TRER
Directly Indirectly
B C:3
Honorlink Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property investment
EBREARRAR BE 2RE B NERE
Hubei Poly Hotel Company Limited ~ PRC Registered capital - 100% Investment, management
(“Hubei Poly”) (note i) e RMB62,000,000 and operation of a hotel
HLRFINEEER AR T RARARE RE EBRREE-REE
(TALARR ) (M) 62,000,000 7C
Johnsbury Limited British Virgin US$9,600,000 100% —Investment holding
EIERER AT Islands 9,600,000 T REER
RRELES
Poly Plaza Limited (“PPL") (note ii) PRC Registered capital - 75% Investment, management
RIREBRAF A US$10,000,000 and operation of a hotel
(TRAARE 1 (i zEin) BRlIEN complex
10,000,000 7 BE EEREE
N
Polystar Digidisc Co., Ltd. (“Polystar”)  PRC Registered capital - 66% Manufacturing and
(note iii) s RMB9,000,000 wholesaling of compact
T RRNEEE R BR AT AMRAARE discs, video compact discs
(TRF 2 1) (B zE i) 9,000,000 7T and digital video discs
SLERBE IR - G
REWmHRE SR
Poly (Hong Kong) Property Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Investment holding
Developments Limited BB 1R A RARK
®H (B8 R EEREB AR
Poly (Hong Kong) Real Estate Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Investment holding
R (BB B ERZER AR BE 1RE R REER
Power Jade Holdings Limited British Virgin us$1 - 100% Securities investment
RERRBR AR Islands 1% ERRE

RRELES



RIUBXEEERAR | —F—mFEFH 255

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #& $R R M
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HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

56. TEMB LT (&)

56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR EARFRHCRT
S BARE/ BA&/ERRA
WEAR AR B 30 3 AMBRAFE L= TEXEH
Directly Indirectly
B 3
Prime Brilliant Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property investment
HEBARRT &b 2 e sEi NERE
Propwood Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property investment
ERARAR BE 2R sE NERE
Rapid Bloom Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100% Investment holding
ARERLD A Islands 1%L REER
RERAES
Saneble Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property investment
RERRNRT BE 2 e A NERE
Smart Best Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Investment holding
BEREBRARA BE 1BE @ RERK
Volgala International Ltd. British Virgin Us$1 - 100% Securities investment
Islands 157 FEARRE
RERARS
ﬂ?%i?‘)ﬁz\%ﬁ RO PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
e i) (F&ET) G US$35,000,000 MERR
AR AR
35,000,000 %70
BETAEEARAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
(note i) (Fi{5E ) i HK$280,000,000 ES
MR
280,000,000/ 7T
RAIEXEEERAA PRC Registered capital = 100% Investment holding
(note i) (FiH5E ) i RMB2,200,000,000 RERR
FHRARARS
2,200,000,000 7T
LEBAEEERERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property investment
(note i) (M) i US$24,000,000 ESIE
FEMARA

24,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
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A AR MY AL

56. TEMB LT (&)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
EBTR ERAECRT
AR, BRE BAE/ERBEA
WEAREE B 3t 26 TR AT FEfh L= TERH
Directly Indirectly
k3 Gk
EEMFEHERRERAH PRC Registered capital - 100% Property investment
G RMB15,000,000 ESE
SRR ARE
15,000,000 7T
FEEREHERRAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Property investment and
F RMBS5,000,000 investment holding
SRR ARE NERE
5,000,000 7C REEEER
FERNESEEERERAA PRC Registered capital - 90% Property investment
i RMB200,000,000 ESE
SRR ARE
200,000,000
FERMERHERRA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB150,000,000 MEER
S RAARE
150,000,000 7C
ERRAEARBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB1,000,000 MEER
SRR ARE
1,000,000 75
FERMYFEEEBEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property management
i RMB50,000,000 nxER
T RARARE
50,000,0007C
FERFIGEEXARAR PRC Registered capital = 50.1% Investment holding
i RMB20,000,000 BERR
M RARARE
20,000,0007C
LEREEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 50.1% Property development
i RMB15,000,000 MEERE
T RARARE

15,000,0007T
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

56. TEMBLTE (&)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR EREFEERT
B BlRE BA /G RA
WEAREE B 3 3 MR AFE FEfh L= TEXH
Directly Indirectly
=k &
P EEER AT PRC Registered capital = 50.1% Property development
i RMBS,000,000 MEERE
T RARARE
8,000,0007T
LEREEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 50.1% Property development
i RMB15,000,000 MEER
T RAARE
15,000,0007T
FEREFHELLERAA PRC Registered capital - 50.1% Property agency
i RMB1,000,000 MERE
PR ARE
1,000,000 7T
FERMSEHEHELLERAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% Property agency
i RMB5,000,000 MERE
T RAARE
5,000,0007T
FEBYEEREAREEAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
i RMB10,000,000 ESE
ERAA R
10,000,0007T
FERAMEXEFHEREERAR  PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
palllE YN
50,000,0007T
FERMMEFHEREERAR  PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
AERA AR
50,000,0007C
FERAMEEFHEREERAR  PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 ES TS
AMRA AR

50,000,000 7T
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

=PAN

jLa =]

BAREER R P

56. TEMBLTE (&)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BETR AREFEERT
AR BHRE/ BA/ERBA
WEARER JAveich S SR AFE FEfh L= TEXEH
Directly Indirectly
=k %
PERFFBERMEREERAF  PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
e RMB50,000,000 MEER
A RAARE
50,000,000 7T
FERMNEREXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
T RAARS
50,000,000 7T
TRREEELEEBERAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB100,000,000 MEER
T RAARS
100,000,000 7
LERNEEEBRRAF PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB200,000,000 MEER
TR AR
200,000,0007T
RMBZEE(LF)REBRAR  PRC Registered capital = 100% Investment holding
i RMB580,000,000 RERR
Ballle NS
580,000,000 7T
EERAMESEERERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property investment
i RMB208,170,000 ESE
ERAARE
208,170,0007T
RN EZBRAT PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development and
L2 RMB100,000,000 investment holding
AR AR MERRRIRAER
100,000,000 7T
M RTIRETIRERAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Provision of construction
i RMB120,000,000 service
AR AR R EERS

120,000,000 7T



56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

RIUBEEEERAR | —T—WEFR 259

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #& $R R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

56. TEMB LT (&)

Attributable portion of

Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR ARRFHERT
EMARL, BARE/ BRA /G RA
WEARER B 3 3 EMBRAF FEfh L= TEXK
Directly Indirectly
=k &
HILRFIEEERAF PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development and
A RMB100,000,000 investment holding
T RARARE MEBRRREER
100,000,000 7T
RN EREEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 68% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 ES
T RAARE
50,000,0007C
RERNEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 55% Property development
i RMB41,200,000 ES
T RARARE
41,200,0007C
REMEREREEREAAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property investment
i RMB100,000 ESIE
TR AR
100,0007C
RERNESHXEBERAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property management
i RMB100,000,000 MEER
T RAARE
100,000,000 7T
BEERFNREEBRAR PRC Registered capital = 51% Property development
i RMBB80,000,000 ES
T RAARE
80,000,0007C
L RIERFIZRR AT PRC Registered capital - 51% Property investment
e RMBO1,656,147 ESE
A RARARE
91,656,147 7T
BRRFBEEERAA PRC Registered capital = 100% Investment holding
il RMB300,000,000 BERR
T RARARE

300,000,000 7T
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

BAREER R P

56. TEMBLTE (&)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BETR KRR FRERT
AR BARE/ BB
WEARER JAveich TR AR FEfh L= TEXH
Directly Indirectly
Ef# &
BILmRFIEZEBRAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB30,000,000 MERER
T RAARE
30,000,000 7T
BMNRFEHEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 51% Property development
i RMB30,000,000 MERER
T RAARS
30,000,000 7T
BILMEREEEERRE AR PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
i RMB30,000,000 E
T RAARS
30,000,000 7T
BLTREEEERAA PRC Registered capital 100% Property development
i USD50,000,000 NEER
FHf R AR
50,000,000 7T
BMREEEERAF PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
T RARARE
50,000,0007C
EMRMEZERAA PRC Registered capital = 51% Property development
i RMB101,800,000 MEER
T RARARS
101,800,000 7T
BMNRMEHEREER AR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB30,000,000 MEER
T RARARE
30,000,0007C
BNRBEEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital - 55% Property development
i RMB100,000,000 MEER
T RAARE

100,000,000 7T
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56. TEMBLTE (&)

56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR ARRFHERT
EMARL, BlRE/ BRA /G RA
WEARER B 3 3 EMBRAF FEfh L= TEXK
Directly Indirectly
=k &
EMREEZXERLA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
T RARARE
50,000,0007C
BMRAMEBFHEREERAR  PRC Registered capital - 80% Property development
e RMB100,000,000 MERE
T RAARE
100,000,000 7T
EMHRMNEERHERZERAR PRC Registered capital - 70% Property development
s RMB88,926,900 MEEE
TR AR
88,926,900 7T
T RAEEEREERAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Investment holding
i RMB100,000,000 BERR
T RAARE
100,000,000 7T
AHRANENFWEREEFRAR  PRC Registered capital = 70% Property development
e RMB50,000,000 MEEE
T RAARE
50,000,0007C
R THEREREERAR PRC Registered capital - 70% Property development
i RMB200,000,000 ES
A RAARE
200,000,000 7T
FHRFSUEBSER AR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property investment and
H RMB150,000,000 management
T RAARE MERERER
150,000,000 7T
RAENEZEBER AR PRC Registered capital = 100% Investment holding
i RMB200,000,000 BERR
TR AR

200,000,000 7T
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

BAREER R P

56. TEMB LT (&)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR EARFFORT
S BARE/ BE/GERBA
WEARER B 45 3 EMRAFE L= TEXEH
Directly Indirectly
=k %
EGRIEAEHEREBRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
m RMB50,000,000 MEZE
ERAARE
50,000,000 7T
EGRMBRERHEREERAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
2 RMB20,000,000 MERRE
ERAARE
20,000,000 7T
FNEMNFHEREER AR PRC Registered capital = 66.5% Property development
2 RMB100,000,000 MERRE
ERAARE
100,000,000 7
RAEMNEREEERER A PRC Registered capital - 66.5% Hot spring operation
H RMB3,000,000 RS
Ballle YN
3,000,000
EFRFIEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital - 66.5% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
Ballle NS
50,000,000 7T
ERRFEARERZEERAF  PRC Registered capital - 66.5% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
ERAARE
50,000,0007C
ERRTFBREHERZEERAF  PRC Registered capital - 51% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEER
AR AR
50,000,0007C
BEIRMEREHEREBRAF PRC Registered capital = 58% Property development
(“REVRER") (note iv) (HEEiv)  F RMB100,000,000 MEER
AR AR

100,000,000 7T
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56. TEMBLTE (&)

56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR EARFRHCRT
R, BARE/ BA&/ERRA
WEARAR B 40 3 AMBRAFE FEfhtt= TREH
Directly Indirectly
Hi 3
RABEEBEETARAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MREE
T RARARE
50,000,000 7T
RRERIEHESEHEER PRC Registered capital - 51% Property development
N Gl RMB50,000,000 MEER
PR AR
50,000,0007C
RRERERHEREBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB20,000,000 MEER
i RARARE
20,000,0007T
REREEERHEREBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB20,000,000 MEER
i RARARE
20,000,0007C
RREEHEHELRERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB20,000,000 MEERE
i RARARE
20,000,000 7T
RMLREXEEGRAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Investment holding
i RMB340,000,000 AR
i RARARE
340,000,000 7T
LWRRTIZEEXER AR PRC Registered capital - 80% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 MEERE
i RAARE
50,000,000 7T
WRENTEREHEREERAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB10,000,000 MEERE
EMRARARE

10,000,0007T
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

A AR MY AL

56. TEME AT (&)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BETR KRR FRERT
AR, BAKRE/ BAE/ERBA
WEARAR B 3t 3 TR AR FEfh L= TEXH
Directly Indirectly
=k Gk
LRRMEEEHERZERAF  PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB10,000,000 B
T RARARS
10,000,000
ERRNEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB237,306,206 MRER
A RAARE
237,306,206 7T
ERRNEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital - 85% Property development
i RMB200,000,000 E S
S RARARE
200,000,000t
BERMNEZBRAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB100,000,000 B
A RAARE
100,000,000 7C
BERFIEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB100,000,000 EES
T RAARE
100,000,000 7T
ERRNHEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 80% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 E
T RARARE
50,000,0007C
BEMEEZERAA PRC Registered capital - 55% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 E
TR AR
50,000,0007C
RAIZEEXEB AR PRC Registered capital = 100% Investment holding
i RMB180,000,000 BERR
T RAARE

180,000,000 7T
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued) 56. TEMIBE AT ()
Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR RPRIFRFERT
R BARA/ R/ EREA
KEARER BB IR AR FEfh L2 TEER
Directly Indirectly
=8 M
RAEREEHEREARAR PRC Registered capital - 80% Investment holding
H RMB100,000,000 RERKR
AMRARARE
100,000,000 7T
ZERNEHEREARAA PRC Registered capital - 80% Property development
H RMB10,000,000 NEERE
AMRARARE
10,000,000 7T
EHEAEHEREER AR PRC Registered capital - 90% Property development
H RMB50,000,000 NEHRE
FMBRAARE
50,000,000 7T
ZERMEEBRAA PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
H RMB10,000,000 NEHR
HMBRAARE
10,000,000 7T
BRRFEEEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Investment holding
H RMB250,000,000 REZR
FMBRAARE
250,000,000 7T
BRRAEHEEREEAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
H RMB150,000,000 NEHR
AR AR
150,000,000 75
MEREANEHERR AR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
H RMB10,000,000 NEHRE
FRBRAARE
10,000,000 7T
HEMHFRBENERR AR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
H RMB10,000,000 NEER
AR A AR

10,000,000 7T
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

=PAN

jLa =]

BAREER R P

56. TEMB LT (&)

Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BETR AREFBERT
SR/ B8RS/ BE/ERBA
WEAR AR B 3 3 R AT E FEfk b= TEXEH
Directly Indirectly
HE 3
BREFRFENEEEREB AR PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB50,000,000 NEER
EMRAEARE
50,000,0007C
MNEFEZBRAA] PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
i RMB100,000,000 NEER
EMRAARE
100,000,000 7T
ERRAEXBRAA PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
(note i) (&) G HK$1,459,000,000 NEER
BRIEN
1,459,000,000 /8 7T
EERNEXBRAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
i RMB262,665,000 NEER
EMRAARE
262,665,000 7T
RIMRFIEXBRAA PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
(note i) (&) G HK$1,100,000,000 NEER
BRIEN
1,100,000,000/8 7T
R BM) EXER DA PRC Registered capital = 100% Investment holding
i RMBB00,000,000 RERK
EMRAARE
800,000,000 7T
FHNRABHEREBR AT PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
3 RMB1,200,000,000 NEER
EMRAARE
1,200,000,000 7T
HFMRNEREXERAA PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
5 RMB328,623,800 MEER
EMRAARE

328,623,800 70
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56. Principal subsidiaries (Continued) 56. TEMIE AT ()
Attributable portion of
Place of Particulars of issued the issued share
incorporation/ and paid up capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR FARFFORT
AR BaRE/ B/ ERRE
WEAREM B L 30 3 AMBRAFE it = TRER
Directly Indirectly
B CF:3
FMRMEBEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
i RMB329,108,480 MEER
ERAARE
329,108,480 7T
FMRMEXEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
H HK$380,000,000 MEER
FHf R AR
380,000,000 7T

Notes:—

(i) These companies are wholly-foreign owned enterprises in
the PRC.

(i)  PPL is a sino-foreign joint venture company established in
the PRC for a renewal term of 50 years commencing 9th
July, 2003.

(iiiy  Polystar is a sino-foreign joint venture company established
in the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 18th
December, 2000.

(iv)  fRFELR is a sino-foreign joint venture company established
in the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 29th
December, 2004.

The above table only lists those subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

(iii)

(iv)
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57. Segment and entity-wide information

Reportable segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
four operating divisions. These divisions are the basis on
which the Group reports its segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:—

Property development

property development
business
Property investment

property investment and management
and management
hotel and restaurant business and

Hotel operations
its related services

Other operations manufacturing and sales of digital

discs and others

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interests in associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
payable, accruals and deposits received except of other
corporate liabilities attributable to the individual
segments and other borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
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(Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment result is
“adjusted EBIT” i.e. adjusted earnings before interest and
taxes. To arrive at adjusted EBIT, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as share of results of
associates and joint ventures, gain on disposal of
interests in subsidiaries, directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBIT, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances
and borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

57. D RELEER (E)

AmED (&)
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57. Segment and entity-wide information 57. 7R ELEER (B&)
(Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued) AREDE(E)
Information about these segments is presented below:— BENESHZERZ2H0T « —
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 BZE-Z—NE+-A=1+—HLEE
Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other
business  management operations operations  Eliminations Total
NERERH KER  EEEE  HtEE i aif

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Revenue WA
External revenue HOMEA 27,250,353 938,440 196,934 123,010 - 28,508,737
Inter-segment revenue* PR - 161,112 - - (161,112) -
Total revenue TN 27250353 1099552 196934 123,010 (161,112) 28,508,737
SEGMENT RESULT THEE 2,906,069 1,220,273 (29,629) (823) - 4,095,890
Unallocated income RABMA 266,277
Unallocated expenses AOERY (90,824)
Gain on disposal of interests HEME R AR W

in subsidiaries 20,668 - - - - 20,668
Finance costs AERKAK (893,070)
Share of results of associates MBEAREE (12,078) - - - - (12,078)
Share of results of joint AERELERE

ventures (67,669) - - (8,450) - (76,127)
Profit before taxation S iyl 3,310,736
Income tax expense FERAY (2,027,129)
Profit for the year ERRA 1,283,607
i Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices * DERF UG A TR EE S HMEH R B RIS K

charged to external parties for similar services or products. B G2 B0 N AT U B > (B4 T YR o
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57. 7R EEERER ()

57. Segment and entity-wide information
(Continued)

Assets and liabilities BERAE
Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other
business  management operations operations Total
nE
NEREEK  REREE BELE HtheE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TAR Thn TER
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 96,883,381 10,689,643 1,590,020 235,072 109,398,116
Interests in associates NIV Ty 307,923 - - - 307,923
Interests in joint ventures REEtE ER 531,978 - - 1,787 533,765
Unallocated corporate assets ANELFEE 19,163,081
Total assets BEGE 129,402,885
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilities AHERE 38,512,432 771,738 221,951 47,053 39,553,174
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ RAEM¥EE 55,750,496
Total liabilities BEEs 95,303,670
Other information HirEsl
Capital expenditure EXRY 89,189 39,947 15,170 1,690 145,996
Depreciation ik 50,336 24,412 61,997 5,640 142,385
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREBR 176,592 - - - 176,592
Impairment loss on properties held #{EL &Y%/
for sale/properties ERPORRESE
under development 458,705 - - - 458,705
Amortisation of prepaid lease T[T EFIAH
payments 2,163 1,158 8,385 150 11,856
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

57. Segment and entity-wide information
(Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical
location of its customers is presented below:

REMBRRE

57. 7R ELEER ()

REEZWAREFFREN 2 DT 2510
T

Hong Kong The PRC Total
BE T a|Ff
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FRET

Revenue WA

6,393 28,502,344 28,508,737

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
specified non-current assets, segment assets and capital
expenditure analysed by the geographical area in which
the assets are located.

AT EFRRBEE - DR EEKRE(E
RERRIREEMER 2 DT °

Hong Kong The PRC Total
&g ey CEl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET TR

Specified non-current assets ~ #FEIERBIE E
Segment assets DEEE

Capital expenditure BRI

288,989 13,739,426 14,028,415

7,065,287 121,495,910 128,561,197

3,128 142,868 145,996

Note: Specified non-current assets include all non-current assets
other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group's revenue.

M HEFRDEEREMESBRTARRIE
HMREEINIEREEE °

AEBzEFPERZ L UMBEFPZ
RHBBAREWRALZ10%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #& $R R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

57. Segment and entity-wide information 57. PR ELEER (B)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

Property

Property  investment
development and
business management
IES IES
REXY REREE
HK$'000 HK$'000

BE-Z-—=Ft-A=1t—-HLEE

Hotel Other
operations  operations  Eliminations Total
BEZE  HiteE A At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL FET FHT FET

Revenue N
External revenue HHMA 27,427,364 874,525 199,773 123,326 - 28,625,008
Inter-segment revenue* DEEBA - 81,670 - - (81,670) -
Total revenue B 27,427,384 956,195 199,773 123,326 (81,670) 28,625,008
SEGMENT RESULT PREE 4,205,529 1,325,228 (34,817) 18,719 - 5,514,659
Unallocated income ADEWA 366,236
Unallocated expenses FAMHAR (101,396)
Gain on disposal of interests ~ HENBAR R Mz

in subsidiaries 316,558 143,380 - - - 459,938
Loss on disposal of interest HE—RBEDREE L

in an associate B8 (24,899) - - - - (24,899)
Finance costs BERA (777,749)
Share of results of associates ~ DMEMEAEES 67 - - - - 67
Share of results of joint ventures H{EA S PEEE 33,520 - - (8,374) - 25,146
Profit before taxation HRH‘ sl 5,462,002
Income tax expense FEmEY (2,220,504)
Profit for the year FREH 3,241,498
& Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices g 2D EEBATIZZ E LM R RS X

charged to external parties for similar services or products.

EmZ BN TP ER 2 B AR o
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(Continued)

Assets and liabilities

Assets

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on properties
under development

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Poly Property Group Co., Limited | Annual Report 2014

BERERE
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B EE AL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—FT—MFEF+-_A=+—HILFE

57. Segment and entity-wide information

REMBRRE

57. 7R ELEER ()

EENAE
Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other

business  management operations operations Total

S
DREEXY  RANER BIEEE RipEE GE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT TEL TEL
62,448,608 9,004,890 1,597,067 274,383 93,384,948
320,001 - - - 320,001
387,985 - - 1,726 389,711
16,727,992
110,822,652
(32,362,022) (471,248) (229,654) (38,968)  (33,101,892)
(45,118,616)
(78,220,508)
53,310 73,604 18,151 2,121 147,246
37,186 28,670 60,995 7,646 134,497
68,847 - - - 08,847
90,454 - - - 90,454
1,553 1,801 8,281 148 11,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #& $R R M

Segment and entity-wide information
(Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical
location of its customers is presented below:—

Revenue

WA

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
specified non-current assets, segment assets and capital
expenditure analysed by the geographical area in which
the assets are located.

Specified non-current assets ~ %FEIERBNE EE
Segment assets DEEE
Capital expenditure BRI

Note: Specified non-current assets include all non-current assets
other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue.

Non-adjusting post balance sheet events

After the end of the reporting period, the board of
directors proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 15.

For the year ended 31st December, 2014
HE—T—MFE+-_A=+—HIFZF

57. 2 MREELEER (B)

REEZWAREFFREN 2 DT 2510
™=

Hong Kong The PRC Total
BB e aat
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TATT TAT T
5,780 28,619,228 28,625,008

AT EFRRBEE - DR EEKREE
RERFRSIREEREI 2 DT ©

Hong Kong The PRC Total
=0 = o
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET THET THTT
282,281 13,069,515 13,351,796
361,790 93,023,158 93,384,948
1,384 145,862 147,246

M HEFRDEEREMESBTARRE
MIABEINIERBEE °

AEBZEBEFEMZ T TERFZR
SBBAREBRKAZ 10% °

58. FARMEEHREIR

RBEMRE  EFEFRERYK
B o E—FHBRMFE15HKE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IR

RESULTS ES
Revenue WA

Profit before taxation Bt Al A
Income tax expense PSR X
Profit for the year FERM
Attributable to: oIS -

Owners of the Company AR GIHEHE A
Non-controlling interests JF#EASHEzS

Profit for the year FERA

ASSETS AND LIABILITIESEER & &

Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BEEBRE
Equity attributable to RATHEBA

owners of the Company  F&{h %
Non-controlling interests JF#EASHEzS
Perpetual capital KABARIA
investments

Year ended 31st December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLHFE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—2-2F —T——%F T —ET—=F ZZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FHxT
8,514,136 14,104,913 20,695,429 28,625,008 28,508,737
3,185,845 5,001,371 4,581,210 5,462,002 3,310,736
(1,049,392) (1,778,964) (1,538,500) (2,220,504) (2,027,129)
2,136,453 3,222,407 3,042,710 3,241,498 1,283,607
1,838,367 2,777,119 2,629,820 2,715,626 929,448
298,086 445,288 412,890 525,872 354,159
2,136,453 3,222,407 3,042,710 3,241,498 1,283,607
At 31st December
R+=HA=+—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-FF —F——%F —T-—-F —T—=F ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FETT FETT FHETT FET FExT
73,861,363 95,507,232 107,735,863 110,822,652 129,402,885

(50,031,867)

(68,335,480) (77,688,509) (78,220,508) (95,303,670)

23,829,496

27,171,752

30,047,354

32,602,144

34,099,215

22,010,167
1,819,329

24,670,940
2,500,812

27,072,586
2,974,768

29,617,047
2,985,097

29,762,327
3,338,192

998,696

23,829,496

27,171,752

30,047,354

32,602,144

34,099,215
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FEERENFENE
At 31st December, 2014
R-F—mFE+=F=+—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for investment purposes NREBR _E—NE+_A=+—H2Z2EHEE

at 31st December, 2014 are as follows: IWEYSE BT -
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
12 RN ik SE#ER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
REYF
Room 2502A, 2502B, 2502C and Room 2508 of Long lease Commercial 100%
25th Floor Admiralty Centre Tower |
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
BEERE 185 RERK [GES
BERLE—H25E8
2502AE ~ 2502BE * 2502C E K 2508 =
3 apartments of Legend Garden Villas Held under a land use right Residential 100%
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 31st December, 2042
hEARAME BELTmERES EE
bR B #5895} —TO_F+-A=+—H
BRItEMNEEREER
Portions of Basements 1, Portions of 1st Floor, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%

N02, NO3 & N04, 11th Floor, North Tower,
NO02, N0O3 & N04, 12th Floor, North Tower,
Whole of 14th, 15th, 16th, 17th and 18th Floors,
South Tower, N04, NO5 & NO6, 16th floor of
North Tower, N07, 19th Floor, North Tower,
S01, S02, S03, S04, S07, S08 & S09,

for a term expiring on
14th November, 2043

20th Floor, South Tower, N02, N03, N06, NO7, N08, N09,
20th Floor, North Tower, Whole of 21st, 22nd, 23rd, 24th,
25th and 27th Floors, South Tower and North Tower,
Whole of 26th Floor, North Tower,

Shanghai Stock Exchange Building,

No. 528 Pudong Road South, Lujiazui,

Pudong, Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China

REARAME DERRERE FELMERES [GES
BREE528% LEEFAE “FE=fFt+—HA+EA

bEE1 B  1EZ2 » bEE11EN02  N03 & N04
JEFE12 B NO02  NO3 e N04 ~ BIE14 1516 17 %
18EZE - JLFE16/ENO4 ~ NO5 & N06 ~ ILEE 19 B NO7
FEE20ES01  S02 ~ S03 ~ S04 * S07 ~ S08 %2 S09 *

JbEE 20 N02 * NO3 * NO6 * NO7 * NO8 * NO9

AR RIbREDT ~ 22 223 24 25 K27 B
2ERILE2ELE
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES B /EIR B Y £ E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i 2 ROHR Rz SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE : (B)
4 houses, 19 apartments, a commercial centre, Held under a land use right Commercial/ 51%
a club house, a kindergarten and an extension for a term expiring on Residential
Legend Garden Villas, 89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing, 31st December, 2042
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME BETwERER BE/EE
LR B #HE 5 89 RBRICE AIE “EO-fFt+-H=t—A
AERIZ  19ERBEN - —ERHRFL
—fEgf  —EHRERIR
Office Tower of Poly Plaza, The land use right for the property  Commercial 75%
No. 14 Dongzhimen Nandajie, has been granted for a term of
Dong Cheng District, Beijing, 50 years commencing on
The People’s Republic of China 27th October, 2003
PEARLNE MELIEREELE [SES
ERHRAE A-ET=F1TA-ttRE"
REMEAE 145 RERtEF
RMABEMAKRE
Commercial/Office buildings at No. 465 Luo Shi Lu, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 12th May, 2047
PEARLNME HELMERER (EES
Bl ERETHILE “TMtFRA+T-H
BRR A5 EE/ MAKE
2 residential units and 6 commercial units Held under a land use right Commercial/ 100%
at Zhuo Dao Quan Bei Lu, for a term expiring on Residential
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, 16th January, 2075
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANME BETHMERES WE/EE
Wl B R ETHHILE —TthE-A+RA

TR 2 EEEER K 6 R R BN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES 5 {E1R & Y £ E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i3 NP Rz SE#ER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE : (&)
Various commercial units, cultural centre, exhibition centre, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
theatre, museum, cinemas and car parking spaces, for a term expiring on
Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza, Hou Hai Bin Lu, 15th January, 2054
Nan Shan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
thit A RAFE BELNEREE SRS
BREFMAELE “ThNF-A+RA
e BB RIIRM XL &5
ZEBFEN LRSS REDL -
Blbe - BY5E - FhREER
Golf training centre together with its ancillary Held under a long lease Commercial 40%
accommodations and an adjoining piece of land, for a term expiring on
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing, 30th September, 2026
The People’s Republic of China
hEARLNME NERHHEREE GES
IR B IS 895 2 “E-RFAA=TH
BRXRG  BYEERAELE
Various commercial and office units, Poly Mingmen, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
China Asean International Business District, for a term expiring on
Nanning, Guangxi Province, 22nd January, 2076
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANME HELTMERES SES
EREEED —FERE-A=1ZH
th Bl R B B A T
RAFMAZ ERE LR R EEN
Various office units, Shanghai Poly Plaza, Held under a land use right Commercial 90%
No. 18 Dong Fang Lu, for a term expiring on
Pudong New District, Shanghai, 21st July, 2055
The People’s Republic of China
hEARKANE HELMERES GES
LERRIE “ZRAFtA-+-R
R85

EBRNESZ ERAEEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES B /EIR B Y £ E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i 2 ROHR Rz SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE : (B)
Various commercial units at No. 8 Dong Wu Da Dao Te, Held under a land use right Commercial 55%
Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 23rd April, 2042
hEARANME FELMERES SRS
AILEREN REAE “EN-FPA=+=H
RRRER RS EMEEL
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International, for a term expiring on
No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District, 24th May, 2048
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARKANE HELMERES EES
BMNEERM “ENNAFRAZTWA
EERMILER 1485
BEBRNE LB
E4E[HE S
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland, for a term expiring on
Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang, Wu Dang District, 30th August, 2046
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANME FELMERES SRS
BMNEEBT —“EEAENA=1H
SEREFRRHE
ERRARRITRS (ER R BN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly International Plaza, for a term expiring on
Shi Nan Lu, Nan Ming District, 24th May, 2049
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE RAELMERES [SES
BMNEERM “EMAFREAZ+IA
EHEmER

BEBRANEIRES
S AR REN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES 5 {E1R & Y £ E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i3 NP Ri& SE#ER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYZF : (B)
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Spring Street, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, Wudang District, for a term expiring on
Guiyang, Guizhou Province, 20th February, 2050
The People’s Republic of China
hEARKMNE BETMERES GES
BEMEEBT “EATF-A=TH
BEEKREE
EBRNIFRANES ERREN
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Park 2010, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wudang District, Guiyang, Guizhou Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 15th March, 2051
hEARKANE HELMERES [GES
EMNEERTRER —Th-%¥=A+xhA
ERRMRE2010 2 S ERXEM
Various Office Units, Wuhan Poly Plaza, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
No. 790 Wuchang Minzhu Road, for a term expiring on
Wu Chang District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, 19th August, 2049
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE HELMERES GES
LA RETRER “FEAFNATAE
HERER 7905
RERFESS ERAEEN
A commercial unit, Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life, Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Da Tun Xin Qu, Lian Ran Zhen, for a term expiring on
An Ning County, Kunming, Yunnan Province, 21st May, 2078
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANME HELMERER SES
THERAMLER “EN\FRA-+—A
ERBRLHE

ERRRFZHER — ERXEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES B /EIR B Y £ E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i 2 ROHR Ri& SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (B)
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wouhan Poly Royal Palace, for a term expiring on
Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang, 10th May, 2072
Wuhan,
Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RAELMERRES [SES
bl A| “Tt-%hATH
BEM
RAFA%RER S
BR R
—HHEE
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 26th March, 2051
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARKANE FELMERES (EES
L& “ER-F=A=1XA
HEM
AR
BRRFIE SRR
— R4 HEE
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden, for a term expiring on
Chan Cheng District, Foshan City, 20th December, 2049

Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China

hEARANME HETHMERER SRS
ERE “EOAF+-A=tH
FHILHERE

fFRILRA R EIEE
SERMEEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES 5 {E1R & Y £ E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i3 NP Rz SE#ER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF : (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City, for a term expiring on
Hua Du District, Guangzhou, 15th December, 2079
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE HELMERES GBS
ERE “EEAFTZATER
BN IERER
R FITESR,
ZIEAmREN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion, for a term expiring on
Zhu Shun Lu, Li Cheng District, 29th July, 2080
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE HELMERES GES
WREERT —ENEFLA-TNA
R B A1 54 B
BRRMNERAE
E4EEES
A commercial unit, Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Jinan Poly Daming Lake, for a term expiring on
north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District, 28th January, 2050
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE HELMERES GES
WREERT “FATF-A-1/\R
TR &~ AL
B RNA S
— (AR X EN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Nanning Poly City, for a term expiring on
Wauyi Xi Lu, Jiangnan District, 29th October, 2050
Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE HELMERES GES
EREEED “FATF+A=TAR
NN il
BRI

ZERMEEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
RHEFEERRY=HE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—mF+—A=+—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for development A&EBER -_Z—NFE+-A=+—HZ#EA1E

purposes at 31st December, 2014 are as follows: ERYE BT -

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest

EIER,

i3 FEIRR Bt xR BEER AR FERED
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
HEEERYE
A parcel of land in Chai Lin Tou Village, Under March 2018 27,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 51%
He Ping Xiang, Hong Shan District, construction 134,000 sg.m.  Residential

Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China

hEARAANE B —T-/\#=A 27,0008 75K/ R/

LB RED 134000 5K H%E

AL EAF4S

SAMER 2 — St

A parcel of land in No. 90 Xiao Quan, Under December 2015 210,000 sq.m./  Residential 51%
Nan Quan Village, Ba Nan District, construction (Phase IV) 54,000 sg.m.

Chongging, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China

hEARLRNE i —T-A%+-A 210,000 74K/ %

M) EEET (FmE) 54,000 F 75K

B g & g R A

NRIOSR 2 L

A parcel of land on Wen Quan Lu, Under December 2015 482,000 sq.m./  Residential 66.5%
Ye Jia Zhuang, Wu Dang District, construction 1,051,000 sq.m.

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China

mEEARLFE Biam —E-h%+-H 482,000 7%/ F=E
EMEERm 1,051,000 75 K

SEBERTRERE LRI
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 5 E/EERYIE M E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HIHER,
ik TIMRR Bt EI R BEER AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REERRYDE  (B)
A parcel of land on No. 20 Yong Wu Lu, Under December 2018 465,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Xing Ning District, construction 519,000 sq.m.
Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEARAIE BT “E-N\EFZR 4650005k
BEREEEND 519,000 F 77K
HER
ERE205% 1
A parcel of land on San Huan Lu, Under December 2018 567,000 sq.m./  Residential 58%
Song Bei District, planning 648,000 sg.m.
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKANE A “EB-N\F1A 567,000 F 5K/ E=E
RELEREAD 648,000 F 77
MR =RE — R
Four parcels of land in Under September 2017 334,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 80%
Luo Yang Zhen, construction 493,000 sq.m. ~ Residential
Boluo County, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAMNE BiET —2—+FNA 334,000 %7K/ BEE/
BRA 493,000 77K fEE
BMTEES
R
MRt
A parcel of land on Donghua Road, Under March 2016 95,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Longjiang, Shunde District, construction (Phase 1) 434,000 sq.m.  Residential
Foshan City, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAANE B “E—~%FZA 95,000 F7%,/ BEE/
BERA (=) 43400077k fEE
i
IR 5T

RER—RLH
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B 1EX R EE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HEIBER
2 TIMRR Bt I AH BEER Rz SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REEZRYE  (B)
A parcel of land on Under June 2017 390,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, construction 611,000 sq.m.  Residential
Wu Dang District,
Guiyang,
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAANE 2T “E—+FRA 390,000 7%,/ EE/
EME 611,000F 77K %
gk
SER
KREEZ
—Rii
Two parcels of land in Under May 2016 74,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
the Northwest of Yongwu Overpass, construction 383,000 sq.m.  Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE R “T-~%1A 74000F77K/  EE/
BERERED 383,000 F K f£%E
ERVRALAZ
o
A parcel of land on No. 2 Baisha Lu, Under December 2015 169,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, construction (Phase 1) 903,000 sq.m. ~ Commercial/
The People’s Republic of China Residential
PEARLANE giET it Sk ik 169,000 75K/ HAE/
BEREEHMNT (5=8#) 903,000 /K  EE/EE
AP 252 — 1
A parcel of land in Wu Dang pasture, Under June 2018 1,118,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Wu Dang District, Guiyang, construction 1,971,000 sq.m.  Residential
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
GEINESE BiET —F-/\FXA 1118000 77K/ HEX/fE%E
EME 1,971,000 F73
EETRER

SENFS R
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 5 E/EERYIE M E

Stage of
completion

TR

Expected
completion date

Bt EI R

Site area/Gross
floor area
EEE/
BEEE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group's

Type of use interest

ik SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:

(Continued)
HEEZREYE : (8)

A parcel of land in the South of

Zhu Shun Lu,

Li Cheng District,
Jinan,

Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

PEARANE
IWRE
ERm
ERE
Ppes
Bz —Rti

Five parcels of land in Dong Ao Zhen,
Shenzhou Peninsula, Wanning City,

Hainan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

PEARANE
BEE
BEmEMNEE
RREZ AR

Various parcels of land at junction of

Guo Xiang Bei Lu and

Yin Shan Lake Lu,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,

Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE
TEEEMNm
FMRPEERER
BBILBRFAMBERR L
SR

Under
construction

Under
construction

BiE

Under
construction

December 2018

“T-N\F+=HA

December 2018

“T-N\F+=HA

June 2019

“T-NERA

142,000 sg.m./
416,000 sq.m.

142,000 L 5%,/
416,000 F 5K

395,000 sq.m./
487,000 sq.m.

395,000 F 45K,/
487,000 F 5 K

369,000 sq.m./
1,060,000 sq.m.

369,000 F 45K,/
1,060,000 F 77 %

Residential 100%

Commercial/ 100%
Residential

EEY4iEe

Residential 100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B 1EX R EE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HEIBER
2 TIMRR Bt EIRH BEER Rz SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REEZRYE  (B)
A parcel of land at Dong Fang Da Under June 2018 293,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Dao and Dushu Lake Da Dao, construction 383,000 sg.m.
Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE BT —F-\FAA 293,000F7%/ %
LEEEMT 383,000 F 77 K
FMRPEERER
RAKBRBEMAEL
—RI
Two parcels of land known as Under November 2016 66,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
C10-6, C14-2 located in Jiading construction (Phase II) 180,000 sq.m. ~ Residential
New City, Jiading District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
GEINES o3y “F—~%1t-A 66,000 77K/ %/ EE
LBRTEERRTHN (E=H) 180,000 F 75K
MAARCI0-6 X C14-2 214
Five parcels of land in Jiading New City, Under December 2016 151,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Jiading District, Shanghai, construction (Phase V) 478,000 sq.m.  Residential
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKTE B Sy gy 151,000 5K/ BEE/fEE
LERER (F1H) 478,000 F 77 &

REMAL DRI
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 5 E/EERYIE M E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HIHER
ik TIMRR BT AH BEEE Az SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REEZRYNE  (B)
A parcel of land on Chang Under April 2015 43,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Jiang Xi Lu, Song Nan Zhen, construction (Phase I) 99,000 sq.m.  Residential
Bao Shan District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAIE BT “T-RFWNA 43,0005k BE/EE
LEELE (F—4) 99,0003
MERERIARL
—Hti
A parcel of land in Wu Kang Zhen, Under May 2016 164,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Huzhou District, De Qing County, construction (Phase II) 430,000 sq.m.  Residential
Zhe Jiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAANE gk “Z-RERA 164,000 F 7%/ Bk HEE
1A (£=H) 430,000 F 73 K
RGNS
HEHR -1
A parcel of land in Zhenhai Under December 2015 326,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
New City, Ning Bo City, construction (Phase I1l) 981,000 sq.m. ~ Residential
The People’s Republic of China
PEARATE BT “E-RFTSA 0 32600075k BE/ME
B (5=H) 981,000 77
EBE
—5iH
A parcel of land in Ma Xi Village, Under June 2015 201,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 51%
Hua Du District, Guangzhou, construction (Phase I1) 406,000 sq.m.  Residential
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE i “T-R%FRA 201,000/ BE/EE
RNTIEEE (£=8) 406,000 77 7

BENZ -1
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B 1EX R EE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HEIBER
2 TIMRR Bt I AH BEER Rz SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REEZRYE  (B)
A parcel of land in Hua Du District, Under October 2015 149,000 sg.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Guangzhou, construction (Phase IIl) 478,000 sq.m.  Residential
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAMNE BiET —“Z-h¥TH 149,000 77K/ BE/HEE
BN (=4 478,000 /3 %
EHRz — L
A parcel of land in Tie Ji Village, Under November 2016 332,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 68%
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, construction (Phase III) 1,494,000 sq.m. ~ Residential
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE BiER —E—3%F+-A 332,000F7%/ BE/MEE
HEMAILE (£=45) 1,494,000 777 7
HER 2 — R
A parcel of land in Ma Chi Lu, Under November 2018 56,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 55%
Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan, construction (Phase I) 107,000 sq.m. ~ Residential
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLTE B - \Ft-A 5600077 K/ EE/EE
HEMREHE (F—4) 107,000 F 73 K
Sk~
Four parcels of land Under December 2015 209,000 sq.m./  Residential 70%
in Tu Hu Cun Xia Liao, Danshui, construction (Phase I) 778,000 sq.m.
Huiyang District, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLANE giET “E-RFTZA 0 20900075k HE
BEREEMM (F—4) 778,000 F 77K
BIEEKK
TN TR

MRt



RAIUBEEEERARF | —T—maEFR 291

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 5 E/EERYIE M E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HIHER,
ik TIMRR Bt EI R BEER AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REERRYDE  (B)
A parcel of land at north of Wa Shan, Under December 2015 89,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Qi Jia Zhuang, Huan Cui District, construction 218,000 sq.m.
Weihai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE BT i Sk 89,0007/ %
\WRERAED 218,000 F 73 %
REEHZRHE
Btz — Rt
A parcel of land in west of Under December 2015 100,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Hu Shan Nan Lu, north of construction 288,000 sq.m.
Feng Huang Nan Lu, Lai Shan District,
Yantai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE BT S T 100,000 77K/ %
WREEAT 288,000 F77 K
FIE R PR AT R
BERERALZ
—HRiit
A parcel of land at east of Under December 2015 208,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Cheng Dong Lu and South of construction (Phase I) 572,000 sq.m.  Residential
Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,
Li Zhou Jie Dao,
Yu Yao County,
Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAMNE g —T-RETZR 2080007k BEE/MEE
ATE (F—H) 572,000 F 7 K
Rk

B
BURBEAR RBRISR AR
—HLit
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B 1EX R EE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HEIBER
2 TIMRR Bt I AH BEER Rz SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REEZRYE  (B)
Four parcels of land Under June 2018 89,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 85%
in Bei Da Huai Shu region, construction 477,000 sq.m.  Residential
Huaiyin District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARATE BT —F-/\F~A 89,0007/ EE/fEE
\WREERET 477,000 F 3
RERIARE B2
PRt it
A parcel of land at south of Under December 2015 112,000 sq.m./  Residential 80%
Hua Yuan Lu, construction (Phase I) 419,000 sq.m.
east of Hua Xian Chang Lu, Lixia District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARHANE g it Sk iE S s 112,000¥75%/ F%E
R ERm (5—5) 419,000 F77
iy
LB A
LB R
—Rti
Two parcels of land at junction of Under October 2016 40,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 70%
Long Guan Dong Lu and Qing Long Lu, construction 138,000 sq.m.  Residential
Long Hua Xin District,
Shenzhen,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE oS “E—RETA 4000075k HER/HEE
AYIm 138,000 F73 K

RENREERE AR

IRZWRLH,
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 5 E/EERYIE M E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HIHER,
ik TIMRR BT AH BEER AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REERRYDE  (B)
Four parcels of land at east of Hua Xi Da Dao, Under December 2018 244,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 51%
Nan Ming District, construction 1,586,000 sq.m.  Residential
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARHANE R “T-\FEtZA 24400075k BE/ME
EUIET-Coiii 1,586,000 F 75K
HAEEERERA
IR
A parcel of land at junction of Under October 2016 65,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Qun Li Da Di Wu Dao and San Huan, construction 185,000 sq.m.
Qun Li Xin Qu, Dao Li District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE BT “E-RFHA 650007k %
RELERBAD 185,000 F 77K
EERBNMERNAFRE
H-RRAR
Z—HRLH
A parcel of land at west of Qing Nian Lu, Under March 2016 61,000 sg.m./  Residential 55%
east of Gui Hua Lu, construction 142,000 sq.m.
Zhi Fu District,
Yantai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE BT —F-"%=R 61,0007k %
WREEAT 142,000 F 75K
SREBEERA  RERR
Z—RiH
A parcel of land in Dong Jiao Village Under February 2018 127,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 55%
Li Wan District, Guangzhou, construction (Phase 1) 641,000 sq.m.  Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARHANE BT ~F-/\%=A 127000 5K/ BEE/HEE
ERERMM (E=5) 641,000 F77
#EE AN

Z—HRLH

293
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B 1EX R EE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location

1B

Stage of
completion

TIMRR

Expected
completion date

Bt EIRH

Site area/Gross
floor area
EEE/
BEEE

Type of use

i

Group's
interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:

(Continued)

HEFEERYE : (B)

A parcel of land at Jiu Tan Lu,
Hua Du District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

GEINES
ERA B m
fEBENER
Z—RLH

Two parcels of land at the east of

North Jianshe Road,

South of Sandong Avenue,
Huadu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

iz A RAFE
BREEMND
TR
BRILBEIAR
—RRENE
Z MR

Various parcels of land at
Rongjiang Lu, Langjiang Lu,
Qunli No. 1 Da Dao and
Qunli No. 2 Da Dao,

Qunli Xin Qu, Daoli District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China

iz A RAFE
EETAREED
EERE TR
RTR -~ BATRK

BNE-RERBNE_RE

ZERLH

A parcel of land at
Ming Xiu Lu East,
Xixiangtang District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China

PEARANE
ERERED
Pz E A A R B8
2RI

Under
construction

BET

Under planning

Rl

Under planning

Rl

Under
construction

March 2016

November 2017
(Phase I)

“T—+F+—H
(5—H)

August 2018
(Phase I)

—Z2-\§/\R
(F—H)

June 2016
(Phase 1)

~F—RFAA
(%)

33,000 sq.m./
153,000 sg.m.

33,000 45K,/
153,000 F 75 %

23,000 sg.m./
99,000 sq.m.

23,000 55K,/
99,000 % 7K

157,000 sg.m./
541,000 sg.m.

157,000 L5,/
541,000 F 7 %

15,000 sq.m./
114,000 sg.m.

15,000 £ 5%/
114,000 F 75 2%

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

mE/ fEE

Residential

Residential

100%

100%

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 5 E/EERYIE M E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area  Type of use interest
HIHER,
ik TIMRR Bt EI R BEER AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REERRYDE  (B)
A parcel of land in Under March 2017 130,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Eastern New City, construction (Phase 1) 325,000 sqg.m.
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE R —2—t%=A 130,000 7%/ %
HIEER™ (F—H) 325,000 F 5%
REFHZO R
Z—HRLH
A parcel of land in Under June 2016 172,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Shunde Xin Cheng Lun Jiao, construction (Phase 1) 672,000 sq.m.  Residential
Shunde District,
Foshan, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE BT —2—~EXRA 172,000 ¥k H%/HE=
BEREHILT (F—H) 672,000 F 73
BB IR IR #8352
Z—RiH
A parcel of land at Under December 2018 10,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
New Kowloon Inland Lot 6527, construction 70,000 sq.m.
Kai Tak Area 11, Site 3,
Kowloon, Hong Kong,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLTE BT - /\&t=A 10,000 7%/ f%
BRNERES 1IR3 58 70,000 5 %

HTNEERHLER 5 6527 5%
2t
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FHEFHEEYEHRE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—mF+—A=+—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for sale at 31st AEER-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HZEFHE

December, 2014 are as follows: HEWEZFHRBOT :

Location Gross floor area  Type of use Group’s interest
1o B BERE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE:

B IFHEYRE -

160 carparking spaces, N/A  Residential 100%
Poly Garden,

Gao Xin District,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

S EYNEP ] TNEA =%
L #RE &N T

Sl

RAHSE 2

160 f&{ZEfiz

Various carparking spaces, N/A  Residential 100%
Poly Phoenixia Garden,

Feng Xiang Lu, Nanning,

Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China

i AR AME T
EAE

MEMRAE

RFBATER 2

ZEFEN

fest
H
e
ot

Various commercial units 468 sq.m. Commercial 100%
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Upper House,

Zhu Jin Lu,

China Asean International Business District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEEARLME 468 FTK HAE
EREEED

B3R B B R S [

NS

MEERLEZ

ZEmEENRFEN



Location

B
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
RZE

At 31st December, 2014

R-F—mFE+=—H=+—H

Group’s interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE - (&)

Various villas, residential units, commercial units

and carparking spaces,

Harbin Poly The Water’s Fragrant Dike,
San Huan Lu, Song Bei District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hE ARAE

REETEWBEAD

bR = 3R

REERNKBRREZ

ZERE - EEEM - MEEMNEEM

Various carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Century,

China Asean International Business District,
Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE

EEEMED

B R BB R AR

MERM2IHERZ

ZEfFEN

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Poly Harbin Contemporary No. 9 Park Life,
Song Bei Zhen, Song Bei District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
FEEAREME

REETIERBAED

SIS

RERERN BN Z

ZEETEMN  BREMREFEM

101,474 sq.m.

101,474 72K

N/A

6,117 sq.m.

6,117 F 75K

Commercial/
Residential

HEEE

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

[EEVEER=

58%

100%

51%

297
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location Gross floor area  Type of use Group’s interest
1 B BEEE RE KEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

FFHIEHEYE : (&)

Various villas, residential units, 19,922 sq.m. Commercial/ 66.5%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland,

Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang,

Wu Dang District, Guiyang,

Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEE ARKME 19,922 F7K % EE

BMA

EEMSER

RRAR R

BESRARRFTRZ

ZERE EEEM BEEMREFEMU

Various residential units and commercial units, 3,751 sq.m. Commercial/ 80%

Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life,
Da Tun Xin Qu, Lian Ran Zhen,

An Ning County, Kunming,

Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

i AR AFE

EBAMLTER

BARBARTLH R

EAARFIZEHIES
ZlEEEEM LB ESEM

3,751 F 7K

Residential

B EE
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Location Gross floor area

b B BEER

Type of use
RZE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group’s interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE (&)

Various residential units, commercial units and 8,213 sq.m.
a business centre,

Wuhan Poly Royal Palace,

Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang,

Wuhan,

Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China

R ARLME 8,213 F 75K
#ita

EOET

R R E S

BURRFIFERZ

ZEETEM  BEEMR

— &R 5 L

Various villas, apartment units, commercial units and 81,004 sq.m.
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Town,

Zong Fang Cun,

Ma Lu Zhen,

Jiading District,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 81,004 F 77K
L

e

B

FERMNREZ

ZERIE - AEEA - WEEMREEMN

Commercial/
Residential

[EEVEERS

Residential

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
Rz

Group’s interest

=W

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYXE : (5B)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces,
Nanning Poly Landscape,

Jing Guan Da Dao,

West of Zhu Gan Dao,

Dong Gou Ling, Xingning District,
Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China
i AR AME

ERERED

R

EHEA

BEIRE

AERNILKEHZ
SRR B RIFEN

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International,
No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District,
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEE AR HEAME

EMEERT

EEmRmIb 148 5%

EBRMEZLER 2

ZETEEN  HEBEMR

BEAL

Various commercial units, office units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Plaza, No. 18 Dong Fang Lu,
Pudong New District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
FEARLME

FERRAR

RITE8185% LEBRMNESZ
ZEMEEL BAZEMREEL

6,406 sq.m.

6,406 - 75 K

9,588 sq.m.

9,588 75 K

1,069 sg.m

1,069 ¥ 75K

Commercial

CES

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

Commercial

[GES

100%

100%

90%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Location

B

Gross floor area

BEER

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Type of use Group’s interest

Rz SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE (&)

Various residential units and carparking spaces,
Shanghai Poly Lakeside Garden,

Ma Lu Zhen, Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEE ARKEAME

tEgE R SRR

SRR S e FE 2

ZIAEEEM RIFEN

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces, Guangzhou City of Poly,
East of Hua Gang Da Dao, Xin Hua Zhen,
Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

I ARAME

BRE

BN EER R

FEEEMABR

BN AR AL 2

SEETEMN  BEEURFEL

Various carparking spaces,
Shanghai Poly Villa Garden,
Yang Pu District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
FEARKNE

LEERHR
EBRAENREZ
ZAFEL

3,262 sg.m

3,262 F 75K

473 sq.m

473 75K

N/A

Residential 100%

Commercial/ 51%
Residential

BEEE

Residential 100%

301
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
Rz

Group’s interest

=W

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYXE : (5B)

Various villas, residential units and carparking spaces,
Shanghai Poly Royal Garden,

Tang On Lu, Tangzhen,

Pudong New District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

i AR AME

EEHEREFR

JESRE R

EBRFIEESE 2

ZERIE - EEEMRIFEAL

Various villas, residential units,

commercial units and carparking spaces,
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur, Luo Yang Zhen,
Boluo, Huizhou, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

R AR AT

BEREEMNT

BENRA LK 2

ZERE EFEEM -

BREN RFEM

Various villas and residential units,
Nanning Poly Crescendo,

No. 20 Yong Wu Lu,

Xing Ning District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China
FEEARILME

ERE205%

MERMLEEZ

ZERE RIEEEM

30,758 sq.m

30,758 F 77K

70,413 sg.m.

70,413 7K

125,204 sq.m.

125,204 F 75 K

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

Residential

(=

50.1%

80%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Location

B

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
RZE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group’s interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE (&)

Various villas, residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Guiyang Poly Spring Street,

Shui Dong Lu, Wu Dang District,
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEE AR AT

BEMEEBT

58 BKRE

BERRNFERKEZ

ZERIE - FEEM  MEEURFEML

Various residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Jinan Poly Garden, northwest of
Xing Cun Li Jiao, Pan Zhuang Cun,
Gang Gou Zhen, Li Cheng District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARKME

WEREERE™

R & 7 A SR
A A 32 Pa L
BEERMIEREZ

ZEEEEMN -

R B N RIFEN

71,382 sq.m.

71,382 F 75 K

12,717 sq.m.

12,717 FE 7K

Commercial/
Residential

BE(EE

Commercial/
Residential

BE(EE

66.5%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location Gross floor area

b B BEER

Type of use
Rz

Group’s interest

=W

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYXE : (5B)

Various residential units, 18,250 sq.m.
commercial units and carparking spaces,

Jinan Poly Daming Lake,

north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEEARAME 18,250 F 732K
WWRAERE™

TR —EKIALL

BEERNIARE M

ZEEEEMN  BREMREFEM

Various houses of 385 sq.m
Chongging Poly Spring Villa,

No. 90 Xiao Quan,

Nan Quan Village,

Ba Nan District,

Chonggqing, Sichuan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REAREME 385 F 75K
mEEE™

B R

/MR 90 5%

EERMNRZ

ZERIE

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

Residential

80%

51%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Location Gross floor area  Type of use Group'’s interest

B

BEER

Rz

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE (&)

Various commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Wuhan Poly Cultural Plaza,

No. 788 Wuchang Minzhu Road,
Wu Chang District, Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
R ARFEFEH

i =

EOEME &R

HEREIK 7885
BRERMMUEES Z
ZEmEEN RFEA

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Foshan Poly Prestige City,
Donghua Road,

Longjiang, Shunde District,

Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
EAREME

ERAE

g™

g7z I BE T

REER

BRILERA L3z

ZIEAEETEM  BEEMRFEN

38,673 sq.m

38,673 F 5K

69,800 sg.m

69,800 F 7K

Commercial

[CE

Commercial/
Residential

[EEVEERS

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location Gross floor area  Type of use Group’s interest
1 B BEEEE RE KEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

FFHIEHEYE : (&)

Various commercial units 1,275 sq.m.  Commercial/ 100%
and carparking spaces, Residential

Nanning Poly Sincere Garden,

Feng Lin Lu,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China

R ARKFE 1275 ¥k BmEEE

EREEED

AR ES

MERMELEZ

ZEmEEN RFEN

Various residential units, commercial units and 15,385 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Liuzhou Poly Merization World,

No. 2 Bai Sha Lu,

Liuzhou, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China

R AR 15385 Tk % €

ErREIMNT

BB 2 5%

WM ERFIARIIER 2

ZEEEEMN  BRBEMLFEN

Various residential units, commercial units 11,131 sq.m. Commercial/ 66.5%

and carparking spaces,

Guiyang Poly International Center,

Shi Nan Lu, Nanming District, Guiyang,
Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
FEEAREME

BIMNEEBT

3 B[ T A

BERRNERESZ

ZEEEEN  BRECREEM

11,131 75K

Residential

BEEE



RANBXEEBRAF | —T—HFFR

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Location

B

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
RZE

At 31st December, 2014

R-F—mFE+=—H=+—H

Group’s interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE (&)

Various villas and residential units,
Guiyang Poly Park 2010,

Wudang District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME

BEMEERBT
BEHRHAE20102

Z AR RETEL

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly,
Zi Xing Jie, Gong Dian Lu,

Nangang District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARKME

REITAEMBED

TERA®EE

IREBRABEREZ

ZEEEEM  BRBMRFEN

Various residential units and commercial units,
Shenzhen Poly Up Town,

at junction of Shen Hui Da Dao and Yi Cui Lu,
Ai Lian Gang Bei, Longgang District,
Shenzhen,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARKME

el

REMEERMEA

RERERIGRERS

RIIRF_ERIER 2
ZEFEEEM KA REML

140,287 sq.m.

140,287 72K

10,601 sg.m.

10,601 75 K

38,209 sq.m.

38,209 F 77K

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

[EEVEERS

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

100%

51%

70%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
Rz

Group’s interest

=W

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYXE : (5B)

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,
Nanning Poly City,

Wuyi Xi Lu,

Jiangnan District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REE AR A

ERERED

AN il
MERMEZ

ZEEE BREGNREEM

Various residential units and commercial units,
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion,

Zhu Shun Lu,

Li Cheng District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
A R

IR & B ™

JRE 5k 6 A0 3
BERERNEEAREZ
ZETEREEEML

Various villas, residential units and
commercial units,

Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion,
north of Wa Shan, Qi Jia Zhuang,
Huan Cui District,

Weihai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REE A RAAE

LR E B8
RREEFKEZILL
BUBRFENGE A EEZ

ZERE - FEMEEEL

36,099 sq.m

36,099 F 77K

87,687 sgq.m

87,687 F 7K

68,877 sq.m

68,877 17K

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

Commercial/
Residential

BE T

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

100%

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Location

B

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
RZE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group’s interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE - (&)

Various residential units and
commercial units,

Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion,
west of Hu Shan Nan Lu,

north of Feng Huang Nan Lu,

Lai Shan District,

Yantai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HREE A R AAIE

IWERABEAT

He L 8 BT 1L R B DA 7 K2 B B/ i DA
EaRNEWEREZ
ZEFEREEEM

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion,

junction of Guo Xiang Bei Lu and

Yin Shan Lake Lu,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARANME

TEREFINT

RN R PR E R
ZBEALBE N T LR 32 57

#R N ORI R 8 B i

ZEETEL  BREMREEM

Various villas, residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion,

Jiading New City,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME

!

3% E [ 52 E FT

FERMRIEEL

ZERIE - FEEM  EENRFEL

12,529 sq.m

12,529 F 7K

119,576 sq.m.

119,576 772K

37,073 sq.m

37,073 F 77K

Commercial

[CES

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BE (T

100%

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
Rz

Group’s interest

=W

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYXE : (5B)

Various residential units and
commercial units,

Shanghai Poly Grace Garden,
Nan Chang Zhen,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
i AR B

&

EERFIAMAETE 2
ZEEEEM REREML

Various residential units and commercial units,
Deging Poly Origin

De Qing County

Zhe Jiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
RREE A R AAE

HIA

=5%

EBRAMRE 2

ZRF B M EEEM

Various residential units and
commercial units,

Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District
Hong Shan District,

Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China
R ARAME

il

FUEM LR

EORRAE B2
ZRF BB M EEM

52,860 sq.m

52,860 F 3K

38,418 sq.m

38,418 F J7 K

42,714 sq.m

42,714 F 77K

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

Commercial/
Residential

BmEEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

100%

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Location

I B

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
R®

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group's interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE (&)

Various residential units, commercial units,
office units and carparking spaces,

Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden

Chan Cheng District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEE AR AT

BERAE

% 1L T A

BRILRFIREIEE 2

ZEETEL  BREN PLEBEMRIEBM

Various villas, residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEE A RFEME

BRE

BMNTEHR

ESAIST S i

ZERE FEEN  BEBEMREEN

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City,

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME

BERE

ENTIEHR

BEMRFTER 2

ZEETEN  BREMREFEM

47,839 sq.m

47,839 F 75K

46,867 sq.m

46,867 75 K

19,086 sq.m

19,086 F 7K

Commercial/
Residential

BE(EE

Commercial/
Residential

B (EE

Commercial/
Residential

100%

51%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location Gross floor area  Type of use Group’s interest
1 B BEEEE RE KEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

FFHIEHEYE : (&)

Various residential units, commercial units, 49,409 sq.m  Commercial/ 100%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential

Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion,

An Ning County, Kunming,

Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

R AR AT 49,409 F 5Kk mE X

EAMZEH

ERARMNEBHAZIR

SEETEM  BEEM  BREEUREFEMA

Various residential units, commercial units and 74,288 sq.m  Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Poly City,

Ningbo,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARARME 74,288 F K mEEE

BT

PRI Z

ZEEEEMN  BRBMRFEN

Various villas, 35,986 sgq.m Residential 100%
Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa,

Dong Fang Da Dao and

Dushu Lake Da Dao,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEEARIME 35,986 F 7K {EE

T ERA BRI T

RN R EEFRER
R ABRIBE A B
FHINRANBERER 2
Z a2



RANBXEEBRAF | —T—HFFR

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5 E/EtE EYE T E

Location

B

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
RZE

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MFE+—H=+—H

Group’s interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE (&)

Various residential units and commercial units,
Jinan Poly Center,

Bei Da Huai Shu region,
Huaiyin District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
R AREFEH

IR & ER™

IREE R I RSB A =
BRI
ZEFEEREEEM

Various residential units,
Ningbo Poly Jordan International,
east of Cheng Dong Lu and
south of Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,
Li Zhou Jie Dao,

Yuyao, Zhejiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARLME

AT R R

AN E

PR AR R R R AT
PR AHEEARLE
ZEEEEN

Various residential units,
Hainan Poly Peninsula No. T,
Dong Ao Zhen, Shenzhou Peninsula,
Wanning, Hainan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hE ARANME

BEEEEM

S

ROREH

BERMFE 15
ZEETEN

36,923 sq.m

36,923 F 75K

170,285 sq.m

170,285 752K

69,919 sq.m

69,919 F 7K

Commercial/
Residential

BEfEE

Residential

Residential

85%

100%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3B {E$HEY) %=

At 31st December, 2014
R-E—MF+—A=+—H

Location

b

Gross floor area

BEER

Type of use
Rz

Group’s interest

=W

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYXE : (5B)

Various residential units, commercial units,
office units and carparking spaces,
Shanghai Poly Star Island

Jiading New City,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

i AR B

EEEEREENMN

EIBRTI B

ZEEEEM  BRBM  WAEEMRIEBMA

Various residential units and carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Felicity,

Chang Jiang Xi Lu,

Song Nan Zhen

Bao Shan District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
i AR AME

EEgElE

HAERRIT R

LB RFE IR

ZEAEEEM RIFEN

Various residential units, commercial units,
office units and carparking spaces,
Kunming Poly Sky and Earth,

Yu Chi Lu community,

Zong Shu Ying sub-district office,
Xishan District,

Kunming, Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARLME

ERERHAT

P&

PR E B RR

8 2diz pad i

B ERERMNE R

ZEEEEMN  BREBEM  WREEUREHEM

19,185 sq.m

19,185 F 7K

392 sq.m

392 5K

90,325 sq.m

90,325 F ;K

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

100%

100%

90%
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